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Delphi Financial Group, Inc. is an integrated employee benefit services
company. We are a leader in managing all aspects of employee absence to
enhance the productivity of our clients and we provide the related
insurance coverages: long-term and short-term disability, excess workers’
compensation, group life, and travel accident. Our asset accumulation
business emphasizes individual fixed annuity products. Our common stock
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol DFG and our

corporate website address is www.delphifin.com.

2002 Highlights

€ Safety National capitalized on the hard market for our core excess workers’
compensation product by raising prices over 25%, improving contract terms and
Increasing new production by 70%.

€ Reliance Standard expanded our presence in the attractive small company niche for
group employee benefits by opening new offices, growing our sales force and
increasing our productivity per sales rep.

@ Delphi’s revenues from larger clients grew smartly. Our unique Integrated
Employee Benefits program enabled these clients to improve their productivity and
to reduce days lost to employee absence.

€ As a result of these initiatives, Delphi achieved very strong top and bottom line
growth, with core group employee benefit premiums rising 24% and operating
earnings up 78%. ,

® We strengthened our balance sheet as book value per share increased 15% and debt
as a percentage of capital declined to 14%, less than half of the percentage two
years ago.

€ We enhanced our financial flexibility by arranging a new $150 million three-year
bank credit facility.

Puring 2002, we smartly positioned Delphi to
deliver strong, dependable earnings growth fq
the next several years,




Financial Highlights

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Years Ended December 31, 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Income Statement Data:
Core Premium and Fee Income® $578,532 $471,368 $419,072 $374,887 §$337233
Net Investment Income 162,036 157,509 184,576 180,945 168,692
Revenues Excluding Realized Investment (Losses) Gains® 789,893 664,713 650,933 666,213 595,566
Operating Income® 127,465 81,652% 157,371 144,995 124,960
Operating Farnings®® 79,373 44,7479 86,438 80,850 68,564
Net Income (Loss) 60,652 6,505 (3,293) 50,285 87,035
Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets 3,734,942 3,336,146 3,440,010 3,395,688 3,287,057
Long-Term Debt 118,139 125,675 267,770 283,938 265,165
Capital Securities of Delphi Funding L.L.C. 36,050 36,050 100,000 100,000 100,000
Shareholders’ Equity 681,655 581,994 538,193 501,417 566,440
Diluted Per Share Data:
Operating Earnings® 3.73 2.18® 4.24 3.73 3.13
Net Income (Loss) 2.85 0.32 (0.16) 2.32 3.97
Book Value 32.75 28.50 26.87 24.52 26.59
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding (in thousands) 21,258 20,565 20,388 21,674 21,920

(1) Primarily includes premiums from core group employee benefit products and fee income from asset accumulation products.
(2) See “Ttem 6 - Selected Financial Data” on page 16 of the accompanying Form 10-K for the amounts of and reconciliations to “revenue” and “income (loss) from continuing operations” calculated in

accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”).

(3) Operating income is comprised of income from continuing operations excluding realized investment gains and losses and before interest and income tax expense or benefit. Operating income calculated
in accordance with GAAP, which includes realized investment gains and losses, is as follows: 2002 - $98,996; 2001 - $11,363; 2000 - $19,324; 1999 - $119,275; 1998 - $133,020.

(4) Includes a pre-tax charge of $44.3 million in 2001 for reserve strengthening primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation products.

(5) Operating earnings exclude realized investment gains and losses {net of the related income tax expense or benefit), discontinued operations and extraordinary items.

(6) Includes a charge of $28.8 million, net of taxes, or $1.40 per share, in 2001 for reserve strengthening. See note (4).
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Letter to Shareholders

" clphi had an excellent year in 2002, marked by rapid top line
growth and bottom line results that were right in line with our earnings
targets each quarter. Our results for the year clearly confirmed the success
of the deleveraging strategy we completed in 2001. This strategy was
designed to produce predictable earnings and to emphasize the underlying

strength of our insurance businesses, which are currently enjoying highly
favorable market environments. During 2002, we took decisive action to
capitalize on these attractive market opportunities. In doing so, we have
smartly positioned Delphi to deliver strong, dependable earnings growth
for the next several years.

2002 Financial Highlights

By all significant measures, 2002 was a successful year for Delphi:
@ Operating earnings grew by 78% to $79.4 million or $3.73 per share, in line with the guidance
we provided early in 2002;

@ Operating earnings were 13.6% of beginning shareholders’ equity, above our 11% to 13% target
range;

€ Core group employee benefit premiums increased 24% to $559 million, driven by excess
workers’ compensation premium growth of 42%;

4 New core premium production rose 26% to $201 million, led by 70% growth in excess workers’
compensation production;

€ Premiums and fees from Delphi’s unique Integrated Employee Benefits program rose 22% to
$73 million;

4 Total return on our investment portfolio exceeded the benchmark Lehman Aggregate Index for
investment grade bonds by more than 70 basis points.
We also continued to strengthen our financial position during the year:
@ Book value per share at the end of 2002 increased to $32.75, a gain of 15% from $28.50 at the
end of 2001;
# Debt as a percentage of capital fell to 14%, less than half of what it was at the end of 2000;
€ We earned the interest on our corporate debt by 14 times over in 2002.
We improved our capital position by completing a new $150 million three-year revolving credit facility, which
replaced an existing $140 million facility. The new bank facility was oversubscribed -- we were seeking a new
facility in the range of $125 to $150 million -- and effectively refinances Delphi’s senior notes that come due

later in 2003. We continue to have a $250 million shelf registration in place, and depending on market
conditions we have the option of either using our bank facility or accessing the capital markets.



Multi-Year Cycle in Excess Workers” Compensation

The primary engine driving Delphi’s growth in 2002 was the hard market in excess workers’ compensation, Safety
National’s core product. Safety National took advantage of the dramatic market turn that began in 2001 and achieved
price increases in 2002 of more than 25%. We improved contract terms significantly, particularly at the critical point
where risk shifts from our clients to us. This point, technically known as the self-insured retention, increased by 10%
from an average of $315,000 in 2001 to $347,000 in 2002.

Although we took in more premium dollars for less risk in 2002, we did not report expanded profit margins, as one
might expect. Instead, we set aside a higher percentage of premiums for loss reserves than in prior years. We did
this to be conservative, particularly in light of the unusual losses we sustained in 2001 as a result of the World Trade
Center attack and other large losses. Since our 2002 experience with large losses returned to normal, we expect to
show higher profit margins in 2003 and beyond.

The longer term outlook for Safety National's business is bright. Every employer is required by law to provide
workers’ compensation coverage for their employees. Their choice is to buy "primary" workers’ compensation
insurance, which covers all risks, or to self-insure for at least a portion of the risk and purchase excess workers’
compensation coverage to insure against large losses. Primary

workers’ compensation insurance was severely underpriced in the “Safely National achieved

12t:ell9(9)05s(,)3ut since 2000 pé’lces T\/e been rising sharply and in 20102 pr ice increases in 2002 o f .
-50% on average, depending on the state. The companies

writing that business will need to increase their rates sharply for more than 2 5 %,”

several more years in order to restore their financial health. As

primary rates soar, the employers who do the best job in promoting workplace safety are motivated to self-insure or

join self-insurance associations. When they do, they become potential customers for Safety National. That is why

our new premium production rose 70 percent last year, despite charging higher rates and obtaining more stringent

contract terms.

Safety National is off to another strong start in its excess workers’ compensation business in 2003. In our January
2003 renewal season, Safety National achieved additional price increases of 10-15%, strong new production and
further limitations in our risk of loss. We expect similar trends as the rest of the book renews throughout 2003.

Strong Position in Attractive Small Case Market

The second major factor driving Delphi’s excellent results in 2002 was strong growth in premiums and production at
Reliance Standard Life. Core group employee benefit premiums grew 20%, while core production rose 21%. Our
larger, more productive sales force focused on our attractive small case niche of businesses with 10-500 employees.
This niche remains less competitive and price sensitive, and despite a sluggish economy we continued to see growth
in our quote activity and number of new cases won.

Reliance Standard has aimost doubled its sales force over the last five years, from 53 sales reps at the end of 1997
to 93 reps in February 2003. At the same time, we increased the productivity of our sales reps: their average
production was $1.3 million in 1997 and $1.9 million in 2002. Boosting productivity while adding new, often
untested, sales reps is not an easy feat, and reflects intensive training and strong sales management. We expect to
make further productivity gains through effective use of technology. In the second half of 2002, Reliance Standard
successfully implemented the first phase of a major technology initiative, which increased automation of our sales
and underwriting functions and helped improve our response time for proposals to brokers. The second and third
phases of the technology initiative, which will tie in claims, finance and administrative functions, are well underway.




We are achieving continued increases in our market share. In 2002, Reliance Standard ranked 7th in new sales of
group long-term disability coverage in the U.S. and ranked 10th in new sales of group life. Our position is even
stronger in our highly profitable target niche of smaller employers.

We expect our powerful momentum to continue in 2003, as Reliance Standard plans to expand its sales force by 10%
and is exploring the opening of additional sales offices. We currently have 24 sales offices nationwide, following
the opening of a Kansas City office in July 2002 and the opening of offices in Southern California and South Florida
early in the year.

Growing Sales in Integrated Employee Benefits

A third reason for our success in 2002 was an increased contribution from our unique Integrated Employee Benefits
program targeted at larger employers. In this program, we sell disability, life and excess workers’ compensation
insurance coverage from Reliance Standard and Safety National, combined with absence management services from
our Matrix Absence Management subsidiary. These services build on Matrix’s strong track record of helping leading
companies improve productivity by reducing days lost to employee absence. Demand for these services is growing
rapidly as the use of proactive return-to-work strategies has taken hold in corporate America.

Revenues from the Integrated Employee Benefits program, which are primarily insurance premiums for Reliance
Standard and Safety National, were $73 million in 2002. This represented an increase of 22% from 2001 and was
up from just $5 million in 1998, when we acquired Matrix.

Growth as Promised

In 2002, Delphi delivered on our promise of stable, predictable growth in earnings. Looking ahead, we are well
positioned to build on this success. While our long-term corporate goal is to achieve 10% to 12% annual operating
earnings per share growth, for the next several years we expect annual growth of 12% or better. Our very positive
outlook for 2003 and beyond is based on a continuation of the hard market in excess workers’ compensation at Safety
National, continued premium and sales growth at Reliance Standard,
and a growing contribution from our Integrated Employee Benefits
program.

“For the next several years

we expect annual earnings _ . ' o _
0 ,, Delphi today has an investor-friendly profile, with strong, growing
gF OWZh Of 12 % or b etter. insurance businesses, a solid balance sheet and a conservative capital
structure. We believe this profile, combined with the track record of
consistent, sustainable earnings growth we are building, should help Delphi attract a greater following in the stock
market and lead to expansion of our earnings multiple. Delphi is committed to building value for our shareholders
by capitalizing on the extremely bright outlook for our insurance businesses and continuing to deliver growth as
promised.

Respectfully submitted,

Loty

Robert Rosenkranz
Chairman of the Board



Delphi at a Glance

DELPHI

Financial Group, Inc.
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¢ Group life insurance
¢ Long- and short-term

disability insurance employers

# Travel accident insurance
+ Dental insurance

¢ Asset accumulation
(Individual fixed annuities)

¢ Excess workers’ compensation
insurance for self-insured services

¢ Absence management

¢ Integrated Employee
Benefits program

Through our three top-tier subsidiaries, Delphi is a leader in managing all aspects of employee

absence to help our clients’ employees get well and back to productive work. The company’s insurance

subsidiaries are leading providers of group life, disability and excess workers’ compensation coverage to

small and mid-sized employers. Our unique Integrated Employee Benefits program, targeted at larger

employers, combines disability coverage from Reliance Standard and excess workers’ compensation

coverage from Safety National with Matrix’s productivity-enhancing absence management services.

Delphi is a pioneer in providing clients nationwide with all of these capabilities on a fully integrated basis.

2002 Group Employee Benefits Premiums = $608.5 million

Excess Workers’

Group Life Compensation
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2002 Group Employee Benefits Operating Income = $122.7 million*
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* Excludes realized investment gains and losses, interest and taxes




Executive Roundtable

In this section of our annual report, members of Delphi'’s senior management team respond to a series of questions
submitted by five Wall Street analysts who write research on Delphi. The questions cover a wide range of issues of
importance to the analysts and their clients. The analysts are E. Stewart Johnson of Lehman Brothers, Jukka
Lipponen of Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Elizabeth Malone of Advest, Jorge K. Ramirez of Putnam Lovell NBF
Securities and Elizabeth A. Werner of Sandler O’Neill & Partners, L.P

How does Delphi differentiate itself and compete against larger companies in its employee benefits

markets?

Bob Rosenkranz: Delphi is large enough to be a leading factor in our markets, but small enough for senior
management to maintain hands on focus on our key niche businesses. Safety National is the market leader in excess
workers’ compensation, as is Matrix in absence management services. Reliance Standard is among the top half
dozen providers in its target markets. In combination, we are able to offer a unique Integrated Employee Benefits
program, which provides productivity gains, as well as insurance coverage, to large employers. All three of our
subsidiaries share an important competitive advantage, which is the excellent
relationship we have with the insurance brokers and independent agents who sell
our products to employers. These relationships have been formed over a long
period of time and reflect the reputation we have for providing added value in the
sales process, maintaining consistent pricing and delivering excellent customer
service.

The current economic environment is presenting many challenges
| for insurance companies, including slow employment growth. How
is Delphi dealing with these challenges?

Bob Rosenkranz: In terms of profitability, Delphi's business is well hedged
against economic cycles. Safety National’s excess workers’ compensation
business responds to changes in primary workers’ compensation rates; that cycle
is highly favorable, and this product is our largest profit contributor. Reliance
Standard's group life business, our second largest profit source, is not
@ cconomically sensitive. Long term disability, which accounts for less than 25%

Robert Rosenkranz of operating profits, has shown somewhat lower profit margins in this
Chairman of the Board, President

and Chief Executive Officer environment. But our travel accident business is a hedge: its margins tend to
Delphi Financial Group. nc. expand in a weak economy as business travel is cut back.

Regarding the top line, we have overcome slow employment growth by concentrating on small and mid-sized clients,
which have continued to grow; by increasing the size of our sales force and managing it more intensely; and by
focusing on excess workers’ compensation, where the market is growing rapidly as employers switch to self
insurance. Our quote activity and number of new cases won continued to grow nicely in 2002.

Sometimes people confuse the excess workers' compensation market with the primary workers’
compensation market, which are in important ways very different businesses. What are the key
distinctions between the two markets and how does this impact financial performance?

Harry Ilg: The excess workers’ compensation insurance that Safety National provides is essentially a reinsurance
product for companies that choose to self-insure their workers’ compensation risk. Since it is considered similar to
reinsurance, we generally do not file rating plan revisions or report claims information on a policy-by-policy basis.



This is an important barrier to entry for this business, because there is no publicly available data that a new entrant
could use in trying to underwrite the business. Safety National is a market leader with a proprietary database and
over 60 years of experience in underwriting this business, which gives us the ability to exercise pricing power.
Primary workers’ compensation is a highly regulated business with relatively low barriers to entry and greater
competition. Another major difference between primary and
excess workers’ compensation is that claims payments for excess
coverage do not start for a long period of time and are quite
predictable. Primary workers’ compensation insurers start paying
from the first dollar of each claim, while in excess workers” "
compensation the self-insured client typically pays the first S0
$370,000 of the claim, however long that might take. This means 5%
that Safety National’s payments usually don’t begin for 15 years.  $
So Safety National can earn investment income on the premium g
dollars it collects for far longer than the typical insurance company.
At the same time, our payments are predictable because they h | £ ; |
primarily consist of wage replacement, very similar to a long-term R R R A
disability payment, along with some maintenance medical costs.

Positive Market Cycle in Excess Workers' Cormp

Safety National's Excess Workers' Comp Premiums

How long do you see the hard market in excess workers’ compensation continuing?

Harry Ilg: We expect the hard market to continue for some time because of ongoing price increases in the primary
workers’ compensation market. In the late 1990s, companies in the primary market were severely under-pricing their
coverage, and Safety National’s premiums fell sharply as employers left the self-insured market to take advantage of
rates that were often priced well below loss costs. Rates in the primary market have been rising sharply since 2000,
but we believe that in certain jurisdictions they need quite a few more years of double digit increases to restore that
sector to financial health. I’ve been with the company for 25 years and have seen several market cycles. Other than
1986, this has been the most dramatic market turn I’ve ever seen. Our excess workers’ compensation premiums in
2002 were $104.2 million, more than double the $47.9 million in 1999. Based on the pricing trends in the primary
market, I expect our growth to continue. For example, several companies in the pr1mary market have announced
plans to raise rates in 2003 by an average of 20-30%. As these price increases in
the primary market continue, employers with good safety records will enter the
self-insured market, which means they’ll also need to purchase our excess
coverage.

Given the tighter employee benefit budgets at most corporations, how
does Delphi’s sales force address an increasingly likely situation
where dollars that could purchase disability products are steered
towards paying for more expensive medical insurance?

Larry Daurelle: In our small case niche at Reliance Standard, we have not seen
employers shift money away from disability coverage, but we have experienced
some delays in purchases while employers studied how to cope with rising
medical insurance costs. The approach we’ve taken is to work closely with our
insurance brokers and our customers to customize the design of their employee
benefit plans, so our customers can deliver the most competitive benefits to their
employees while staying within their budgets. One of Reliance Standard’s

competitive advantages is the ability of our sales force to provide this value-added Lawrence E. Daurelle
. . . . President and Chief Executive Officer
advice on plan design to our brokers. Reliance Standard also benefits from our Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company




focus on an under-penetrated segment of the group employee benefits market, which consists of small companies
that have never before offered group disability or group life coverage. We get approximately 20% of our new
production from these so-called ‘virgin accounts,” which are much less competitive and price sensitive.

How have lower interest rates affected Delphi’s investment performance and insurance businesses?

Bob Smith: Despite lower interest rates, which have affected the entire industry, we were able to hit our targets for
investment income in 2002 due to growth in our invested assets and strong total returns for our portfolio, which
exceeded the return on the benchmark Lehman Aggregate Index for investment grade bonds by more than 70 basis
points. In 2003, we expect our portfolio yield to increase as we shift our short-term investments, which rose to higher
than expected levels in 2002, into longer-term investments with higher yields. Part of this process involves hiring
additional outside managers, as we continue to have approximately 40% of our investment portfolio managed
externally. In our insurance businesses, lower interest rates have put some pressure on margins in products where
pricing is partially based on the discount rate for reserves. We raised group disability prices at the beginning of 2003
to adjust for lower discount rates, and will continue to raise prices as needed to maintain our target returns. Our
excess workers’ compensation product has not been affected because of the strong price increases we’ve achieved in
the current hard market cycle.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, Delphi took a charge for reserve
strengthening due to a cluster of seven large claims in Safety
National’s excess workers’ compensation product line. In 2002,
the incidence of large claims returned to historical levels. How
comfortable is management that the cluster of seven large claims in
2001 was an aberration, and are you confident that reserves at Safety
National are adequate?

Harry Ilg: We are very comfortable that the seven large claims, which we define
as claims over $2 million, were an aberration. We experienced just one large
claim in 2002, which is in line with our historical pattern of one or two large
losses per year. In addition, we performed an extensive analysis of the large losses
in 2001 and did not see any pattern or trend. We are comfortable with our excess
workers’ compensation reserves at Safety National because we've been writing
this business for over 60 years with a high renewal ratio, so we know our clients
very well. Safety National has always maintained a disciplined approach to
underwriting and pricing through various market cycles. For example, in the late
1990s we sharply curtailed our writings as clients left the self-insured market to

Harold F. Ilg
Chairman of the Board
Safety National Casualty Corp. take advantage of extremely low rates in the primary workers’ compensation market.

Can you describe Delphi's investment philosophy, including how you manage credit exposure
given higher levels of credit defaults in 2002?

Bob Smith: Two measures of investment performance are relevant. Our investment income has not been impacted
by increased credit defaults and came in right on target. We don't rely heavily on high yield bonds - indeed this
category is now only 6% of assets, down from approximately 8% at the beginning of 2002.

The second measure is total investment returns, including all changes in value whether realized or not. By this
measure, we had an excellent year, with total returns some 70 basis points better than the Lehman Aggregate Index.
We think this is remarkably good for a portfolio with a AA average credit rating. Credit defaults, as well as credit
deterioration, are reflected as part of total returns. They also are reported as realized capital losses when we decide
that bonds have experienced an other than temporary impairment in value. We've been conservative in making this



judgment, and have recorded some $43 million in pre-tax writedowns in Investment Portfolio

2002, but these writedowns have not impacted our investment income December 31, 2002 = $2.8 billion
since we continue to hold the majority of these bonds and they continue
to pay interest as expected. Corpoates & Other Fixed
Maturity Securities
. L3 - . . . 3 . Y
Disability insurance claims are widely viewed as MuicpalBonts . 1%

. 0, . . 15% )
economically sensitive. Has Reliance Standard experienced a Equiy Secries
statistically significant increase in either claims incidence or sy & O I
duration in the current economic downturn? Government Guaranteed Short-Term
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Larry Daurelle: In previous economic downturns, you could definitely 10% 5502‘;/21“
conclude that there was an adverse impact on disability claims. In the

current downturn, we have not experienced a meaningful impact on claims incidence and duration, although margins
have been pressured by a competitive pricing environment and lower interest rates. Along with the rest of the
industry, our claims incidence has been helped by tightening contract terms to avoid questionable claims from
employees fearful of layoffs. Reliance Standard has taken action to maintain our target returns by raising group
disability prices and continuing our disciplined approach to underwriting this business.

It is a mistake to view us as a disability company. For many years we have made a concentrated effort to focus on
sales of group life insurance. This product has been, and should continue to be, a steady contributor to profits
regardless of economic cycles. It contributed more to our bottom line than disability in 2002 and we expect it to
contribute substantially more in 2003.

Through your Matrix subsidiary, Delphi was one of the first companies to offer employers the
ability to integrate the coverage and administration of several different employee benefits
products. Now that many other companies offer similar services, how does Matrix continue to
differentiate itself from competitors?

Larry Daurelle: Delphi remains unique because we are able to fully integrate our disability and workers’
compensation coverage through one point of contact for our client, which is Matrix. When we sign up a client and
Matrix is administering the program, it does not matter whether an employee
absence is due to an injury on the job, an injury away from the job, or for another
reason such as sick leave or Family Medical and Leave Act. In each case, Matrix
investigates the absence and handles any resulting claim with its proactive return-
to-work approach focused on minimizing the days lost to employee absence.
Most other companies that offer some kind of integrated service are disability
companies that have to partner with a workers’ compensation company, so the
client ends up having to deal with two companies and two different claims
departments.

While overall demand for fixed annuities is accelerating, has the
low interest rate environment and increased competition put
pressure on spreads in Delphi’s annuity business?

Bob Smith: Delphi manages our fixed annuity business in an opportunistic way
to meet target spreads, and in the current interest rate environment we are
continuing to be disciplined and focused on maintaining profitability. We have
target spreads of 150-250 basis points, which are well above average for the Robert M. Smith, Jr.

Executive Vice President

industry, and in 2002 our spreads were at the low end of this range. There are Delphi Financial Group, Inc.
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several ways we manage this business to hit our target spreads. The majority of the fixed annuities we sell are one-
year single premium annuities in which we can adjust the crediting rate on an annual basis to maintain our spread.
For new sales, we can adjust rates on a weekly basis as needed through the network of independent wholesalers who
sell our annuities to individuals, primarily retirees. Our fixed annuity sales in 2002 increased 50% over the prior year
to $135 million, which was higher than we expected due in part to market factors including difficult stock market
conditions and the pullback of some other fixed annuity providers from our wholesale distribution chain. Looking
ahead, we do not anticipate sales growth in this business in 2003 as the outlook for interest rates remains uncertain
and we will continue to maintain our discipline.

Does Delphi see any opportunity for acquisitions, either to add new products or enter new
markets?

Bob Rosenkranz: Our current focus is not on acquisitions, but on making sure we take full advantage of the
tremendous growth opportunities in our existing products and markets. We currently offer the entire range of
employee benefits insurance products an employer requires, with the exception of medical insurance, which we do
not view as an attractive business. So we do not need to add any major products to our lineup. We currently cover
all of the major markets in the U.S. through our network of 24 regional sales offices, and our strategy is to grow by
adding more sales reps to existing offices and opening additional offices in smaller markets where we see growth
opportunities.

o Given the strong growth you’ve achieved in new production at both
Debt to Total Cap1tahzat1on Reliance Standard and Safety National, and the future growth you
anticipate, do you think you’ll need to raise more capital to support
the growth in the business and to maintain your ratings?

o

30%

20% Bob Smith: We do not anticipate needing to raise additional capital for the
insurance businesses for three main reasons. First, both Reliance Standard and
Safety National have adequate capital to support our current business and
maintain our current ratings, which are more than sufficient for our product mix
and distribution channels. Second, we are generating strong cash flow from our
insurance operations to support future growth. Third, we had excess capital of
approximately $40 million at the holding company level at the end of 2002 and
unutilized borrowings on our new $150 million revolving credit facility. With our debt to capital ratio at 14% at the

end of 2002, Delphi has tremendous financial flexibility to support the future growth of our business.

10%
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How have the rating agencies affected your operating or capital management decision-making?

Bob Rosenkranz: The rating agencies have become the de facto regulators of our industry, and management must
be proactive in addressing their concerns. Over the past several years, we have deleveraged our capital structure,
reduced the percentage of mortgage-backed securities in our portfolio, and sharply lowered our investments in
unconventional strategies. These changes reduce out rating agency risk and make our earnings more predictable.
We clearly merit higher ratings than we have: with 14 times interest coverage, 14 percent debt to capital, and strong
top and bottom line trends, our statistical profile looks like those of companies rated at least a few notches above
ours. While our insurance company ratings are no impediment to the growth of our business, the split rating of our
holding company is a real limitation on our access to the long-term debt markets. In consequence, we have relied
on the bank market, which appreciates our credit quality. And we are pushing hard for the upgrades we deserve.
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This document contains certain forward-looking statements as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, some of
which may be identified by the use of terms such as “expects,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “judgment” or other
similar expressions. These statements are subject to various uncertainties and contingencies, which could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expressed in such statements. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Forward-Looking Statements and Cautionary Statements Regarding

Certain Factors That May Affect Future Results.”

PART 1
Item 1. Business

Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (the “Company,” which term includes the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries unless
the context indicates otherwise), organized as a Delaware corporation in 1987, is a holding company whose subsidiaries
provide integrated employee benefit services. The Company manages all aspects of employee absence to enhance the
productivity of its clients and provides the related insurance coverages: long-term and short-term disability, excess and
primary workers’ compensation, group life and travel accident. The Company’s asset accumulation business emphasizes
fixed annuity products. The Company offers its products and services in all fifty states and the District of Columbia. The
Company’s two reportable segments are group employee benefit products and asset accumulation products. See Notes A
and R to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K for additional information regarding the
Company’s segments.

The Company makes available free of charge on its website at www.delphifin.com its annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to these reports as soon as reasonably
possible, after such material has been filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Operating Strategy

The Company’s operating strategy is to offer financial products and services which have the potential for significant
growth, which require specialized expertise to meet the individual needs of its customers and which provide the Company
the opportunity to achieve superior operating eammings growth and returns on its shareholders’ capital.

The Company has concentrated its efforts within certain niche insurance markets, primarily group employee benefits for
small to mid-sized employers, where nearly all of the employment growth in the American economy has occurred in recent
years. The Company also markets its group employee benefit products and services to large employers, emphasizing
unique programs that integrate both employee benefit insurance coverages and absence management services. The
Company also operates an asset accumulation business that focuses primarily on offering fixed annuities to individuals
planning for retirement.

The Company’s primary operating subsidiaries are as follows:

Reliance - Standard Life Insurance Company (“RSLIC”), founded in 1907 and having administrative offices in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and its subsidiary, First Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company (“FRSLIC”), underwrite a
diverse portfolio of life, disability and accident insurance products targeted principally to the employee benefits market.
RSLIC also markets asset accumulation products, primarily fixed annuities, to individuals and groups. The Company,
through Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company of Texas (“RSLIC-Texas”), acquired RSLIC and FRSLIC in
November 1987.

Safety National Casualty Corporation (“SNCC”) focuses primarily on providing excess workers’ compensation insurance
to the self-insured market. Founded in 1942 and located in St. Louis, Missouri, SNCC is one of the oldest continuous
writers of excess workers’ compensation insurance in the United States. The Company, through SIG Holdings, Inc.
(“SIG™), acquired SNCC in March 1996. In 200}, SNCC formed an insurance subsidiary, Safety First Insurance
Company, which also focuses on selling excess workers’ compensation products to the self-insured market.

Matrix Absence Management, Inc. (“Matrix”) provides integrated disability and absence management services to the

employee benefits market across the United States. Headquartered in San Jose, California, Matrix was acquired by the
Company in June 1998. See “Other Transactions” and Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Group Employee Benefit Products

The Company is a leading provider of group life, disability and excess workers’ compensation insurance products to small
and mid-sized employers, with more than 20,000 policies in force. The Company also offers travel accident, voluntary
accidental death and dismemberment and group dental insurance. The Company markets its group products to employer-
employee groups and associations in a variety of industries. The Company insures groups ranging from 2 to more than
5,000 individuals, although the typical size of an insured group ranges from 10 to 500 individuals. The Company markets
unbundled employee benefit products and absence management services as well as an Integrated Employee Benefit
program that combines both employee benefit insurance coverages and absence management services. The Integrated
Employee Benefit program, which the Company believes helps to differentiate itself from competitors by offering clients
improved productivity from reduced employee absence, has enhanced the Company’s ability to market its group employee
benefit products to large employers. In underwriting its group employee benefit products, the Company attempts to avoid
concentrations of business in any industry segment or geographic area.

The Company’s group employee benefit products are sold to employer groups primarily through independent brokers and
agents. The Company’s products are marketed to brokers and agents by 100 sales representatives and managers, who are
located in 24 sales offices nationwide. The Company’s three administrative offices and 24 sales offices also service
existing business. The Company believes that its national sales network minimizes expenses traditionally associated with
large insurance company captive marketing systems.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated selected financial data concerning the Company’s group employee

benefit products:
Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

(dollars in thousands)

Insurance premiums:

Core Products:
053 =TSO UV O RSSO $ 210,030 $ 170,772 $ 156,594
Disability INCOME ......cocveviiireecece et seesr e ene s rese e rens 195,052 162,602 145,031
Excess workers’ COMPENSAtioN .......ccevevevremreemmvmreesmeereerenssesennsions 104,170 73,404 56,015
Travel accident, dental and Other...........ccovvviiiieeieevironvonniereennes 49,922 45,380 42,765
559.174 452,158 400,405
Non-Core Products:
Loss portfolio transfers ........cocvveeriersniininnn s s s 26,830 4,340 13,939
Reinsurance faCilities .......coovvoreiiirii it eenc e sare s 771 7,872 20,885
L0 131 1) OO ORT ettt 21,724 23.624 12,461
. 49.325 35,836 47,285
Total INSUrance PremMIlINS .........cvevevevererererererererersesssenresessesesesnee $ 608499 § 487994 § 447,690
Sales (new annualized gross premiums):
Core Products:
LA vttt et er e a e s re e sanesae e eres $ 70900 § 55,606 $§ 38,241
Disability iNCOME ........cocceiirrirriiierieieceeserenrre s sesse s svesresseanes 75,996 60,628 56,251
Excess workers’ COmpPensation .........ccceevereveseneeenenseernsrensecnensresnins 30,796 18,110 19,835
Travel accident, dental and other.........occcveveeieeveccvieiieecceceeers 23,454 24,774 26.694
201,146 159,118 141.021
Non-Core Products:;
Loss portfolio transfers ........ccoovviiiviinieiniecnne et 26,830 4,340 14,647
OMNET .ottt et b e sre s a et sa b e sesbeste e s et beestsaesnasenes 13,171 28.765 51,885
40,001 33.105 66,532
TOtA] SALES....cuvieeeerectececeeeret e sttt be et erbeeresenne e - § 241,147 $§ 192223 $ 207,553




The table below shows the loss and expense ratios as a percent of premium income for the Company’s group employee
benefit products for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
LLOSS TBLO +v11veeeeee e eeee e eeeeees e s esees s eeesesensemeeseresasees e resenenseseesseeree 69.2% 75.0% Y 66.0%
EXPENSE TALIO. .....eoveuerierireiecere oo et ses e 254 27.0 26.3
COMBINEA TALO «.vvv e ereeeeeeeeeeeseereeeseseresssstesssmesessesransessens 94.6% 102.0%" 92.3%

(1) The loss ratio and combined ratic for 2001 excluding the reserve strengthening (as discussed in the following paragraph) are 65.9% and
92.9%, respectively.

The profitability of group employee benefit products is affected by, among other things, differences between actual and
projected claims experience, the retention of existing customers and the ability to attract new customers, change premium
rates and contract terms and control administrative expenses. The reserve strengthening charge in 2001 was primarily
related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business. Prior to
2001, SNCC'’s historical average for losses exceeding $2.0 million in its excess workers’ compensation products was one
to two per year. In 2001, however, the Company experienced seven such losses, including two losses as a result of the
terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. The case reserves for these seven losses totaled $15.3 million, including $6.3
million attributable to the World Trade Center attacks. Though the Company believed that the high number of large
losses was unlikely to recur, the Company added $24.0 million to its reserve for incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) losses
since its method of estimating IBNR reserves is based on past experience. The Company experienced only one Joss in
excess of $2.0 million in 2002. The Company also added $5.0 million to its long-term disability IBNR reserves in 2001
for potential mental and nervous disabilities related to the World Trade Center attacks. The reserve strengthening charge
reduced 2001 net income by $28.8 million, or $1.40 per share. The loss ratio for 2002 reflects the higher levels of
reserves which have been established for the Company’s excess workers’ compensation products due to the high number
of large losses in 2001. This loss ratio also reflects the large amount of new business production from the Company’s
other group employee benefit products, for which initial reserves have been set at higher levels until actual loss experience
emerges. The loss and expense ratios are also affected by the level of premium from loss portfolio transfers (“LPTs”) in
each year. 'LPTs carry a higher loss ratio and a significantly lower expense ratio as compared to the Company’s other
group employee benefit products.

The Company’s group life insurance products provide for the payment of a stated amount upon the death of a member of
the insured group. Policy terms are generally one year. Accidental death and dismemberment insurance, which provides
for the payment of a stated amount upon the accidental death or dismemberment of a member of the insured group, is
frequently sold in conjunction with group life policies and is included in premiums charged for group life insurance. The
Company reinsures risks in excess of $150,000 per individual and type of coverage for employer-provided group life
insurance policies and $100,000 per individual for voluntary group term life policies. See “Reinsurance.”

Group disability products offered by the Company, principally long-term disability insurance, generally provide a
specified level of periodic benefits for a specified period to persons who, because of sickness or injury, are unable to
work. The Company’s group long-term disability coverages are spread across many industries. Long-term disability
benefits generally are paid monthly and typically are limited for any one employee to two-thirds of the employee’s earned
income up to a specified maximum benefit. Long-term disability benefits are usually offset by income the claimant
receives from other sources, primarily Social Security disability benefits. The Company actively manages its disability
claims, working with claimants to help them return to work as quickly as possible. When claimants’ disabilities prevent
them from returning to their original occupations, the Company, in appropriate cases, may provide assistance in
developing new productive skills for an alternative career. Premiums are generally determined annually for disabitity
insurance and are based upon expected morbidity and the insured group’s emerging experience, as well as assumptions
regarding operating expenses and future interest rates. The Company reinsures risks in excess of $2,500 in long-term
disability benefits per individual per month. See “Reinsurance.”

Business travel accident as well as voluntary accidental death and dismemberment insurance policies pay a stated amount
based on a predetermined schedule in the event of the accidéntal death or dismemberment of a member of the insured
group. The Company reinsures risks in excess of $150,000 per individual and type of coverage. Group dental insurance
provides coverage for preventive, restorative and specialized dentistry up to a stated maximum benefit per individual per
year. The Company has ceded 50% of its risk under dental policies with effective dates prior to 2003 under a reinsurance
arrangement and will cede 100% of its risk under dental policies with effective dates in 2003 under such arrangement.
See “Reinsurance.”
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Excess workers’ compensation insurance products provide coverage to employers and groups who self-insure their
workers’ compensation risks. The coverage applies to losses in excess of the applicable self-insured retentions (“SIRs” or
deductibles) of employers and groups, whose workers’ compensation claims are generally handled by third-party
administrators (“TPAs”). These products are principally targeted to mid-sized companies and association groups,
particularly small municipalities, hospitals and schools. These employers and groups are believed to be less prone to
catastrophic workers’ compensation exposures and less price sensitive than larger account business. Because excess
workers’ compensation claim payments do not begin until after the self-insured’s total loss payments equal the SIR, the
period from when the claim is incurred to the time claim payments begin averages 15 years. At that point, the payments
are primarily for wage replacement, similar to the benefit provided under long-term disability coverage, and any medical
payments tend to be stable and predictable. This family of products also includes large deductible workers’ compensation
insurance, which provides coverage similar to excess workers’ compensation insurance, and a complementary product,
workers’ compensation self-insurance bonds.

The pricing environment and demand for excess workers’ compensation insurance has improved since 2000 due to higher
primary workers’ compensation rates and disruption in the excess workers’ compensation marketplace due to difficulties
experienced by some competitors, particularly during 2000. These trends accelerated during the second half of 2001 as
sharply higher primary workers’ compensation rates and rising reinsurance costs due to the terrorist attacks on the World
Trade Center increased the demand for alternatives to primary workers’ compensation. As a result, the demand for excess
workers’ compensation products and the rates for such products continued to increase. SNCC was able to obtain
significant price increases in connection with its renewals of insurance coverage during 2002, with increases exceeding
25% on a substantial portion of such renewals. SNCC has also been obtaining significant improvements in contract terms,
in particular higher SIR levels, in these renewals. SNCC has continued to obtain price increases in the range of 10% to
15% on its 2003 renewals. New business production for excess workers’ compensation products increased 70% in 2002
and the retention of existing customers was consistent with SNCC’s goals. The Company reinsures excess workers’
compensation risks between $3.0 million and $50.0 miilion per policy per occurrence. See “Reinsurance.”

As a result of the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center, a number of the Company's reinsurers have excluded
coverage for losses resulting from terrorism. In November 2002, the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (the
“Terrorism Act”) was enacted. The Terrorism Act establishes a program under which the federal government will share
with the insurance industry the risk of loss from covered acts of international terrorism. The program terminates on
December 31, 2005, and the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury (the “Secretary™) has the option to extend it through December
31, 2006. The Terrorism Act applies to all direct lines of property and casualty insurance written by SNCC, including
excess workers’ compensation. The federal government would pay 90% of each covered loss and the insurer would pay
the remaining 10%. Each insurer has a separate deductible before federal assistance becomes available in the event of an
act of terrorism. The deductible is based on a percentage of the insurer’s direct earned premiums from the previous
calendar year. The deductible is 7%, 10% and 15% of direct earned premiums in 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The
maximum after-tax loss to the Company for 2003 within the Terrorism Act deductible from property and casualty products
is approximately 1% of the Company's shareholders' equity as of December 31, 2002. Any payments made by the
government under the Terrorism Act would be subject to recoupment via surcharges to policyholders when future
premiums are billed.

The Terrorism Act also directs the Secretary to study the availability of terrorism reinsurance for group life insurers as
well as the availability of group life insurance in the marketplace. The Secretary is empowered to include group life
insurance in the Terrorism Act program if he finds that the availability of group life insurance in the marketplace has or is
likely to be affected by the lack of terrorism reinsurance. The Secretary has the discretion to include group life insurance
within the property and casualty program described above, or to create a separate and distinct program for group life
insurers with separate limits and deductibles. There can be no assurance that the Secretary will in the future inciude group
life insurance in the Terrorism Act program.

Non-core group employee benefit products include products that have been discontinued, such as reinsurance facilities
and excess casualty insurance, newer products which have not demonstrated their financial potential, products which are
not expected to comprise a significant percentage of earned premiums and products for which sales are episodic in nature,
such as LPTs. Pursuant to an LPT, the Company, in exchange for a specified one-time payment, assumes responsibility
for an existing block of disability or self-insured workers’ compensation claims. These products are typically marketed to
the same types of clients who have historically purchased the Company’s disability and excess workers’ compensation
products. Non-core group employee benefit products also include primary workers’ compensation for which the Company
primarily receives fee income since a significant portion of the risk is reinsured. In addition, non-core group employee
‘benefit products include bail bond insurance and workers’ compensation and property reinsurance.

4-




Asset Accumulation Products

The Company’s asset accumulation products consist of fixed annuities, primarily single premium deferred annuities
(“SPDAs”) and flexible premium annuities (“FPAs”). An SPDA provides for a single payment by an annuity holder to the
Company and the crediting of interest by the Company on the annuity contract at the applicable crediting rate. An FPA
provides for periodic payments by an annuity holder to the Company, the timing and amount of which are at the discretion
of the annuity holder, and the crediting of interest by the Company on the annuity contract at the applicable crediting rate.
Interest credited on SPDAs and FPAs is not paid currently to the annuity holder but instead accumulates and is added to
the annuity contract’s account value. This accumulation is tax deferred. The crediting rate may be increased or decreased
by the Company subject to specified guaranteed minimum crediting rates, which currently range from 3.0% to 5.5%. For
most of the Company’s annuity products, the crediting rate may be reset by the Company annually, typically on the policy
anniversary. The Company’s annuity products also include multi-year interest guarantee products, in which the crediting
rate is fixed at a stated rate for a specified period of years, such periods ranging from three to eight years. At December
31, 2002, the weighted average crediting rate on the Company’s annuity products as a group was 5.45%. Withdrawals
may be made by the annuity holder at any time, but some withdrawals may result in the assessment of surrender charges,
taxes, and/or tax penalties on the withdrawn amount. In addition, the accumulated value of the annuity may be increased
or decreased under a market value adjustment (“MVA™) provision if it is surrendered during the surrender charge period.
The Company does not market variable annuity products.

These fixed annuity products are sold predominantly to individuals through networks of independent agents. In 2002, the
Company’s SPDA products accounted for $119.3 million of asset accumulation product deposits, of which $98.0 million
was attributable to the MVA annuity product and $13.0 million was attributable to FPA products with the MVA feature.
Two networks of independent agents accounted for approximately 42% of the deposits from these SPDA and FPA
products during 2002, with no other network of independent agents accounting for more than 10% of these deposits. The
Company believes that it has a good relationship with these networks.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated selected financial data concerning the Company’s asset
accumulation products:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)
Asset accumulation product deposits (Sales) .......ovvvvviriiiinicceneeene, $ 135046 $ 90,159 § 160,523
Funds under management (at period end) ........ccccorviececnmmicnncrerescrenens 878,820 786,214 751,311

At December 31, 2002, funds under management consisted of $803.0 million of SPDA liabilities and $75.8 million of
FPA liabilities. Of these liabilities, $587.2 million were subject to surrender charges averaging 6.75% at December 31,
2002. Annuity liabilities not subject to surrender charges have been in force, on average, for 20 years.

The Company prices its annuity products based on assumptions concerning prevailing and expected interest rates and
other factors to achieve a positive spread between its expected return on investments and the crediting rate. The Company
achieves this spread by active portfolio management focusing on matching invested assets and related liabilities to
minimize the exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates and by the adjustment of the crediting rate on its annuity
products. In response to changes in interest rates, the Company increases or decreases the crediting rates on its annuity
products.

In tight of the annuity holder’s ability to withdraw funds and the volatility of market interest rates, it is difficult to predict
the timing of the Company’s payment obligations under its SPDAs and FPAs. Consequently, the Company maintains a
portfolio of investments which are readily marketable and expected to be sufficient to satisfy liquidity requirements. See
“Investments.”

Other Products and Services

The Company provides integrated disability and absence management services on a nationwide basis through Matrix,
which was acquired in June 1998. See “Other Transactions” and Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Company’s comprehensive disability and absence management services are designed to assist clients in identifying and
minimizing lost productivity and benefit payment costs resulting from employee absence due to illness, injury or personal
leave. The Company offers services including event reporting, leave of absence management, claims and case
management and return to work management. These services’ goal is to enhance employee productivity and provide more
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efficient benefit delivery and enhanced cost containment. The Company provides these services on an unbundled basis or
in a unique Integrated Employee Benefit program that combines these services with various group employee benefit
insurance coverages. The Company believes that these integrated disability and absence management services
complement the Company’s core group employee benefit products, enhancing the Company’s ability to market these core
products and providing the Company with a competitive advantage in the market for these products.

In 1991, the Company introduced a variable flexible premium universal life insurance policy under which the related
assets are segregated in a separate account not subject to claims of general creditors of the Company. Policyholders may
elect to deposit amounts in the account from time to time, subject to underwriting limits and a minimum initial deposit of
$1.0 million. Both the cash values and death benefits of these policies fluctuate according to the investment experience of
the assets in the separate account; accordingly, the investment risk with respect to these assets is borne by the
policyholders. The Company earns fee income from the separate account in the form of charges for management and
other administrative fees. The Company is not presently actively marketing this product. The Company reinsures risks in
excess of $200,000 per individual under indemnity reinsurance arrangements with various reinsurance companies. See
“Reinsurance.”

* Underwriting Procedures

Premiums charged on insurance products are based in part on assumptions about the incidence, severity and timing of
insurance claims. The Company has adopted and follows detailed underwriting procedures designed to assess and qualify
insurance risks before issuing its policies. To implement these procedures, the Company employs a professional
underwriting staff.

In underwriting group coverage, the Company focuses on the overall risk characteristics of the group to be insured and the
geographic concentration of its new and renewal business. A prospective group client is evaluated with particular
attention paid to the claims experience of the group with prior carriers, the occupations of the insureds, the nature of the
business of the client, the current economic outlook of the client in relation to others in its industry and of the industry as a
whole, the appropriateness of the benefits or SIR applied for and income from other sources during disability. The
Company’s products generally afford it the flexibility to adjust premiums charged annually to its policyholders in order to
reflect emerging mortality or morbidity experience.

Investments

The Company’s management of its investment portfolio is an important component of its profitability since a substantial
portion of its operating income is generated from the difference between the yield achieved on invested assets and, in the
case of asset accumnulation products, the interest credited on policyholder funds and, in the case of the Company’s other
products, the discount rate used to calculate the related reserves. The Company’s overall investment strategy to achieve
its objectives of safety and liquidity, while seeking the best available return, focuses on, among other things, matching of
the Company’s interest-sensitive assets and liabilities and seeking to minimize the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company liquidated a substantial majority of the investments of its investment
subsidiaries. The proceeds from these sales were used in 2001 to repay $150.0 million of outstanding borrowings under
its revolving credit facilities, to repurchase $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities of its subsidiary,
Delphi Funding L.L.C. (the “Capital Securities”), and to repurchase $8.0 million principal amount of its 8% Senior Notes
due October 2003 (the “Senior Notes”). For information regarding the composition and diversification of the Company’s
investment portfolio and asset/liability management, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Notes A, C and J to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the Company’s pretax investment results:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)
Average invested assets .. ... $ 2,556,076 $ 2,312,975 § 2,508,272
Net investment income @...........coomvrroriererrssrrcseeancerersinn 162,036 157,509 184,576
Tax equivalent weighted average annual yield ®...................... 6.6% 7.0% 7.6%




(1) Average invested assets are computed by dividing the total of invested assets as reported on the balance sheet at the beginning of each year plus
the individual quarter-end balances by five and deducting one-half of net investment income.

(2) Consists principally of interest and dividend income less investment expenses.

(3) The tax equivalent weighted average annual yield on the Company’s investment portfolio for each period is computed by dividing net
investment income, increased to reflect tax exempt interest income and similar tax savings, by average invested assets for the period. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results of Operations.”

Reinsurance

The Company participates in various reinsurance arrangements both as the ceding insurer and as the assuming insurer.
Arrangements in which the Company is the ceding insurer afford various levels of protection against excessive loss by
assisting the Company in diversifying its risks and by limiting its maximum loss on risks that exceed retention limits.
Under indemnity reinsurance transactions .in which the Company is the ceding insurer, the Company remains liable for
policy claims if the assuming company fails to meet its obligations. To limit this risk, the Company monitors the financial
position of its reinsurers, including, among other things, the companies’ financial ratings, and in certain cases receives
collateral security from the reinsurer. Also, certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set
up security arrangements for the Company’s benefit in the event of certain ratings downgrades. In addition, the U.S.
federal government provides reinsurance for insurers who issue certain property and casualty insurance coverages. See
“Business — Group Employee Benefit Products.”

The Company cedes portions of the risks relating to its group employee benefit and variable life insurance products under
indemnity reinsurance agreements with various unaffiliated reinsurers. The terms of these agreements, which are typical
for agreements of this type, provide, among other things, for the automatic acceptance by the reinsurer of ceded risks in
excess of the Company’s retention limits stated in the agreements. The Company pays reinsurance premiums to these
reinsurers which are, in general, based upon percentages of premiums received by the Company on the business reinsured
less, in certain cases, ceding commissions and experience refunds paid by the reinsurer to the Company. These
agreements are generally terminable as to new risks by either the Company or the reinsurer on appropriate notice;
however, termination does not affect risks ceded during the term of the agreement, which generally remain with the
reinsurer. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit Products” and Note Q to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 1998, an offering was completed whereby shareholders and optionholders of the Company received, at no cost,
rights to purchase shares of Delphi Intemnational Ltd. (“Delphi International™), a newly-formed, independent Bermuda
insurance holding company. During 1998, the Company entered into various reinsurance agreements with Oracle
Reinsurance Company Ltd. (“Oracle Re™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Delphi International. Pursuant to these
agreements, approximately $101.5 million of group employee benefit reserves ($35.0 million of long-term disability
insurance reserves and $66.5 million of net excess workers’ compensation and casualty insurance reserves) were ceded to
Oracle Re. The Company received collateral security from Oracle Re in an amount sufficient to support the ceded
reserves. During 2000 and 1999, Oracle Re and the Company effected the partial recaptures of approximately $4.6
million and $10.0 million, respectively, of the group long-term disability liabilities ceded to Oracle Re. In October 2001,
Oracle Re and the Company effected the commutation of their reinsurance agreements, pursuant to which Oracle Re paid
approximately $84.0 million to the Company (net of $11.5 million which had been held by the Company) related to the
reserves ceded to Oracle Re under such agreements. These transactions did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, liquidity or net income. In furtherance of the commutation of the reinsurance agreements,
the Company agreed to waive a portion of the amounts due to the Company under certain subordinated notes issued by
Delphi International. As a result of this waiver, the Company recognized a pre-tax loss of $7.5 million in 2001 for the
other than temporary decline in the value of these notes. In March 2002, Delphi International repaid the adjusted amounts
due under the subordinated notes and the Company did not realize any significant additional loss in connection with such
repayment.

The Company assumes workers’ compensation and property risks through reinsurance. In these arrangements, the
Company provides coverage for losses in excess of specified amounts, subject to specified maximums, Coverage for
losses as a result of terrorism is generally excluded from these reinsurance treaties. The attachment points for workers’
compensation reinsurance range from $1 million to $100 million. Aggregate exposures assumed under individual
workers’ compensation treaties generally range from $1 million to $2 million, with the highest net exposure pursuant to
any such treaty equal to $5 million. The Company underwrites workers’ compensation reinsurance assumed pursuant to
procedures similar to those utilized in connection with its excess workers’ compensation product. The majority of the
Company’s property reinsurance provides coverage in the event of a catastrophe, generally excluding losses resulting from
terrorism. The Company underwrites its property reinsurance to mitigate its risk by diversifying geographically and
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limiting its exposure on any one treaty. On property reinsurance, the Company’s risk attachment points range from $0.3
million to $30 billion. The Company’s aggregate exposure on any one property treaty generally ranges from $1 million to
$2 million. The highest net exposure on a single property treaty is $2 million. The probable maximum loss on property
reinsurance is estimated to be approximately $6.1 million, net of reinstatement premium and taxes, or less than 1% of
shareholders’ equity.

The Company had in the past participated as an assuming insurer in a number of reinsurance facilities. These reinsurance
facilities generally are administered by TPAs or managing underwriters who underwrite risks, coordinate premiums
charged and process claims. During 1999 and 2000, the Company terminated, on a prospective basis, its participations in
all of the reinsurance facilities in which the Company had participated. However, the terms of such facilities provide for
the continued assumption of risks by, and payments of premiums to, facility participants with respect to business written in
the periods during which they formerly participated in such facilities. Premium income from all reinsurance facilities was
$0.8 million, $7.9 million and $20.9 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, and incurred losses from these facilities
were $4.7 million, $10.6 million and $20.5 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The reinsurance facilities did
not constitute a significant part of the Company’s operations; therefore, the Company does not expect its withdrawals from
these facilities to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

Life, Annuity, Disability and Accident Reserves

The Company carries as liabilities actuarially determined reserves for its life, annuity, disability and accident policy and
contract obligations. These reserves, together with premiums to be received on policies in force and interest thereon at
certain assumed rates, are calculated and established at levels believed to be sufficient to satisfy policy and contract
obligations. The Company performs periodic studies to compare current experience for mortality, morbidity, interest and
lapse rates with the experience reflected in the reserve assumptions to determine future policy benefit reserves for these
products. Reserves for future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses are estimated based on individual loss
data, historical loss data and industry averages and indices and include amounts determined on the basis of individual and
actuarially determined estimates of future losses. Therefore, the ultimate liability could deviate from the amounts
currently reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Differences between actual and expected claims experience
are reflected currently in earnings for each period. The Company has not experienced significant adverse deviations from
its assumptions. In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company added $5.0 million to its long-term disability IBNR reserves
for potential mental and nervous disability claims related to the World Trade Center attacks.

The life, disability and accident reserves carried in the Consolidated Financial Statements are calculated based on
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and differ from those reported by the Company
for statutory financial statement purposes. These differences arise from the use of different mortality and morbidity tables
and interest assumptions, the introduction of lapse assumptions into the reserve calculation and the use of the net level
method on all insurance business. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Critical Accounting Policies” and Note A to the Consolidated Financial Statements for certain additional
information regarding reserve assumptions under GAAP.
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Excess Workers’ Compensation Insurance Reserves

The Company carries as liabilities actuarially determined reserves for anticipated claims and claim expenses for its excess
workers’ compensation insurance and other casualty insurance products. Reserves for claim expenses represent the
estimated probable costs of investigating those claims and, when necessary, defending lawsuits in connection with those
claims. Reserves for claims and claim expenses are estimated based on individual loss data, historical loss data and
industry averages and indices and include amounts determined on the basis of individual and actuarially determined
estimates of future losses. Therefore, the ultimate liability could deviate from the amounts currently reflected in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reserving practices under GAAP allow discounting of claim reserves related to excess workers’ compensation losses to
reflect the time value of money. Reserve discounting for these types of claims is common industry practice, and the
discount factors used are less than the annual tax-equivalent investment yield earned by the Company on its invested
assets. The discount factors are based on the expected duration and payment pattern of the claims at the time the claims
are settled and the risk-free rate of return for U.S. government securities with a comparable duration. Reserves for claim
expenses are not discounted.

The following table provides a reconciliation of beginning and ending unpaid claims and claim expenses for the periods
indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)

Unpaid claims and claim expenses, net of reinsurance,
beginning of Period ........cccvvvererrernerieeieeee e $ 413,950 $ 302,514 $ 307,156

Add provision for claims and claim expenses incurred, net
of reinsurance, occurring during:

CUITENt Yar V...t 82,197 73,782 41,716
Prior Years® ..., 15,869 13.896 (1,584)
Incurred claims and claim expenses, net of reinsurance,
during the current Year..........ccoovimiicinncccnerenseesnens 98.066 87,678 40,132
Deduct claims and claim expenses paid, net of reinsurance,
occurring during:
CUITENT YEAT....cveeieeeeiireerereserieseeereeetesie s ese e seae s enesanstasenansasnans 10,915 6,014 3,881
PHOE YEArs @) ...ooo.ooeoiooeeeseese et 61.954 (29.772) 40,893
Total PAId.......ccrrveiieieccirrnrrereen b sneeses 72.869 (23.758) 44,774
Unpaid claims and claim expenses, net of reinsurance, end of period ... 439,147 413,950 302,514
Reinsurance receivables, end of period...........cccominiiiicnnenniceinne. 95,709 92,828 144,541
Unpaid claims and claim expenses, gross of reinsurance,
end Of PETIOd.....cooveevrecccineirn e $ 534,856 § 506,778 $ 447,055

(1) The provision for claims and claim expenses incurred in 2001 includes a reserve strengthening charge of $39.3 million primarily related to an
unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business. Prior to 2001, SNCC’s historical average
for losses exceeding $2.0 million in its excess workers’ compensation products was one to two per year. In 2001, however, the Company
experienced seven such losses, including two losses as a result of the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. The case reserves for these
seven losses totaled $15.3 million, including $6.3 miilion attributable to the World Trade Center attacks. Though the Company believed that
the high number of large losses was unlikely to recur, the Company added $24.0 million to its reserve for IBNR losses since its method of
estimating IBNR reserves is based on past experience. The Company experienced one claim in excess of $2.0 million in 2002.

(2) In 2002, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect accretion of discounted reserves off$et by favorable claims
development. In 2001, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect the accretion of discounted reserves and
unfavorable ctaims development. In 2000, the claims and claim expenses incurred reflect favorable claims development offset by the
accretion of discounted reserves.

(3) In 2001, the payments of claims and claim expenses occurring in prior years reflect the Company’s receipt of $74.3 million related to the
commutation of the reinsurance agreements with Oracle Re. See “Business — Reinsurance.”



The effects of the discount to reflect the time value of money have been removed from the amounts set forth in the ioss
development table which follows in order to present the gross loss development, net of reinsurance. During 2002, 2001
and 2000, $17.2 million, $9.5 million and $9.0 million, respectively, of discount was amortized, and $34.6 million, $32.1
miilion and $23.2 million, respectively, was accrued. The loss development table below illustrates the development of
reserves from March 5, 1996 to December 31, 2002 and is net of reinsurance.

March 5, December 31,
1996V 1996 . 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
(dollars in thousands)

Reserve for unpaid
claims and claim
expenses, net of

reinsurance........... $520,370 $532,923 $541,280 $422,159 §$ 434,513 $444,061 $638,191 $ 680,835
Cumulative amount of

liability paid:

One year later..... 23,467 28,162 98,365 40,815 40,660  (29,990)® 61,954

Two years later... 50,713 125,020 127,481 74,571 4,0209 26,398

Three vears later. 140,943 152,842 156,119  33,429@ 54846
Four years later.. 167,811 179,705  111,253@® 78,981
Five years later... 193,363 133,228 @ 150,772
Six years later..... 153,504 @ 170,405
Seven years later 188,719
Liability reestimated as of:
One year later..... 507,375 513,402 523,430 410,875 424,187 442,624 636,125
Two years later... 487,830 500,964 511,602 404,559 420,420 442,807
Three years later. 476,854 488,432 503,906 401,475 417,869
Four years later .. 476,600 487,195 500,514 396,403
Five years later... 476,890 478,206 492,280

Six years later..... 470,283 468,142
Seven years later 460,670
Cumulative .
redundancy........... $ 59,700 $ 64,781 $ 49,000 § 25,756 $ 16,644 § 1254 § 2,066

(1) Amounts are as of or for the periods subsequent to March 5, 1996, the date the Company acquired its workers’ compensation business.

(2) The cumulative amount of lability paid through December 31, 2001 reflects the Company’s receipt of $74.3 million related to the
commutation of the reinsurance agreements with Oracle Re in 2001.

The “Reserve for unpaid claims and claim expenses, net of reinsurance” line in the table above shows the estimated reserve
for unpaid claims and claim expenses recorded at the end of each of the periods indicated. These net liabilities represent
the estimated amount of losses and expenses for claims arising in the current year and all prior years that are unpaid at the
end of each period. The “Cumulative amount of liability paid” lines of the table represent the cumulative amounts paid
with respect to the liability previously recorded as of the end of each succeeding period. The “Liability reestimated” lines
of the table show the reestimated amount relating to the previously recorded liability and is based upon experience as of the
end of each succeeding period. This estimate is either increased or decreased as additional information about the
frequency and severity of claims for each period becomes available and is reviewed. The Company periodically reviews
the estimated reserves for claims and claim expenses and any changes are reflected currently in earnings for each period.
The Company has not experienced significant adverse deviations from its assumptions, except for the unusually high
number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business in 2001. The “Cumulative redundancy”
line in the table represents the aggregate change in the net estimated claim reserve liabilities from the dates indicated
through December 31, 2002. ’
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The table below illustrates the effects of the discount to reflect the time value of money that was removed from the
amounts set forth in the loss development table above.

March 5, December 31,
1996 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
{(dollars in thousands)

Reserve for unpaid claims and
claim expenses before

discount:

Gross of reinsurance.......... $533,871 $549,653 $564,734 $586,984 $613,693 $650,765 $731,019 $776,544
Deduct reinsurance

recoverable...........ou..u.... 13,501 16,730 23454 164.825 179,180 206,704 _ 92,828 _95.709
Net of reinsurance.............. 520,370 532,923 541,280 422,159 434,513 444061 638,191 680,835

Deduct discount for time
value of money ..........cooeene.e, 164,000 _168.827 176,683 _113.507 _127.357 _141,547 224241 241.688

Unpaid claims and claim
expenses as reported
on balance sheets, net

of discount and net of
TEINSUTANCE....cvvierirrereeerenn 356.370 364,096 364,597 308652 307,156 302,514 _413.950 439,147

Reestimated unpaid claims
and claim expenses, net of
discount, as of December

31, 2002:
Gross of reinsurance.......... 411,713 408,938 421,008 440,110 470,924 501,926 533,523
Deduct reinsurance
recoverable................. 35426 __ 36,170 42,523 112,326 _138,252 167,095 103,704
Net of reinsurance.............. 376287 372,768 378.485 327.784 332,672 334.831 429819
Discounted cumulative
(deficiency)....ceecrvcrereneennne (19,917) (8,672) (13,888) (19,132) (25,516) (32,317) (15,869)
Add accretion of discount ........ 79.617 _ 73.453 62,888 44888 42.160 _ 33.571 17.935

Cumulative redundancy

before discount...................... $59.700 $64,781 $49.000 $25756 $16644 $ 1254 $ 2066

(1) Amounts are as of or for the periods subsequent to March 5, 1996, the date the Company acquired its workers’ compensation business.

The excess workers’ compensation insurance reserves carried in the Consolidated Financial Statements are calculated in
accordance with GAAP and, net of reinsurance, are approximately $100.1 million less than those reported by the
Company for statutory financial statement purposes at December 31, 2002. This difference is primarily due to the use of
different discount factors as between GAAP and statutory accounting principles and differences-in the bases against which
such discount factors are applied. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Critical Accounting Policies” and Note A to the Consolidated Financial Statements for certain additional
information regarding reserve assumptions under GAAP.

Competition

The financial services industry is highly competitive. The Company competes with numerous other insurance and
financial services companies both in connection with sales of insurance and asset accumulation products and integrated
disability and absence management services and in acquiring blocks of business and companies. Many of these
organizations have substantially greater asset bases, higher ratings from ratings agencies, larger and more diversified
portfolios of insurance products and larger sales operations. Competition in asset accumulation product markets is also
encountered from the expanding number of banks, securities brokerage firms and other financial intermediaries marketing
alternative savings products, such as mutual funds, traditional bank investments and retirement funding alternatives.

The Company believes that its reputation in the marketplace, quality of service, unique programs which integrate
employee benefit products and absence management services, and investment returns have enabled it to compete
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effectively for new business in its targeted markets. The Company reacts to changes in the marketplace generally by
focusing on products with adequate margins and attempting to avoid those with low margins. The Company believes that
its smaller size, relative to some of its competitors, enables it to more easily tailor its products to the demands of
customers.

Regulation

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are regulated by state insurance authorities in the states in which they are domiciled
and the states in which they conduct business. These regulations, among other things, limit the amount of dividends and
other payments that can be made by the Company’s insurance subsidiaries without prior regulatory approval and impose
restrictions on the amount and type of investments these subsidiaries may have. These regulations also affect many other
aspects of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries’ business, including, for example, risk-based capital (“RBC”)
requirements, various reserve requirements, the terms, conditions and manner of sale and marketing of insurance products
and the form and content of required financial statements. These regulations are intended to protect policyholders rather
than investors. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are required under these regulations to file detailed annual financial
reports with the supervisory agencies in the various states in which they do business, and their business and accounts are
subject to examination at any time by these agencies. To date, no examinations have produced any significant adverse
findings or adjustments. The ability of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to continue to conduct their businesses is
dependent upon the maintenance of their licenses in these various states.

From time to time, increased scrutiny has been placed upon the insurance regulatory framework, and a number of state
legislatures have considered or enacted legislative measures that alter, and in many cases increase, state authority to
regulate insurance companies. In addition to legislative initiatives of this type, the NAIC and insurance regulators are
continuously involved in a process of reexamining existing laws and regulations and their application to insurance
companies. Furthermore, while the federal government currently does not directly regulate the insurance business, federal
legislation and administrative policies in a number of areas, such as employee benefits regulation, age, sex and disability-
based discrimination, financial services regulation and federal taxation, can significantly affect the insurance business. It
is not possible to predict the future impact of changing regulation on the operations of the Company and its insurance
subsidiaries.

The NAIC’s RBC requirements for insurance companies take into account asset risks, insurance risks, interest rate risks
and other relevant risks with respect to the insurer’s business and specify varying degrees of regulatory action to occur to
the extent that an insurer does not meet the specified RBC thresholds, with increasing degrees of regulatory scrutiny or
intervention provided for companies in categories of lesser RBC compliance. The Company believes that its insurance
subsidiaries are adequately capitalized under the RBC requirements and that the thresholds will not have any significant
regulatory effect on the Company. However, were the insurance subsidiaries” RBC position to materially decline in the
future, the insurance subsidiaries’ continued ability to pay dividends and the degree of regulatory supervision or control to
which they are subjected may be affected.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries can also be required, under solvency or guaranty laws of most states in which they
do business, to pay assessments to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of insurance companies that become insolvent.
These assessments may be deferred or forgiven under most solvency or guaranty laws if they would threaten an insurer’s
financial strength and, in most instances, may be offset against future state premium taxes. SNCC recognized expenses of
$1.3 million, $1.2 million and $0.2 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively, for these types of assessments. None of
the Company’s life insurance subsidiaries has ever incurred any significant costs of this nature.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries employed approkimately 960 persons at December 31, 2002. The Company believes
that it enjoys good relations with its employees.
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Other Subsidiaries

The Company conducts certain of its investment management activities through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Delphi
Capital Management, Inc. (“DCM”), and makes certain investments through other wholly-owned non-insurance
subsidiaries. In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company liquidated a substantial majority of the investments of its
investment subsidiaries. The proceeds from these sales were used in 2001 to repay $150.0 million of outstanding
borrowings under its revolving credit facilities, to repurchase $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities
and to repurchase $8.0 million principal amount of the Senior Notes.

Other Transactions

On June 30, 1998, the Company acquired Matrix, a provider of integrated disability and absence management services to
the empioyee benefits market. The purchase price of $33.8 million consisted of 409,424 shares of the Company’s Class A
Common Stock, $7.9 million of cash and $5.7 million of 8% subordinated notes due June 2003 (the “Subordinated
Notes™). Under the terms of the purchase agreement, additional consideration of up to $5.2 million in cash was payable if
Matrix’s earnings met specified targets over the four-year period subsequent to the acquisition. Because Matrix met all of
the specified targets, the Company paid the $5.2 million of contingent consideration in two equal installments of $2.6
million during 2000 and 2001. See Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In April 1999, the Company completed the disposition of its Unicover Managers, Inc. subsidiary and a related company
(collectively, “Unicover”), which were acquired in the fourth quarter of 1998, to certain of the former owners of Unicover.
In January 2000, the Company received from Unicover’s pool and facility members and the retrocessionaires of
Unicover’s facilities legal releases relating to, among other things, the Company’s former ownership of Unicover. The
releases were obtained in connection with a global Unicover-related settlement involving Reliance Insurance Company, its
retrocessionaires and a group of ceding companies and brokers. The Company contributed to this settlement by agreeing
to rescind a quota share reinsurance contract with Reliance Insurance Company.

item 2. Properties

The Company leases its principal executive office at 1105 North Market Street, Suite 1230, Wilmington, Delaware under
an operating lease expiring in October 2003. RSLIC leases its administrative office at 2001 Market Street, Suite 1500,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, under an operating lease expiring in June 2009. SNCC owns its home office building at 2043
Woodland Parkway, Suite 200, St. Louis, Missouri, which consists of approximately 58,000 square feet. SNCC also owns
a neighboring office building located at 2029 Woodland Parkway, St. Louis, Missouri. The building consists of
approximately 17,000 square feet and is intended for lease to third parties. DCM and FRSLIC lease their offices at 153
East 53 Street, 49" Floor, New York, New York under an operating lease expiring in July 2008. Matrix leases its
principal office at 5225 Hellyer Avenue, Suite 210, San Jose, California under an operating lease expiring in December
2006. The Company also maintains sales and administrative offices throughout the country to provide nationwide sales
support and service existing business.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the course of its business, the Company is a party to litigation and other proceedings, primarily involving its insurance
operations. In some cases, these proceedings entail claims against the Company for punitive damages and similar types of
relief. The ultimate disposition of such pending litigation and proceedings is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position. In addition, incident to its discontinued products, the Company
is currently a party to two separate arbitrations arising out of two accident and health reinsurance arrangements in which it
and other companies formerly were participating reinsurers. At issue in both arbitrations, among other things, is whether
certain reinsurance risks were validly ceded to the Company. The ultimate resolutions of these arbitrations are likely to
require extended periods of time. While management believes that in both cases the Company has substantial legal
grounds for avoiding the reinsurance risks at issue, it is not at this time possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these
arbitrations, nor is it feasible to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses. In the opinion of management, such
arbitrations, when ultimately resolved, will not individually or collectively have a material adverse effect on the
Company's consolidated financial position.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Company

The table below presents certain information concerning each of the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Position

Robert Rosenkranz 60 Director of the Company; Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company; Chairman of the Board of RSLIC

Robert M. Smith, Jr. 51 Director and Executive Vice President of the Company

Chad W. Coulter 40 Vice President and General Counsel of the Company; Vice President,
General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of RSLIC

Thomas W. Burghart 44 Vice President and Treasurer of the Company and RSLIC

Lawrence E. Daurelle 51 Director of the Company and President and Chief Executive Officer of RSLIC

Harold F. Ilg 55 Director of the Company and Chairman of the Board of SNCC

Mr. Rosenkranz has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since May 1987 and has served
as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since April 1989. He also serves as Chairman of the Board or as a
Director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries. Mr. Rosenkranz, by means of beneficial ownership of the corporate
general partner of Rosenkranz & Company and direct or beneficial ownership, has the power to vote all of the outstanding
shares of Class B Common Stock, which represent 49.9% of the voting power of the Company’s common stock as of

March 20, 2003.

Mr. Smith has served as Executive Vice President of the Company and DCM since November 1999 and as a Director of
the Company since January 1995. He has also served as the Chief Investment Officer of RSLIC and FRSLIC since April
2001. From July 1994 to November 1999, he served as Vice President of the Company and DCM. Mr. Smith also serves
as a Director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries.

Mr. Coulter has served as Vice President and General Counsel of the Company and as Vice President, General Counsel
and Assistant Secretary of RSLIC, FRSLIC and RSLIC-Texas since January 1998. He also served for RSLIC in similar
capacities from February 1994 to August 1997, and in various capacities from January 1991 to February 1994. From
August 1997 to December 1997, Mr. Coulter was Vice President and General Counsel of National Life of Vermont.

Mr. Burghart has served as Vice President and Treasurer of the Company since April 2001 and as Vice President and
Treasurer of RSLIC, FRSLIC and RSLIC-Texas since October 2000. From March 1992 to September 2000, he served as
the Second Vice President, Actuarial Statements, of RSLIC.

Mr. Daurelle has served as a Director of the Company since August 2002. He also has served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of RSLIC, FRSLIC and RSLIC-Texas since October 2000. He served as Vice President and Treasurer
of the Company from August 1998 to April 2001. He also serves on the Board of Directors of RSLIC, FRSLIC and
RSLIC-Texas. From May 1995 to October 2000, Mr. Daurelle was Vice President and Treasurer of RSLIC, FRSLIC and

RSLIC-Texas.

Mr. llg has served as a Director of the Company since August 2002. He also has served as Chairman of the Board of
SNCC since January 1999. He serves on the Board of Directors of RSLIC and FRSLIC. From April 1999 until Qctober
2000, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of RSLIC, FRSLIC, and RSLIC-Texas. Prior to January 1999,
he served as Vice Chairman of the Board of SNCC, where he has been employed in various capacities since 1978.
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PART I1
Item 5. Market for the Company’s Common Stock and Related Shareholder Matters

The closing price of the Company’s Class A Common Stock was $38.90 on March 20, 2003. There were approximately
2,500 holders of record of the Company’s Class A Common Stock as of March 20, 2003.

The Company’s Class A Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol DFG. The
following table sets forth the high and low sales prices for the Company’s Class A Common Stock and the cash dividends
paid per share for the Company’s Class A and Class B Common Stock.

High Low Dividends
2002:  First Quarter $ 39.67 § 3280 $ 0.07
Second Quarter 45.12 38.50 0.07
Third Quarter 43.50 33.86 0.07
Fourth Quarter 41.13 3291 0.08
2001:  First Quarter $ 4225 $ 2830 $ 0.07
Second Quarter 38.50 26.45 0.07
Third Quarter 38.40 29.92 0.07
Fourth Quarter 34.90 29.80 0.07

In 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors began declaring quarterly cash dividends of $0.07 per share, which are paid
on the Company’s Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company’s
Board of Directors increased the cash dividend to $0.08 per share. In the first quarter of 2003, the Company’s Board of
Directors declared a cash dividend of $0.08 per share, which was paid on the Company’s Class A Common Stock and
Class B Common Stock on March 6, 2003. The Company intends to continue to pay a quarterly dividend at this level,
However, the declaration and payment of such dividends, including the amount and frequency of such dividends, is at the
discretion of the Board and depends upon many factors, including the Company’s consolidated financial position, liquidity
requirements, operating results and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant. Cash dividend payments are
permitted under the respective terms of the Company’s $150.0 million revolving credit facility and $66.5 million Senior
Notes subject to certain restrictions and covenants. See Note L to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, dividend payments by the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to the Company are subject to certain regulatory

restrictions. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity
and Capital Resources” and “Business - Regulation.”
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data below should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes.

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Income Statement Data: (dollars and shares in thousands, except per share data)

Insurance premiums and fee income:
Core group employee benefit products........ $559,174  $452,158 $400,405 $357,541  $326,770

Non-core group employee benefit products” 49,325 35,836 47,285 110,381 89,641
Asset accumulation products .........cccceeeeunene 2,645 3,088 2,551 2,126 2,583
Oher™ ...t 16,713 16,122 16,116 15220 7.880
627,857 507,204 466,357 485,268 426,874

Net investment income® ..........o.oocvovivieiiennn 162,036 157,509 184,576 180,945 168,692
Net realized investment (losses) gains............. (28.469) (70.289)  _(138.047) (25.720) 8.060
Total FEVENMUE ... 761,424 594,424 512,886 640,493 603,626
Income (loss) from continuing operations®.... 60,868 941) (3,293) 64,132 73,802
Net income (1058)P® ..o 60,652 6,505 (3,293) 50,285 87,035

Basic Results Per Share™®;
Income (loss) from continuing operations....... $ 293 $ (004 $ (0.16) $ 3.06 $ 350
Net income (108S) ....ocoevieveeniininnenecce e 2.92 0.32 (0.16) 240 4.13
Weighted average shares outstanding.............. 20,759 20,565 20,388 20,979 21,095

Diluted Results Per Share!®®):
Income (loss) from continuing operations....... $ 286 $§ 04y $ (0.16) $ 296 $ 337

Net income (10SS) ........oereereencmrerreesrrseensieneans 2.85 0.32 (0.16) 2.32 3.97

Weighted average shares outstanding.............. 21,258 20,565 20,388 21,674 21,920
Cash Dividends Paid Per Share™: ................ $ 029 $§ 028 $ - 3 - S5 -
Other Data®:

Operating income® .........co.coooovvvmerimsrerrrennn. $127,465 § 81,652 $157371  $144,995  $ 124,960

Operating earnings™ ...............ccoocemvevrvrireennn. 79,373 44,747 86,438 80,850 68,564

Diluted book value per share'”.................... $ 3275 § 2850 $ 2687 $ 2452 § 2659

Return on average shareholders’ equity"...... 12.6% 8.0% 16.6% 15.1% 12.7%

December 31,

2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Balance Sheet Data: (dollars in thousands)

Total INVESIMENtS .........eveerrreceeeeeesiernienns $2,816,051 $2,427,214 $2,475,945 $2,527,763 $2,511,387
TOLRl SSELS .....vv.vveoreeeereerererseese s 3,734,942 3,336,146 3,440,010 3,395,688 3,287,057
Corporate debt™ ..........cooccvevmieeereeees 118,139 125,675 267,770 283,938 265,165
Capital Securities™...........coocovvvveririneirieninnns 36,050 36,050 100,000 100,000 100,000
Shareholders’ €qUity...........cco....ovorreererernenn. 681,655 581,994 538,193 501,417 566,440
Debt to total capitalization ratio"?................ 14.1% 16.9% 29.6% 32.1% 28.5%
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The Company in 1999 terminated its participations in the reinsurance facilities in which it had historically participated, resulting in lower
premiums from non-core group employee benefit products in 2000, 2001 and 2002. Premiums from non-core group employee benefit products
also include premiums from LPTs, which are episodic in nature, of $27.3 million, $44.0 million, $13.9 million, $4.3 million and $26.8 million, in
1998, 1999, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit Products” and “Business — Reinsurance.”

Reflects the acquisition of Matrix in 1998. See “Business — Other Transactions” and Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Net investment income declined in 2001 and 2002 primarily due to the Company’s liquidation during the fourth quarter of 2000 of a substantial
majority of the investments of its investment subsidiaries. In 2001, the Company used the proceeds from these sales to repay $150.0 million of
outstanding borrowings under its revolving credit facilities, to repurchase $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities and to
repurchase $8.0 million principal amount of the Senior Notes. The Company recognized an extraordinary gain of $0.36 per share, or $7.4 miilion,
net of income tax expense of $4.0 million, in connection with these repurchases. In the second quarter of 2002, the Company repurchased $10.5
million aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes and recognized an extraordinary loss of $0.01 per share, 0r$0.2 million, net of an income
tax benefit of $0.1 million, in connection with this fepurchase.

Results for 2001 include a charge of $1.40 per share or $28.8 million, net of an income tax benefit of $15.5 million and reinsurance coverages of
$21.8 million, for reserve strengthening primarily related to an unusuvally high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’
compensation business. Included in this charge, on a pre-tax basis, are additions to excess workers’ compensation case reserves of $9.0 million
and IBNR reserves of $24.0 million. This charge also includes reported workers’ compensation losses of $6.3 million and a $5.0 million addition
to long-term disability IBNR reserves attributable to the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. The Company experienced one large loss in
its excess workers’ compensation business in 2002.

Income (loss) from continuing operations and net income (loss) include realized investment (losses) gains, net of federal income tax (benefit)
expense, as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Realized investment (losses) gains, net of income tax

(benefit) XPenSe ......c.vvvrerrreeererereccnicienreneeseneeenens $ (18,505) 3 (45,688) 3 (89,731) $ (16,718). §$ 5,238
Basic per share amount.........c...cccoovvennriinnecne (0.89) 2.22) (4.40) (0.79) 0.25
Diluted per share amount. (0.87) (2.22) (4.40) 0.77) 0.24

In 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized losses of $35.2 million, net of an income tax benefit of $18.9 million, and $51.5 million, net of an
income tax benefit of $27.8 million, respectively, due to the other than temporary declines in the market values of certain securities. In 2000, the
Company realized losses of $47.1 miilion, net of an income tax benefit of $25.4 million, related to the liquidation of a substantial majority of the
investments of its investment subsidiaries and $38.0 million, net of an income tax benefit of $20.5 million, on closed U.S. Treasury futures and
option contracts.

In 1999, the Company disposed of Unicover and recognized an after-tax loss of $13.8 million on the disposition. After-tax income from this
discontinued operation totaled $13.2 million in 1998. See “Business — Other Transactions.”

In computing the earnings per share amounts for 2001 and 2000, equivalent shares attributable to in-the-money stock options, which totaled 0.5
million and 0.7 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively, were not considered in the calculation of these per share amounts since the inclusion of
these equivalent shares would have diluted the loss from continuing operations.

In 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of $0.07 per share, payable on the Company’s
outstanding Class A and Class B Common Stock. In the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors increased the cash dividend to
$0.08 per share. During 2002 and 2001, the Company paid cash dividends on its capital stock in the amount of $6.0 million and $5.7 million,
respectively. See Note L to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Management believes that it is informative to exclude discretionary or nonrecurring income or loss items such as realized investment gains and
losses, discontinued operations and extraordinary items when analyzing the Company’s operating trends and in comparing the Company’s results
to those of other companies in its industry. Investment gains and losses may be realized based on management’s decision to dispose of an
investment or management’s judgment that a decline in the market value of an investment is other than temporary. Therefore, realized investment
gains and losses do not represent elements of the Company’s ongoing earnings capacity. However, these alternative measures of the Company’s
performance should not be considered a substitute for net income as an indication of the Company’s overall performance and may not be
calculated in the same manner as similarly titled captions in other companies’ financial statements.

Operating income is comprised of income from continuing operations excluding realized investment gains and losses and before interest and
income tax expense or benefit. Operating earnings are comprised of net income excluding realized investment gains and losses (net of the related
income tax expense or benefit), discontinued operations and extraordinary items. Results for 2001 include a charge of $28.8 million, net of taxes
and reinsurance coverages, for reserve strengthening primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess
workers’ compensation business. See note 4 above.

Diluted book value per share is calculated by dividing shareholders’ equity, as increased by the proceeds and tax benefit from the assumed
exercise of outstanding in-the-money stock options, by total shares outstanding, also increased by shares issued upon the assumed exercise of the
options and deferred shares.

Return on average sharcholders’ equity is calculated by dividing operating eamnings by average shareholders’ equity, as determined as of the
beginning and end of each year. Return on average shareholders” equity for 2001 excluding losses related to the reserve strengthening was 13.1%.

The debt to total capitalization ratio is calculated by dividing long-term debt by the sum of the Company’s long-term debt, Capita! Securities and
shareholders’ equity.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The discussion and analysis of the results of operations and financial condition of the Company below should be read in
conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes.

Results of Operations

2002 Compared to 2001

Premium and Fee Income. Premium and fee income in 2002 was $627.9 million as compared to $507.2 million in 2001,
an increase of 24%. Premiums from core group employee benefit products increased 24% to $559.2 million in 2002 from
$452.2 million in 2001. This increase reflects normal growth in employment and salary levels for the Company’s existing
customer base, price increases, and strong production of new business. Core group employee benefit products include
group life, disability, excess and large deductible workers’ compensation, travel accident and dental insurance and self-
insurance workers’ compensation bonds. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit Products.” Excess workers’
compensation premiums increased 42% to $104.2 million in 2002 from $73.4 million in 2001 primarily due to
improvements in the pricing environment and demand for this product as a result of higher primary workers’
compensation rates. SNCC was able to obtain significant price increases in connection with its renewals of insurance
coverage during 2002, with increases exceeding 25% on a substantial portion of such renewals. SNCC has also been
obtaining significant improvements in contract terms, in particular higher SIR levels, in these renewals. SNCC has
continued to obtain price increases in the range of 10% to 15% on its 2003 renewals. New business production for excess
workers’ compensation products increased 70% to $30.8 million in 2002 from $18.1 million in 2001 and the retention of
existing customers was consistent with SNCC’s goals. New business production for the Company’s other core group
employee benefit products increased 21% to $170.4 million in 2002 from $141.0 million in 2001 primarily due to the
expansion of the Company’s sales force during 2001 and 2002, and the opening of three new sales offices in 2002.
Retention of existing customers for these products also improved during 2002 and price increases were implemented for
certain disability customers. Non-core group employee benefit products include LPTs, primary workers’ compensation,
bail bond insurance, workers’ compensation and property reinsurance, and reinsurance facilities. See “Business — Group
Employee Benefit Products” and “Business — Reinsurance.” Premiums from non-core group employee benefit products
increased 38% to $49.3 million in 2002 from $35.8 million in 2001 primarily due to a higher level of premium from LPTs,
which are episodic in nature. Deposits from the Company’s asset accumulation products were $135.0 million in 2002 as
compared to $90.2 million in 2001. Deposits for these products, which are long-term in nature, are recorded as liabilities
rather than as premiums. The Company has maintained its disciplined approach to setting the crediting rates offered on its
asset accumulation products since market interest rates and the resulting interest rate spreads available to the Company on
these products remained less favorable throughout 2001 and 2002. The increase in deposits from the Company’s asset
accumulation products in 2002 was higher than expected due to the pullback of certain fixed annuity providers from the
wholesale distribution chain and heightened demand for fixed annuity products as a result of adverse conditions in the
equity markets. Accordingly, the level of deposits achieved in 2002 may not be representative of the level of deposits
attainable in 2003.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income in 2002 was $162.0 million as compared to $157.5 million in 2001, an
increase of 3%. This increase primarily reflects an increase in average invested assets in 2002, partially offset by a
decrease in the tax equivalent weighted average annual yield. The tax equivalent weighted average annual yield on
invested assets was 6.6% on average invested assets of $2,556.1 million in 2002 and 7.0% on average invested assets of
$2,313.0 million in 2001.

Net Realized Investment Losses. Net realized investment losses were $28.5 million in 2002 as compared to $70.3 million
in 2001. The Company’s investment strategy results in periodic sales of securities and, therefore, the recognition of
realized investment gains and losses. The Company monitors its investments on an ongoing basis. When the market value
of a security declines below its cost, and such decline is determined in the judgment of management to be other than
temporary, the security is written down to fair value, and the decline is reported as a realized investment loss. In 2002 and
2001, the Company recognized $54.1 million and $79.3 million, respectively, of losses due to the other than temporary
declines in the market values of certain fixed maturity and equity securities. During the same periods, the Company
recognized $26.4 miition and $10.9 million, respectively, of net gains on sales of securities. Realized investment losses,
net of the related tax benefit, reduced net income by $18.5 million, or $0.87 per share, in 2002 and by $45.7 million, or
$2.22 per share, in 2001.

The losses due to the other than temporary declines in the market values of fixed maturity and equity securities recognized
during 2002, which totaled $35.2 million on an after-tax basis, resulted primarily from credit quality-related deterioration
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in the corporate debt markets, and the Company may recognize additional losses of this type in the future. The Company
anticipates that if certain other existing declines in security values are determined to be other than temporary, it may
recognize additional invéstment losses in the range of $5 million to $10 million, on an after-tax basis, with respect to the
relevant securities. However, the extent of any such losses will depend on future market developments and changes in
security values, and such losses may exceed or be lower than such range. The Company continuously meonitors the
affected securities pursuant to its procedures for evaluation for other than temporary impairment in valuation. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting Policies”
for a description of these procedures, which take into account a number of factors. It is not possible to predict the extent
of any future changes in value, positive or negative, or the results of the future application of these procedures, with
respect to these securities. There can be no assurance that the Company will realize investment gains in the future in an
amount sufficient to offset any such losses.

Benefits and Expenses. Policyholder benefits and expenses were $662.4 million as compared to $583.1 million in 2001,
an increase of 14%. This increase primarily reflects the increase in premiums from the Company’s group employee
benefit products discussed above. Benefits and expenses in 2001 include a pre-tax charge of $44.3 million for reserve
strengthening primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’
compensation business. See “2001 Compared to 2000 — Benefits and Expenses.” The combined ratio (loss ratio plus
expense ratio) for the Company’s group employee benefits segment was 94.6% in 2002 and 102.0% (92.9% excluding the
reserve strengthening) in 2001. The combined ratio in 2002 reflects the higher levels of reserves which have been
established for the Company’s excess workers’ compensation products due to the high number of large losses in 2001.
This combined ratio also reflects the large amount of new business production from the Company’s other core group
employee benefit products, for which initial reserves have been set at higher levels until actual loss experience emerges.
The higher level of premium from LPTs, which carry a higher loss ratio, also contributed to the higher combined ratio in
2002.

Interest Expense and Extraordinary (Loss) Gain. Interest expense was $12.4 million in 2002 as compared to $17.4
miilion in 2001, a decrease of $5.0 million. This decrease was primarily a result of the Company’s repurchase of $64.0
million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities in the open market, which occurred on various dates during the first
nine months of 2001, and a lower weighted average borrowing rate under the Company’s revolving credit facilities. In
addition, the Company had a lower amount of borrowings outstanding during the year ended 2002 under its Senior Notes
and SIG’s 8.5% Senior Notes (the “SIG Senior Notes”) due May 2003. In June 2001, the Company also repurchased $8.0
million aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes. The Company recognized an extraordinary gain of $7.4 million,
net of income tax expense of $4.0 million, in connection with the repurchases of the Capital Securities and Senior Notes.
In the second quarter of 2002, the Company repurchased $10.5 million aggregate principal amount of the Semor Notes
resulting in an extraordinary loss of $0.2 million, net of an income tax benefit of $0.1 million.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit). Income tax expense was $25.7 million in 2002 as compared to an income tax benefit of
$5.1 million in 2001. The income tax benefits attributable to net realized investment losses were $10.0 million and $24.6
million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The income tax benefit in 2001 was also attributable to the reserve strengthening
charge. The Company’s effective tax rate excluding net realized investment losses and the reserve strengthening was
31.0% in 2002 and 32.2% in 2001.

Income before Extraordinary (Loss) Gain. Management believes the concept of “operating earnings” is informative when
analyzing the Company’s operating trends and in comparing the Company’s performance with that of other companies in
its industry. Operating earnings exclude discretionary or nonrecurring income or loss items such as realized investment
gains and losses and extraordinary items. Investment gains and losses may be realized based on management’s decision to
dispose of an investment or management’s judgment that a decline in the market value of an investment is other than
temporary. Therefore, realized investment gains and losses do not represent elements of the Company’s ongoing earnings
capacity. However, operating earnings should not be considered a substitute for net income as an indication of the
Company’s overall performance and may not be calculated in the same manner as similarly titled captions in other
companies’ financial statements. Operating earnings for the Company, consisting of income before extraordinary (loss)
gain adjusted to exclude realized investment losses (net of the related income tax benefit), were $79.4 million, or $3.73
per share, in 2002 as compared to $44.7 million, or $2.18 per share, in 2001. The increase in operating earnings in the
current period is attributable to the decrease in interest expense ($3.3 million after taxes), and charges in the 2001 period
for goodwill amortization ($3.2 million after taxes) and reserve strengthening ($28.8 million after taxes) (see “2001
Compared to 2000 - Benefits and Expenses”). Excluding the effects of the reserve strengthening and goodwill
amortization in 2001, income from group employee benefit products increased in 2002 as compared to 2001. Equivalent
shares attributable to in-the-money stock options, which totaled 0.5 million for 2001, were not considered in the

-19-



calculation of the per share amount since the inclusion of these equivalent shares would have diluted the loss before
extraordinary gain.

2001 Compared to 2000

Premium and Fee Income. Premium and fee income in 2001 was $507.2 million as compared to $466.4 million in 2000.
Premiums from core group employee benefit products increased 13% to $452.2 million in 2001 from $400.4 million in
2000. This increase reflects normal growth in employment and salary levels for the Company’s existing customer base,
price increases, production of new business and improved persistency. Core group employee benefit products include
group life, disability, excess and large deductible workers’ compensation, travel accident and dental insurance and self-
insurance workers’ compensation bonds. Excess workers’ compensation premiums increased 31% to $73.4 million in
2001 from $56.0 million in 2000 primarily due to increases in the pricing environment and demand for this product due to
higher primary workers’ compensation rates and disruption in the workers’ compensation marketplace as a result of
difficulties experienced by some competitors, particularly during 2000. These trends accelerated during the second half of
2001 as sharply higher primary workers’ compensation rates and rising reinsurance costs due to the terrorist attacks on the
World Trade Center increased the demand for self-insurance, As a result, the demand for excess workers’ compensation
products and the rates for such products increased. New business production for the Company’s other group employee
benefit products was very strong during 2001, particularly during the fourth quarter, primarily due to a 16% increase in the
Company’s sales force during 2001. Retention of existing customers for these products also improved during 2001 and
price increases were implemented for certain disability customers. Non-core group employee benefit products include
LPTs, primary workers’ compensation, bail bond insurance, workers’ compensation and property reinsurance, and
reinsurance facilities. Premiums from non-core group employee benefit products decreased to $35.8 million in 2001 from
$47.3 million in 2000 primarily due to the Company’s termination of its participations in the reinsurance facilities in
which it had historically participated and a lower level of premium from LPTs, which are episodic in nature. Deposits
from the Company’s asset accumulation products were $90.2 million in 2001 as compared to $160.5 million in 2000.
Deposits for these products, which are long-term in nature, are recorded as liabilities rather than as premiums. In the first
quarter of 2001, the Company reduced the crediting rates offered on its asset accumulation products due to the decline in
market interest rates and the resulting interest rate spreads available to the Company on these products. Accordingly, the
Company experienced a lower level of production from its asset accumulation business in 2001 as compared to 2000.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income in 2001 was $157.5 million as compared to $184.6 million in 2000. The
tax equivalent weighted average annual yield on invested assets was 7.0% on average invested assets of $2,313.0 million
in 2001 and 7.6% on average invested assets of $2,508.3 million in 2000. The decrease in investment income reflects the
Company’s liquidation during the fourth quarter of 2000 of a substantial majority of the investments of its investment
subsidiaries. The proceeds from these sales were used to repay $150.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the
Company’s revolving credit facilities in the first half of 2001, to repurchase $64.0 million liquidation amount of the
Capital Securities during the first nine months of 2001 and to repurchase $8.0 million principal amount of the Senior
Notes in June 2001.

Net Realized Investment Losses. Net realized investment losses were $70.3 million in 2001 as compared to $138.0 million
in 2000. The Company’s investment strategy results in periodic sales of securities and, therefore, the recognition of
realized investment gains and losses. The Company monitors its investments on an ongoing basis. When the market value
of a security declines below its cost, and such decline is determined in the judgment of management to be other than
temporary, the security is written down to fair value. In 2001, the Company recognized $79.3 million of losses due to the
other than temporary declines in the market value of certain fixed maturity and equity securities. In 2000, the Company
realized losses of $72.5 million related to the liquidation of the investments of its investment subsidiaries and $58.5
million on closed U.S. Treasury futures and option contracts. See Note C to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Realized investment losses, net of the related tax benefit, reduced net income by $45.7 million, or $2.22 per share, in 2001
and by $89.7 million, or $4.40 per share, in 2000.

Benefits and Expenses. Policyholder benefits and expenses were $583.1 million as compared to $493.6 million in 2000,
an increase of 18%. Benefits and expenses in 2001 include a pre-tax charge of $44.3 million for reserve strengthening
primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business.
Prior to 2001, SNCC’s historical average for losses exceeding $2.0 million in its excess workers’ compensation products
was one to two per year. In 2001, however, the Company experienced seven such losses, including two losses as a result
of the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. The case reserves for these seven losses totaled $15.3 million,
including $6.3 million attributable to the World Trade Center attacks. Though the Company believed that the high
number of large losses in 2001 was unlikely to recur, the Company added $24.0 million to its reserve for IBNR losses
since its method of estimating IBNR reserves is based on past experience. The Company experienced only one large loss
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from its excess workers’ compensation business in 2002. The Company also added $5.0 million to its long-term disability
IBNR reserves for potential mental and nervous disability claims related to the World Trade Center attacks. This reserve
strengthening charge reduced net income in 2001 by $28.8 million, or $1.40 per share. The increase in premiums from the
Company’s core group employee benefit products also contributed to the increase in benefits and expenses in 2001, The
combined ratio (loss ratio plus expense ratio) for the Company’s group employee benefits segment was 102.0% (92.9%
excluding the reserve strengthening) in 2001 and 92.3% in 2000. Benefits and interest credited on asset accumulation
products increased by $3.9 million in 2001 principally due to an increase in average funds under management from $674.5
million in 2000 to $748.6 million in 2001, partially offset by a decrease in the weighted average annual crediting rate on
asset accumulation products from 5.7% in 2000 to 5.5% in 2001.

Interest Expense and Extraordinary Gain. Interest expense was $17.4 million in 2001 as compared to $30.8 million in
2000, a decrease of $13.4 million. This decrease was primarily a result of the Company’s repayment of $150.0 million of
outstanding borrowings under its revolving credit facilities during the first half of 2001 and the repurchase of $64.0
million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities in the open market, which occurred on various dates during the first
nine months of 2001. In addition, the Company repurchased $8.0 million principal amount of the Senior Notes in June
2001. The Company recognized an extraordinary gain of $7.4 million, net of income tax expense of $4.0 million, in
connection with these repurchases.

Income Tax Benefit. The income tax benefit was $5.1 million in 2001 and $8.2 million in 2000 and was primarily
attributable to the recognition of investment losses and, in 2001, the reserve strengthening. The Company’s effective tax
rate excluding net realized investment losses and the reserve strengthening was 32.2% in 2001 and 31.7% in 2000.

Loss before Extraordinary Gain. Management believes the concept of “operating earnings” is informative when
analyzing the Company’s operating trends and in comparing the Company’s performance with that of other companies in
its industry. Operating earnings exclude discretionary or nonrecurring income or loss items such as realized investment
gains and losses and extraordinary items. Investment gains and losses may be realized based on management’s decision to
dispose of an investment or management’s judgment that a decline in the market value of an investment is other than
temporary. Therefore, realized investment gains and losses do not represent elements of the Company’s ongoing earnings
capacity. However, operating earnings should not be considered a substitute for net income as an indication of the
Company’s overall performance and may not be calculated in the same manner as similarly titled captions in other
companies’ financial statements. Operating earnings for the Company, consisting of income before extraordinary gain
adjusted to exclude realized investment losses (net of the related income tax benefit), were $44.7 million, or $2.18 per
share, in 2001 as compared to $86.4 million, or $4.24 per share, in 2000. The decrease in operating earnings is primarily
attributable to the after-tax charge for reserve strengthening totaling $28.8 million, or $1.40 per share (see “2001
Compared to 2000 - Benefits and Expenses”). Equivalent shares attributable to in-the-money stock options, which totaled
0.5 million and 0.7 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively, were not considered in the calculation of these per share
amounts since the inclusion of these equivalent shares would have diluted the loss from continuing operations. The
decrease in operating earnings is also attributable to the liquidation during the fourth quarter of 2000 of investments of the
Company’s investment subsidiaries (see “2001 Compared to 2000 - Net Investment Income”).

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General. The Company had approximately $40.3 million of financial resources available at the holding company level at
December 31, 2002, which was primarily comprised of investments in the common stock of its investment subsidiaries.
The assets of the investment subsidiaries are primarily invested in fixed maturity securities and balances with independent
investment managers.

In December 2002, the Company obtained a new $150.0 million revolving credit facility with a group of lenders
comprised of major banking institutions, which replaced the existing $140.0 million revolving credit facilities scheduled
to expire in April 2003. This facility, which expires in December 2005, is subject to certain restrictions and financial
covenants considered ordinary for this type of credit agreement. They include, among others, the maintenance of certain
financial ratios, minimum statutory surplus and RBC requirements for RSLIC and SNCC, and certain investment,
indebtedness, dividend and stock repurchase limitations. At December 31, 2002, the Company had $113.0 million of
borrowings available to it under its new revolving credit facility.

Other sources of liquidity at the holding company level include dividends paid from subsidiaries, primarily generated from
operating cash flows and investments. During 2003, the Company’s life insurance subsidiaries and SNCC will be
permitted, without prior regulatory approval, to make dividend payments of $25.3 million and $21.3 million, respectively.
The life insurance subsidiaries and SNCC may also pay additional dividends with the requisite regulatory approvals. See

21-



“Business - Regulation.” In general, dividends from the Company’s non-insurance subsidiaries are not subject to
regulatory or other restrictions.

The Company’s current liquidity needs, in addition to funding its operating expenses, include principal and interest
payments on outstanding borrowings under its revolving credit facility, the Senior Notes, the SIG Senior Notes and the
Subordinated Notes and distributions on the Capital Securities. During the second quarter of 2002, the Company
repurchased $10.5 million aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes. The Senior Notes mature in their entirety in
October 2003 and are not subject to any sinking fund requirements nor are they redeemable prior to maturity. A $9.0
million annual principal installment was paid on the SIG Senior Notes in May 2002, and the remaining $9.0 million of
such notes will mature in their entirety in May 2003. The Subordinated Notes mature in their entirety in June 2003. The
junior subordinated debentures underlying the Capital Securities are not redeemable prior to March 25, 2007. See Note E
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s shelf registration statement for the sale, from time to time, of securities was declared effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 6, 2002. This shelf registration increased the Company’s existing $49.2
million shelf registration to an amount of up to. $250.0 million of proceeds. Subject to market conditions, the Company
may refinance its revolving credit facility and its Senior Notes prior to maturity through the issuance of debt securities
covered by the shelf registration. However, no assurance can be given that such an offering will be commenced or
completed. To mitigate the risk of interest rates rising before such refinancing could be completed, the Company entered
into a treasury rate lock agreement, with a notional amount of $150.0 million, pursuant to which the Company will receive
(or make) a single payment at the conclusion of the agreement, depending on the extent to which the market yield on the
specified U.S. Treasury security rises (or falls) over the term of the agreement. The agreement was entered into in
September 2002 with a term of one year. Any gains or losses on the treasury rate lock agreement would be deferred and
amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of any debt securities issued in the refinancing, or recognized
in income if, and at the time, the Company concludes the refinancing is improbable.

Sources of liquidity available to the Company on a parent company-only basis, including the undistributed earnings of its
subsidiaries, additional borrowings available under the Company’s revolving credit facility and borrowings, if any,
available pursuant to any debt obligations issued in the future, are expected to exceed the Company’s current and long-
term cash requirements. The Company from time to time engages in discussions with respect to acquiring blocks of
business and insurance and financial services companies, any of* which could, if consummated, be materiai to the
Company’s operations.

The principal liquidity requirements of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are their contractual obligations to
policyholders and other financing sources. The primary sources of funding for these obligations, in addition to operating
earnings, are the marketable investments included in the investment portfolios of these subsidiaries. The Company
believes that these sources of funding will be adequate for its insurance subsidiaries to satisfy on both a short-term and
Jong-term basis these contractual obligations throughout their estimated or stated period.

Cash Flows. Operating activities increased cash by $208.5 million in 2002. Operating activities in 2001, which include
$30.1 million of cash provided by the liquidation of trading account securities and $84.0 million of funds received from
Oracle Re for the commutation of various reinsurance agreements that the Company had entered into with Oracle Re in
1998, increased cash by $228.7 million. See Note Q to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Operating activities
increased cash by $12.4 million in 2000 and are net of $58.1 million of funds returned to a ceding insurer in connection
with the rescission of a reinsurance transaction, $16.0 million of cash used by trading account activities, and a net cash
payment of $19.7 million related to the cession by the Company of group employee benefit product reserves.

Investments. The Company’s overall investment strategy emphasizes safety and liquidity, while seeking the best available
retum, by focusing on, among other things, managing the Company’s interest-sensitive assets and liabilities and seeking to
minimize the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. The Company’s investment portfolio, which totaled
$2,816.1 million at December 31, 2002, primarily consists of investments in fixed maturity securities and short-term
investments. The market value of the Company’s investment portfolio, in relation to its amortized cost, improved by
$92.3 million during 2002, before related changes in the cost of business acquired of $23.8 million and the income tax
provision of $24.0 million. The net investment losses recognized during 2002, which are discussed above, contributed to
the improvement in the net unrealized appreciation in the investment portfolio. The weighted average credit rating of the
Company’s fixed maturity portfolio as rated by Standard & Poor’s Corporation was “AA” at December 31, 2002. While
the investment grade rating of the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio addresses credit risk, it does not address other risks,
such as prepayment and extension risks, which are discussed below.
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At December 31, 2002, approximately 41% of the Company’s total invested assets were comprised of corporate fixed
maturity securities. Eighty-seven percent of the Company’s corporate fixed maturity portfolio, based on fair values, has
been rated investment grade by nationally recognized statistical organizations. Investment grade corporate fixed maturity
securities are distributed among the various rating categories as follows: AAA -~ 7%, AA — 20%, A - 29%, and BBB ~
31%. Corporate fixed maturity securities subject the Company to credit risk and, to a lesser extent, interest rate risk. To
reduce its exposure to corporate credit risk, the Company diversifies its investments across economic sectors, industry
classes and issuers.

Mortgage-backed securities comprised 22% of the Company’s total invested assets at December 31, 2002. Ninety-seven
percent of the Company’s mortgage-backed securities portfolio, based on fair values, has been rated as investment grade
by nationally recognized statistical organizations. Mortgage-backed securities subject the Company to a degree of interest
rate risk, including prepayment and extension risk, which is generally a function of the sensitivity of each security’s
underlying collateral to prepayments under varying interest rate environments and the repayment priority of the securities
in the particular securitization structure. The Company seeks to limit the extent of this risk by emphasizing the more
predictable payment classes and securities with stable collateral.

The Company, through its insurance subsidiaries, maintains a program in which investments are financed using advances
from various Federal Home Loan Banks. The Company has utilized this program to manage the duration of its liabilities
and to earn spread income, which is the difference between the financing cost and the eamings from the investments
purchased with those funds. At December 31, 2002, the Company had outstanding advances of $207.0 million, of which
$45.0 million were obtained during 2002. The advances, of which $195.0 million were obtained at a fixed rate and $12.0
million were obtained at a variable rate, have a weighted average term to maturity of 5.5 years. A total of $57.0 million of
these advances will mature at various times during 2003. In addition, the Company has utilized reverse repurchase
agreements, futures and option contracts and interest rate swap contracts from time to time in connection with its
investment strategy. These transactions require the Company to maintain securities or cash on deposit with the applicable
counterparty as collateral. As the market value of the collateral or contracts changes, the Company may be required to
deposit additional collateral or be entitled to have a portion of the collateral returned to it.

The types and amounts of investments made by the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to the insurance laws
and regulations of their respective states of domicile. Each of these states has comprehensive investment regulations. In
addition, the Company’s revolving credit facility and, as to SNCC, the SIG Senior Notes also contain limitations, with
which the Company is currently in compliance in all material respects, on the composition of the Company’s investment
portfolio. The Company also continually monitors its investment portfolio and attempts to ensure that the risks associated
with concentrations of investments in either a particular sector of the market or a single entity are limited.

Asset/Liability Management and Market Risk. Because the Company’s primary assets and liabilities are financial in
nature, the Company’s consolidated financial position and earnings are subject to risks resulting from changes in interest
rates. The Company manages this risk by active portfolio management focusing on minimizing its exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates by matching its invested assets and related liabilities and by periodically adjusting the
crediting rates on its annuity products. In addition, the Company, at times, has utilized exchange-traded futures and option
contracts to reduce the risk associated with changes in the value of its fixed maturity portfolio due to changes in the
interest rate environment and to reduce the risk associated with changes in interest rates in connection with anticipated
securities purchases and debt refinancing. At December 31, 2002, the Company had no outstanding futures and option
contracts or interest rate swap agreements other than the treasury rate lock agreement discussed above (see “Liquidity and
Capital Resources — General™).

The Company regularly analyzes the results of its asset/liability matching through cash flow analysis and duration
matching under multiple interest rate scenarios. These analyses enable the Company to measure the potential gain or loss
in fair value of its interest-rate sensitive financial instruments due to hypothetical changes in interest rates. Based on these
analyses, if interest rates were to immediately increase by 10% from their year-end levels, the fair value of the Company’s
interest-sensitive assets, net of corresponding changes in the fair value of cost of business acquired and insurance and
investment-related liabilities, would decline by approximately $30.9 million at December 31, 2002 as compared to a
decline of approximately $38.0 million at December 31, 2001. These analyses incorporate numerous assumptions and
estimates and assume no changes in the composition of the Company’s investment portfolio in reaction to such interest
rate changes. Consequently, the results of this analysis will likely be materially different from the actual changes
experienced under given interest rate scenarios.

The Company manages the composition of its borrowed capital by considering factors such as the ratio of borrowed
capital to total capital, future debt requirements, the interest rate environment and other market conditions.
Approximately 69% of the Company’s corporate debt was issued at fixed interest rates. A hypothetical 10% decrease in
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market interest rates would cause a corresponding $0.1 million increase in the fair value of the Company’s fixed-rate
corporate debt at December 31, 2002 as compared to an increase of $0.4 million at December 31, 2001. In addition, a
hypothetical 10% decrease in market interest rates would cause a corresponding $5.6 million increase in the fair value of
the Company’s treasury rate lock agreement, which was entered into in 2002 in anticipation of refinancing the Company’s
credit facility and its Senior Notes. An increase in the fair value of such agreement would increase the Company’s
unrealized loss thereon. Because interest expense on the Company’s floating-rate corporate debt fluctuates as prevailing
interest rates change, changes in market interest rates would not materially affect its fair value.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
requires the Company’s management, in some instances, to make judgments about the application of these principles. The
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period could differ materially from the amounts reported if different conditions existed or different
judgments were utilized. Management’s judgment is most critical in the estimation of its liabilities for future policy
benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses and its assets for cost of business acquired and in the valuation of its
investments. A discussion of how management applies these critical accounting policies follows.

Future Policy Benefits and Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses. The Company establishes reserves for future policy
benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses relating to its insurance products. These reserves, which totaled $1,371.2
million at December 31, 2002, are calculated using various generally recognized actuarial methodologies and are based
upon assumptions that management believes are appropriate and which vary by type of product. External actuarial experts
also review the Company’s methodologies, assumptions and the resulting reserves. The Company’s projected uitimate
insurance liabilities and associated reserves are estimates, which are subject to variability. This variability arises because
the factors and events affecting the ultimate liability for claims have not all taken place, and thus cannot be evaluated with
certainty. The estimation process is complex and involves information obtained from company-specific and industry-wide
data, as well as general economic information. '

The most significant assumptions made in the estimation process for future policy benefits relate to mortality, morbidity,
claim termination and discount rates. The reserves for unpaid claims and claim expenses are determined on an individual
basis for reported claims and estimates of IBNR losses are developed on the basis of past experience. The most
significant assumptions made in the estimation process for unpaid claims and claim expenses are the trend in loss costs,
the expected frequency and severity of claims, changes in the timing of the reporting of losses from the loss date to the
notification date, and expected costs to settle unpaid claims. The assumptions vary based on the year the claim is
incurred. At December 31, 2002, disability and excess workers’ compensation reserves for unpaid claims and claim
expenses with a carrying value of $609.4 million have been discounted at a weighted average rate of 5.4%, with the rates
ranging from 3.7% to 7.5%. Disability reserves for unpaid claims and claim expenses are discounted using interest rate
assumptions based upon projected portfolio yield rates for the assets supporting the liabilities. The assets selected to
support these liabilities produce cash flows that are intended to match the timing and amount of anticipated claim and
claim expense payments. Excess workers’ compensation claim reserves are discounted using interest rate assumptions
based on the risk-free rate of return for U.S. Government securities with a duration comparable to the expected duration
and payment pattern of the claims at the time the claims are settled. The rates used to discount reserves are determined
annually. The methods and assumptions used to establish reserves for future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim
expenses are continually reviewed and updated based on current circumstances, and any resulting adjustments are
reflected in eamings currently. There have been no material changes in the actuarial assumptions and/or methods from
those used in the previous periods other than those resulting from the unusually high number of large losses in the
Company’s excess workers’ compensation business in 2001.

Deferred Acquisition Costs. Costs related to the acquisition of new insurance business, such as commissions, certain costs
of policy issuance and underwriting, and certain sales office expenses, are deferred when incurred. The unamortized
balance of these deferred acquisition costs is included in cost of business acquired on the consolidated balance sheet.
Deferred acquisition costs related to group life, disability and accident products, which totaled $115.5 million at
December 31, 2002, are amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the related policies in proportion to the
ratio of the present value of annual expected premium income to the present value of the total expected premium income.
Deferred acquisition costs related to casualty insurance products, which totaled $7.0 million at December 31, 2002, are
amortized over the period in which the related premium is eamed. Deferred acquisition costs related to annuity products,
which totaled $34.5 million at December 31, 2002, are amortized over the anticipated lives of the policies in relation to
the present value of estimated gross profits from such policies’ surrender charges and mortality, investment and expense
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margins. The amortization is a constant percentage of estimated gross profits based on the ratio of the present value of
amounts deferred as compared to the present value of estimated gross profits. Adjustments are made each year to reflect
the actual gross profits to date as compared to assumed experience and any changes in the remaining expected future gross
profits. The unamortized balance of deferred policy acquisition costs related to certain asset accumulation products is
adjusted for the impact on estimated future gross profits as if net unrealized appreciation and depreciation on available for
sale securities had been realized at the balance sheet date. The impact of this adjustment, net of the related income tax
expense or benefit, is included in net unrealized appreciation and depreciation as a component of other comprehensive
income in shareholders’ equity. Deferred acquisition costs are charged to current earnings to the extent that it is
determined that future premiums or estimated gross profits will not be adequate to cover the amounts deferred. The
amortization of deferred acquisition costs totaled $43.2 million, $32.7 million and $27.1 million in 2002, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Investments. Investments are primarily carried at fair value with unrealized appreciation and depreciation included as a
component of other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity, net of the related income tax benefit or expense and
the related adjustment to cost of business acquired. Ninety-seven percent of the Company’s fixed maturity and equity
securities portfolio are actively traded in a liquid market or have other liquidity mechanisms. Securities acquired through
private placements, which are not actively traded in a liquid market and do not have other mechanisms for their sale,
totaled $67.6 million at December 31, 2002. The Company estimates the fair value for these securities primarily by
comparison to similar securities with quoted market prices. If quotes are not available on similar securities, the Company
estimates fair value based on recent purchases or sales of similar securities or other internally prepared valuations. Key
assumptions used in this process include the level of risk-free interest rates, risk premiwms, and performance of underlying
collateral, if applicable. All such investments are classified as available for sale. The Company’s ability to liquidate these
investments in a timely manner, if necessary, may be adversely impacted by the lack of an actively traded market.
Historically, the Company has not realized amounts on dispositions of non-marketable investments that varied materially
from the amounts estimated by the Company under this valuation methodology. The Company believes that its estimates
reasonably reflect the fair value of these securities; however, had there been an active market for these securities during
the applicable reporting period, the market prices may have been materially different than the amounts reported.

Declines in the fair value of investments that are considered in the judgment of management to be other than temporary
are reported as realized investment losses. The Company evaluates, among other things, the financial position and
prospects of the issuer, conditions in the issuer’s industry and geographic area, liquidity of the investment, changes in the
amount or timing of expected future cash flows from the investment, and recent downgrades of the issuer by a rating
agency to determine if and when a decline in the fair value of an investment below amortized cost is other than temporary.
The length of time and extent to which the fair value of the investment is lower than its amortized cost and the Company’s
ability and intent to retain the investment to allow for any anticipated recovery in the investment’s fair value are also
considered. In 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized losses totaling $54.1 million and $79.3 million, respectively, for
the other than temporary decline in the value of certain securities. These losses were recognized as a result of events that
occurred in the respective periods, such as downgrades in an issuer’s credit ratings, deteriorating financial results of
issuers, adverse changes in the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows from securities and the impact of the
recessionary economic environment on issuers’ financial positions. Investment grade and non-investment grade fixed
maturity securities comprised 82.5% and 6.1%, respectively, of the Company’s total investment portfolio at December 31,
2002. Gross unrealized appreciation and gross unrealized depreciation, before the related income tax expense or benefit
and the related adjustment to cost of business acquired, attributable to investment grade fixed maturity securities totaled
$96.1 million and $22.9 million, respectively, at December 31, 2002. Gross unrealized appreciation and gross unrealized
depreciation, before the related income tax expense or benefit and the related adjustment to cost of business acquired,
attributable to non-investment grade fixed maturity securities totaled $5.0 million and $12.2 million, respectively, at
December 31, 2002. Unrealized appreciation and depreciation, net of the related income tax expense or benefit and the
related adjustment to cost of business acquired, has been reflected on the Company’s balance sheet as a component of
other comprehensive income (loss). The Company anticipates that if certain existing declines in security values are
determined to be other than temporary, it may recognize additional investment losses in the range of $7.5 million to $15
million pre-tax ($5 million to $10 million on an afer-tax basis) with respect to the relevant securities. However, the
extent of any such losses will depend on future market developments and changes in security values, and such losses may
exceed or be lower than such range. It is not possible to predict the extent of any future changes in value, positive or
negative, or the results of the future application of the Company’s procedures for the evaluation of other than temporary
impairment in valuation. There can be no assurance that the Company will realize investment gains in the future in an
amount sufficient to offset any such losses.
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Forward-Looking Statements And Cautionary Statements Regarding Certain Factors That May Affect Future
Results

In connection with, and because it desires to take advantage of, the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the Company cautions readers regarding certain forward-looking statements in the above
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this Form
10-K and in any other statement made by, or on behalf of, the Company, whether in future filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission or otherwise. Forward-looking statements are statements not based on historical information and
which relate to future operations, strategies, financial results, prospects, outlooks or other developments. Some forward-
looking statements may be identified by the use of terms such as “expects,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,”
“judgment” or other similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are necessarily based upon estimates and
assumptions that are inherently subject to significant business, economic, competitive and other uncertainties and
contingencies, many of which are beyond the Company’s control and many of which, with respect to future business
decisions, are subject to change. Examples of such uncertainties and contingencies include, among other important
factors, those affecting the insurance industry generally, such as the economic and interest rate environment, federal and
state legislative and regulatory developments, including but not limited to changes in financial services and tax laws and
regulations, market pricing and competitive trends relating to insurance products and services, acts of terrorism or war,
and the availability and cost of reinsurance, and those relating specifically to the Company’s business, such as the level of
its insurance premiums and fee income, the claims experience, persistency and other factors affecting the profitability of
its insurance products, the performance of its investment portfolio and changes in the Company’s investment strategy,
acquisitions of companies or blocks of business, and ratings by major rating organizations of its insurance subsidiaries.
These uncertainties and contingencies can affect actual results and could cause actual results to differ materially from
those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by, or on behalf of, the Company. Certain of these uncertainties
and coatingencies are described in more detail in the remainder of this section. The Company disclaims any obligation to
update forward-looking information.

Reserves established for future policy benefits and claims may prove inadequate.

The Company’s reserves for future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses are estimates. See “Critical
Accounting Policies — Future Policy Benefits and Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses” for a description of the most
significant assumptions used in the estimation process. These estimates are subject 1o variability, since the factors and
events affecting the ultimate liability for claims have not all taken place, and thus cannot be evaluated with certainty.
Moreover, under the actuarial methodologies discussed previously, these estimates are subject to reevaluation based on
developing trends with respect to the Company’s loss experience. Such trends may emerge over longer periods of time,
and changes in such trends cannot necessarily be identified or predicted at any given time by reference to current claims
experience, whether favorable or unfavorable. If the Company’s actual loss experience is different from the Company’s
assumptions or estimates, the Company’s reserves could be inadequate. In such event, the Company’s results of
operations, liquidity or financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

The market values of the Company’s investments fluctuate.

The market values of the Company’s investments vary depending on economic and market conditions, including interest
rates, and such values can decline as a result of changes in such conditions. Increasing interest rates or a widening in the
spread between interest rates available on U.S. Treasury securities and corporate debt, for example, will typically have an
adverse impact on the market values of the fixed maturity securities in the Company’s investment portfolio. If interest
rates decline, the Company generally achieves a lower overall rate of return on investments of cash generated from the
Company’s operations. In addition, in the event that investments are called or mature in a declining interest rate
environment, the Company may be unable to reinvest the proceeds in securities with comparable interest rates. The
Company may also be required or determine in the future to sell certain investments at a price and a time when the market
value of such investments is less than the book value of such investments.

Declines in the fair value of investments that are considered in the judgment of management to be other than temporary
are reported as realized investment losses. See “Critical Accounting Policies — Investments” for a description of
management’s evaluation process. The Company has experienced and may in the future experience losses from other than
temporary declines in security values. Such losses are recorded as realized investment losses in the income statement.
See “Results of Operations - 2002 Compared to 2001.”
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The Company’s investment strategy exposes the Company to default and other risks.

The management of the Company’s investment portfolio is an important component of the Company’s profitability since a
substantial portion of the Company’s operating incdine is generated from the difference between the yield achieved on
invested assets and, in the case of asset accumulation products, the interest credited on policyholder funds and, in the case
of all of the Company’s other products, the discount rate used to calculate the related reserves. See “Liquidity and Capital
Resources — Investments” for a description of the Company’s investment portfolio and strategy.

The Company is subject to the risk that the issuers of the fixed maturity securities the Company owns will default on
principal and interest payments. A major economic downturn or any of the various other factors that affect issuers'
abilities to pay could result in issuer defaults. Because the Company’s investments consist primarily of fixed maturity
securities and short-term investments, such defaults could materially adversely affect the Company’s results of operations,
liquidity or financial condition. The Company continually monitors its investment portfolio and attempts to ensure that the
risks associated with concentrations of investments in either a particular sector of the market or a single entity are limited.

The Company’s financial position exposes the Company to interest rate risks.

Because the Company’s primary assets and liabilities are financial in nature, the Company’s consolidated financial
position and earnings are subject to risks resulting from changes in interest rates. The Company manages this risk by
active portfolio management focusing on minimizing its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates by matching its invested
assets and related liabilities and by periodically adjusting the crediting rates on its annuity products. See “Liquidity and
Capital Resources — Asset/Liability Management and Market Risk.”

The Company’s ability to reduce its exposure to risks depends on the availability and cost of reinsurance.

The Company transfers its exposure to some risks through reinsurance arrangements with other insurance and reinsurance
companies. Under the Company’s reinsurance arrangements, another insurer assumes a specified portion of the
Company’s losses and loss adjustment expenses in exchange for a specified portion of policy premiums. The availability,
amount, cost and terms of reinsurance may vary significantly based on market conditions. Any decrease in the amount of
the Company’s reinsurance will increase the Company’s risk of loss. Furthermore, the Company is subject to credit risk
with respect to reinsurance. The Company obtains reinsurance primarily through indemnity reinsurance transactions in
which the Company is still liable for the transferred risks if the reinsurers fail to meet their financial obligations. Such
failures could materially affect the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

Some reinsurers experienced significant losses related to the terrorist events of September 11, 2001. As a result, higher
prices and less favorable terms and conditions are presently being offered in the reinsurance market. Also, there has been
significantly reduced availability of reinsurance covering risks such as terrorist and catastrophic events. Accordingly,
substantially all of the Company’s coverages of this nature were discontinued during 2002. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to obtain such coverages on acceptable terms, if at all, in the future. However, under the
Terrorism Act, the federal government will pay 90% of the Company’s insured loss from property and casualty products
above the Company’s annual deductible. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit Products.”

The insurance business is a heavily regulated industry.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries, like other insurance companies, are highly regulated by state insurance authorities
in the states in which they are domiciled and the other states in which they conduct business. Such regulations, among
other things, limit the amount of dividends and other payments that can be made by such subsidiaries without prior
regulatory approval and impose restrictions on the amount and type of investments such subsidiaries may have. These
regulations also affect many other aspects of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries’ businesses, including, for example,
RBC requirements, various reserve requirements, the terms, conditions and manner of sale and marketing of insurance
products and the form and content of required financial statements. These regulations are intended to protect policyholders
rather than investors. The ability of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to continue to conduct their businesses is
dependent upon the maintenance of their licenses in these various states.

From time to time, increased scrutiny has been placed upon the insurance regulatory framework, and a number of state
legislatures have considered or enacted legislative measures that alter, and in many cases increase, state authority to
regulate insurance companies. In addition to legislative initiatives of this type, the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners and insurance regulators are continuously involved in a process of reexamining existing laws and
regulations and their application to insurance companies. Furthermore, while the federal government currently does not
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directly regulate the insurance business, federal legislation and administrative policies in a number of areas, such as
employee benefits regulation, age, sex and disability-based discrimination, financial services regulation and federal
taxation, can significantly affect the insurance business. It is not possible to predict the future impact of changing
regulation on the operations of the Company and those of its insurance subsidiaries.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries can also be required, under solvency or guaranty laws of most states in which they
do business, to pay assessments to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of insurance companies that become insolvent.

The financial services industry is highly competitive.

The Company competes with numerous other insurance and financial services companies. Many of these organizations
have substantially greater assets, higher ratings from rating agencies, larger and more diversified portfolios of insurance
products and larger agency sales operations. Competition in asset accumulation product markets is also encountered from
the expanding number of banks, securities brokerage firms and other financial intermediaries marketing alternative savings
products, such as mutual funds, traditional bank investments and retirement funding alternatives.

The Company may be adversely impacted by a decline in the ratings of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries.

Ratings with respect to claims-paying ability and financial strength have become an increasingly important factor
impacting the competitive position of insurance companies. Each of the rating agencies reviews its ratings of companies
periodically and there can be no assurance that current ratings will be maintained in the fiture. Claims-paying and
financial strength ratings are based upon factors relevant to policyowners and are not directed toward protection of
investors. Downgrades in the ratings of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries could adversely affect sales of their
products and could have a material adverse effect on the results of the Company’s operations.

Item 7A. Market Risk Disclosure

The information required by Item 7A is included in this Form 10-K under the heading *Asset/Liability Management and
Market Risk” beginning on page 23 of this Form 10-K.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by Item 8 is included in this Form 10-K beginning on page 35 of this Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

PART 11

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by Item 10 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2003 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”
and is incorporated herein by reference, and in Item 4A in Part I of this Form 10-K.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2003 Annual Meeting of ©
Stockholders, under the caption “Executive Compensation” and is incorporated herein by reference.

-28-




Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters

The information required by Item 12 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2003 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity
Compensation Plan Information” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by Item 13 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2003 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions™” and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14. Controls and Procedures

Within the 90-day period preceding the date of this report, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with
the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”) and Vice
President and Treasurer (the individual who acts in the capacity of the Chief Financial Officer), of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-14(c) under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934). Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management, including the CEO and Vice
President and Treasurer, concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective. There have
been no significant changes in the Company’s internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal
controls subsequent to the date of such evaluation.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
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The financial statements and financial statement schedules filed as part of this report are listed in the Index to
Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules on page 36 of this Form 10-K.

No reports on Form 8-K were filed during the fourth quarter of 2002.
The following Exhibits are numbered in accordance with the Exhibit Table of Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated October 5, 1995, among the Company, SIG Holdings Acquisition Corp.,
and SIG Holdings, Inc. )

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated June 11, 1998, by and among Delphi Financial Group, Inc., Matrix
Absence Management, Inc. and the Shareholders named therein !V

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 1, 1998, by and among Delphi Financial Group, Inc., Unicover
Managers, Inc., Unicover Intermediaries, LLC and the Shareholders named therein

Merger, Exchange and Release Agreement, dated April 30, 1999, by and among Delphi Financial Group, Inc.,
Unicover Managers, Inc., Unicover Intermediaries, LLC, Unicover Management Partners, LLC and the Buyers
named therein ¢

Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (Exhibit 3.2)®

Certg;lcate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (Exhibit
3.1

Amended and Restated By-laws of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (Exhibit 3.4) ®

Indenture, dated as of October 8, 1993, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and State Street Bank of
Connecticut (formerly Shawmut Bank Connecticut, N.A.) as Trustee (8.0% Senior Notes due 2003)
Amended and Restated Limited Liability Agreement of Delphi Funding L.L.C. dated as of March 25, 1997,
among Delphi Financial Group, Inc., as Managing Member, Chestnut Investors III, Inc., as Resigning Member,
and the Holders of Capital Securities described therein, as Members (Exhibit 4(a)®

Subordinated Indenture, dated as of March 25, 1997, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and Wilmington
Trust Company as Trustee (Exhibit 4(b))

Guarantee Agreement dated March 25, 1997, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc., as Guarantor, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee (Exhibit 4(c)) ®

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2002, among the Company, Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, and the Other Lenders Party Thereto s

Borrower Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2002, between the Company and Bank of America,
N.A., as Collateral Agent !'®

SIG Holdings Pledge Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2002, between SIG Holdings, Inc. and Bank of
America, N.A, as Collateral Agent as

Delphi Financial Group, Inc. Second Amended and Restated Employee Nonqualified Stock Option Plan, as
amended May 23, 2001 (Exhibit 10.1)*®

The Delphi Capital Management, Inc. Pension Plan for Robert Rosenkranz (Exhibit 10.3) @
Secon(cllé)Amendment to the Delphi Capital Management, Inc. Pension Plan for Robert Rosenkranz (Exhibit
10.2)

Investment Consulting Agreement, dated as of November 10, 1988, between Rosenkranz Asset Managers, LLC
(as assignee of Rosenkranz, Inc.) and the Company (Exhibit 10.6) ®

Investment Consulting Agreement, dated as of November 6, 1988, between Rosenkranz Asset Managers, LLC
(as assignee of Rosenkranz, Inc.) and Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company (Exhibit 10.7)

Assumption Reinsurance Agreement, dated as of December 5, 1988, between John Alden Life Insurance
Company and Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company (Exhibit 10.8) ¢

Delphi Financial Group, Inc. Long-Term Performance-Based Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.9) "%

2002 Bonus Criteria for Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Delphi Financial Group, Inc.
(Exhibit 10.1) 1

SIG Holdings, Inc. 1992 Long-Term Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.11)©

Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 5, 1995, among the Company and the affiliate stockholders
named therein (Exhibit 10.12)®

Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.13)”
Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (Exhibit 10.14)?
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Delphi Financial Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option Plan, as amended May 14, 2002

Indemnity Coinsurance Agreement and Administrative Services Agreement, dated as of October 3, 1994,
between Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company and Protective Life Insurance Company (Exhibit 10.16) ©
Indemnity Coinsurance Agreement, dated as of June 30, 1990, between Reliance Standard Life Insurance
Company and John Alden Life Insurance Company (with exhibit 1 thereto) (Exhibit 10.17)"

Indemnity Coinsurance Agreement, dated as of October 31, 1990, between Reliance Standard Life Insurance
Company and John Alden Life Insurance Company (with exhibit 1 thereto) (Exhibit 10.18) V

Indemnity Coinsurance Agreement, dated as of March 31, 1992, between Reliance Standard Life Insurance
Company and Washington National Life Insurance Company of New York (filed with the Trust Agreement
dated as of April 27, 1992, between Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company and Washington National Life

Indemnity Coinsurance Agreement, dated as of December 31, 1992, between Reliance Standard Life Insurance
Company and Lamar Life Insurance Company (Exhibit 10.20)

Employment Agreement, dated March 18, 1994, for Robert M. Smith, Jr. (Exhibit 10.21) ®

SIG Holdings, Inc. Note Agreement, dated as of May 20, 1994 (8.5% Senior Secured Notes due 2003) (Exhibit
10.22)® :
Borrower Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 20, 1994, between SIG Holdings, Inc. and the Chase Manhattan

Reinsurance Agreement, dated January 27, 1998, between Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company and

Casualty Excess of Loss Reinsurance Agreement, dated January 27, 1998, between Safety National Casualty
Corporation and Oracle Reinsurance Company Ltd. (Exhibit 10.26) '?

Commutation, Prepayment and Redemption Agreement, dated September 14, 2001, between Delphi Financial
Group, Inc., Safety National Casualty Corporation, Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company, Delphi
International Ltd. and Oracle Reinsurance Company Ltd. (Exhibit 10.27) ¥

(18)

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section

Certification of Vice President and Treasurer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated September 30,

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 13, 1990

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated January 30, 1996

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 21, 1997.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form: 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002.
Incorporated herein by reference 1o the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002.
Incorporated herein by reference to Note P to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere herein.

10.16
(Exhibit 10.1)*®
10.17
10.18
10.19
10.20
Insurance Company of New York) (Exhibit 10.19) ™
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
Bank, N.A., as collateral agent (Exhibit 10.23)©
10.25
Oracle Reinsurance Company Ltd. (Exhibit 10.25) %
10.26
10.27
11.1 Computation of Results per Share of Common Stock 7
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Company
23.1 Consent of Emst & Young LLP ag
24.1 Powers of Attorney ¥
99.1
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 '®
99.2
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 {'®
n
1993 (Registration No. 33-65828).
2)
3
(Registration No. 33-32827).
*
)]
6
)
(Registration No. 33-99164).
3]
&)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
an
(18) Filed herewith.

(d)  The financial statement schedules listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement
Schedules on page 36 of this Form 10-K are included under Item 8 and are presented beginning on page 60 of this
Form 10-K. All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and
therefore have been omitted.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

By: /s ROBERT ROSENKRANZ
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Capacity Date
Is/ ROBERT ROSENKRANZ Chairman of the Board, March 28, 2003
(Robert Rosenkranz) President and Chief Executive
Officer (Principal Executive
Officer)
* Director March 28, 2003
(Lawrence E. Daurelle)
* Director March 28, 2003
(Edward A. Fox)
* Director March 28, 2003
(Harold F. 1lg)
* Director March 28, 2003
(Lewis S. Ranieri)
* Director March 28, 2003
(Thomas L. Rhodes)
* Director March 28, 2003
(Donald A. Sherman)
/s/ ROBERT M. SMITH. JR. Director and Executive March 28, 2003
(Robert M. Smith, Jr.) Vice President
* Vice President and March 28, 2003
Thomas W. Burghart Treasurer (Principal
Accounting and Financial
Officer)
*BY: /s/ ROBERT ROSENKRANZ

Attomney-in-Fact
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

CERTIFICATION

I, Robert Rosenkranz, certify that;

1.

2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (the “registrant™);

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared,;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 28, 2003

/s/ ROBERT ROSENKRANZ

Robert Rosenkranz
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer
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CERTIFICATION

1, Thomas W. Burghart, certify that:

L

2.

5.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. {the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this annual report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annuai report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this annual report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-14 and 15d-14) for the registrant and have:

a. designed such disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this annual report is being prepared;

b. evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures as of a date within 90
days prior to the filing date of this annual report (the “Evaluation Date™); and

c. presented in this annual report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures based on our evaluation as of the Evaluation Date;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a. all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect
the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data and have identified for the
registrant’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls; and

b. any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal controls; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have indicated in this annual report whether or not there were
significant changes in internal controls or in other factors that could significantly affect internal controls
subsequent to the date of our most recent evaluation, including any corrective actions with regard to significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses.

Date: March 28, 2003

/s/{__THOMAS W. BURGHART

Thomas W. Burghart
Vice President and Treasurer
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS (Unaudited)
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31, 2002

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues excluding realized investment gains (losses) $ 197,891 $ 195,453 $ 193407 § 203,142
Realized investment gains (10SSES)....cccvruerueeaerrarenenne 95 218 (10,825) (17.957)
Total FEVENUES . e..ccverreesrrisei e ererscsveeveesvae s essee e enes 197,986 195,671 182,582 185,185
Operating iNCOME .........ocvvvrerirrrmrereesecseerensesiseseesensans 31,832 31,786 20,531 14,847
Income before extraordinary l0SS.....ccoveverviinicecenennenes 19,570 19,732 12,793 8,773
NEt INCOME ..ccviieeieiicecreeteiee e et 19,570 19,516 12,793 8,773
Basic results per share of common stock:
Income before extraordinary 10ss ......ococcccverercncnnnne. $ 095 $ 095 8 062 $ 0.42
NELINCOME. ...ccveeviereeieerevreeeerie e e esvae e s sae e res 0.95 0.94 0.62 0.42
Diluted results per share of common stock:
Income before extraordinary 10Ss .......c.eooeevcercecerec. $ 093 § 093 § 060 8§ 0.41
NEL INCOME....cviririirieererieeeeieereeseere s ceereeesasaasens 0.93 0.92 0.60 041
Year Ended December 31, 2001
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Revenues excluding realized investment gains (losses) $§ 162,371 $ 161,946 $ 165,465 $ 174,931
Realized investment gains (10SS€S).......cccocvverereneerunuenen 451 225 (6,926) (64.039)
Total rEVENUES ... e 162,822 162,171 158,539 110,892
Operating iNCOME ......ovrreerreecereireriaereereesescsmeseensranens 32,056 31,321 20,264 (72,278)
Income (loss) before extraordinary gain.........c........... 17,628 18,472 11,572 (48,613)
Net inComMe (0SS ..veiveevrereeiercereeeeserr e cresresveareeas 20,645 21,668 12,805 (48,613)
Basic results per share of common stock:
Income (loss) before extraordinary gain.................. $ 0.85 $ 0.90 $ 0.56 $ (236)
Net income (108S)....cocveeieiriciniiiriinine e e 1.01 1.06 0.62 (2.36)
Diluted results per share of common stock:
Income (loss) before extraordinary gain.................. $ 083 § 0.88 $ 0.55 $ (36)
Net INCOmME (l0SS)...ceuivrmiirirrerieiierieeeie e seee e eenaenas 0.98 1.03 0.61 (2.36)

The results of interim periods may not be indicative of the results for the entire year. Computations of results per share for
each quarter are made independently of results per share for the year. Due to transactions affecting the weighted average
number of shares outstanding in each quarter, the sum of quarterly results per share does not equal results per share for the
year. The calculation of loss before extraordinary gain per share and net loss per share in the fourth quarter of 2001
excludes equivalent shares attributable to in-the-money stock options which totaled 0.4 million since the inclusion of these
equivalent shares would have diluted the loss before extraordinary gain.

Results for the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2002 include pre-tax investment losses of $3.6 million, $5.9
million, $20.0 million and $24.6 million, respectively, due to the other than temporary declines in the market values of
certain securities. In the second quarter of 2002, the Company also repurchased $10.5 million aggregate principal amount
of the Senior Notes. Results for the third quarter of 2001 include an after-tax charge of $2.5 million, or $0.12 per share,
for losses attributable to the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. Results for the fourth quarter of 2001 include an
after-tax charge of $26.3 million, or $1.28 per share, for losses attributable to the reserve strengthening primarily related
to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business. This reserve
strengthening charge also included after-tax losses of $4.9 million, or $0.24 per share, related to the World Trade Center
attacks. The Company also recognized pre-tax investment losses of $0.6 million, $12.5 million and $66.2 million in the
second, third and fourth quarters, respectively, of 2001, due to the other than temporary declines in the market values of
certain securities. In 2001, the Company also repurchased $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities and
$8.0 million principal amount of the Senior Notes. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and Notes C, D, E and K to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Shareholders and Directors
Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the related consolidated statements of income (loss), shareholders’ equity, and cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002. Our audits also included the financial statement
schedules listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules. These financial
statements and schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2002, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes A and I to the Consolidated Financial Statements, in 2002 the Company changed its method of
accounting for goodwill.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 5, 2003

-37-



DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES |
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Revenue:
Premium and fee INCOME.......cerveireiieree et scr e veeareraeeses
Net INVeSMENt INCOIME...cc.uiiviieeiirereierierreiereiieesresssessernesoreeeresssesssass
Net realized INVeStMENt 10SSES ...ocveiveiirreeicericr e vree e eesbreeans

Benefits and expenses:
Benefits, claims and interest credited to policyholders.....................
COMMUSSIONS . c.erevenrerreriereienitereer ettt e e bbb ese e

Amortization of cost of business acquired ...........cccoeiiiciniiiinnienn,
Other operating EXPenSES........c.cvrereeereriereirertrrerereresesertsesersistsasesnenss

Operating INCOME ........ccvveevreerieeerrerierertsreesessesisiesssesaesesesssesessesesseses
Interest expense:

Corporate debl ........c.oeviiiiniiiiiie e
Dividends on Capital Securities of Delphi Funding L.L.C. .............

Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit)
and extraordinary (l0Ss) ZaiN........cccccerivvirnrreverrererreeeraeserercrrenns
Income tax expense (benefit) .......coecerrriiirenniencc e
Income (loss) before extraordinary (loss) gain ........cccoeevvveerrecencne
Extraordinary (loss) gain, net of income tax (benefit) expense...............
Net iNCOME (10S5) . euverirerereicrerieerieereesreresreerenseesrr e aesre s saeseessaessessnes
Basic results per share of common stock:
Income (loss) before extraordinary (108S) gain .......co.ocveverrererevcrennn.
Net iNCOME (J0SS) ..veiiirieierereeirreeirreierseree s s et verntesessastesaesesnanessenns
Diluted results per share of common stock:

Income (loss) before extraordinary (10ss) gain .......coceveevericrircnennnnns
NEt INCOME (JOSS) .evricueriaieiiiiiiie ettt nie e e raae vt sre e e

Dividends paid per share of common stock...........occcerieviriccnrennenene

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
$ 627,857 $ 507,204 $ 466,357
162,036 157,509 184,576
_(28.469) (70.289) (138.047)
761.424 594.424 512,886
471,984 416,996 342,758
43,169 39,636 40,327
45,742 34,700 29,726
101,533 91,729 80,751
662,428 583,061 493,562
98,996 11,363 19,324
9,025 11,604 21,457
3.356 5,808 9,311
12,381 17.412 30,768
86,615 (6,049) (11,444)
25,747 (5.108) (8.151)
60,868 941) (3,293)
(216) 7.446 -
$ 60652 § 6505 § _(3,293)
$ 2.93 $ 0.04) § (0.16)
2.92 0.32 (0.16)
$ 2.86 $ 004 $ (0.16)
2.85 0.32 (0.16)
$ 0.29 $ 028 $ -

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

December 31,
2002 2001
Assets;

Investments:

Fixed maturity securities, available for sale ........c.ococconevinenrncnninece $ 2,495,629 $ 2,223,789

ShOrt-terM INVESIMENES ....otieveiecieiiiiticre et sste e b ereeberbestsesesaresrenreeenserees 204,890 92,862

Other INVESHMENTS . c..cviereeereeiiereeeeeierceesenssesestrate s esresereressnesssssersrssasssersesanssens 115,532 110,563

2,816,051 2,427,214

CaSH Lttt e e s bbb bR ee e nsbas b e be b ebe e cheraabenn 27,669 11,682
Cost of bUSINESS ACQUITE .....o.eeeieirrecierteeeeries ettt sr e e e e 168,110 168,894
REIMSUrANCE TECEIVADIES. ... iviiieeiinviercirisirseeressiteceetisnesaess e ass e smse s eeesasssesnsssassesns 392,659 388,910
GOOAWILL....c.oeieiiiieieieee ettt serae bbb et b sre b e s srce e sasaseneen 93,929 93,929
T BSSELS . cuveuecueeeeteeeesreeevei st e e etrste s ee b e b e varabesbee e eseebe e e saeebe st asaensesbentanasseeesreenenren 163,371 171,834
Assets held in Separate aCCOUNL ........cceeverieeeeerinririe ittt saese e saeses sresneneas 73.153 73.683

TOtAl ASSELS .ecverriuieeriieetere et mm et e et re e resaaaestsrn e e reesrerae b e besatsr s e rreunenreesanareee $3734942  § 3.336,146

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:

Future policy benefits:

LE et et ettt et r e $ 229,743 $ 222363

Disability and accident.......cc.cooeveeciimiriniireeie et et 390,717 348,267
Unpaid claims and claim expenses:

LUL ittt ree sttt b e eae e st e st be bt e bttt et e enneeamsesensens 40,627 34,616

Disability and aCCident ..........ccccveeererrerinirereereesteee st e . 175,271 167,628

CASUAMY ...ttt ettt sttt ea s et ers et eteersseentennriea 534,856 506,778
Policyholder account BalanCes...........cocovvurevieceeriermeeriiets e v ceeeeaveaesns e vesessesaesean 909,961 817,543
COTPOTate AEbL......cvvirieieiriiete ettt et re s et se et b sass s ba e bessesen 118,139 125,675
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank.............coooviieeiiiiiocieieeceeeeeieeeeeeeeeeees 207,990 162,909
Other liabilities and policyholder funds........ccccccooivevevererieiniinin e 346,900 268,962
Liabilities related to separate aCCOUNL..........ccreeeiriereerireerereirriereeeseareseseesaesesaessassanas 63,033 63,361

Total HAbIlIIES ....coveeveeerierieevecre et e enes 3.017.237 2,718,102
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable Capital Securities of Delphi

Funding L.L.C. holding solely junior subordinated deferrable interest

debentures 0f the COMPANY .......cvvvirrcerrresreririerecreere e s enebesesseasanens 36.050 36,050
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred Stock, $.01 par; 10,000,000 shares authorized...........ccooevevvnvnenens - -

Class A Common Stock, $.01 par; 40,000,000 shares authorized;

18,927,855 and 17,763,428 shares issued and outstanding, respectively....... 189 178
Class B Common Stock, $.01 par; 20,000,000 shares authorized;

3,194,905 and 4,132,688 shares issued-and outstanding, respectively........... 32 41
Additional paid-in capital..........cccoevvicerieiirree s 373,356 369,385
Accumulated other comprehensive income (108} .....cvvieiiiicerinieeienciieneieenes 30,003 (10,985)
Retained €arnings ..ot et 329,574 274,874
Treasury stock, at cost; 1,505,290 shares of Class A Commoen Stock ................ _(51.499) (51,499)

Total shareholders” eqUItY..........cocoocereeernriiinre et e 681.655 581,994

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity........cccocoiriciirniiininiinnnnen $3734942  § 3,336,146

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Other comprehensive income:
Decrease in net unrealized
depreciation on investments.
Comprehensive income................

Issuance of stock, exercise of
stock options and share
CONVEISIONS....ccecereeenvnreeesivnerns

Acquisition of treasury stock.......

Balance, December 31, 2000 ......

Net inCome ..c.ooveereerrireereerireneninn
Other comprehensive income:
Decrease in net unrealized
depreciation on investments.
Comprehensive income.............

Issuance of stock, exercise of
stock options and share
CONVETSIONS....ovvrieeereeivreceennees

Acquisition of treasury stock.......

Cash dividends .............cccorneenennn.

Balance, December 31, 2001 ......

Net income ..c.ocoececeerereenineninee
Other comprehensive income:
Increase in net unrealized
appreciation on investments.
Net unrealized loss on cash
flow hedge.......covermmrrvennrnee
Minimum pension liability
adjustment.........c.cocoicnenen
Comprehensive income................

Issuance of stock, exercise of
stock options and share
CONVEISIONS....vevivreeirececaerserarnns

Cash dividends .........cccoevvivennnes

Balance, December 31, 2002 ......

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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(Dollars in Thousands)
Accumulated
Other
Class A Class B Additional Comprehensive
Common Common Paid-in (Loss) Retained Treasury
Stock Stock Capital Income Earnings Stock Total
$ 163 § 52 $364,390 $(101,465) $277,353 $ (39,076) $501417
. - - . (3,293) - (3,293)
- - - 47.843 - - 47.843
44,550
S 4 2,444 - - - 2,445
- - - - - _(10.219) (10.219)
$ 168 $ 48 $366,834 § (53,622) $274,060 $ (49,295) $538.193
- - - - 6,505 - 6,505
- - - 42,637 - - 42,637
49,142
10 €] 2,551 - - - 2,554
- - - - - (2,204) (2,204)
- - - - (5.691) - (5.691)
$ 178 §$ 41 $369,385 % (10,985) $274874 § (51,499) $581.994
- - - - 60,652 - 60,652
] ] - 44557 - - 44,557
- - - (3,290) - - (3,290)
- - - (279 - - (279)
101,640
11 %) 3,971 - - - 3,973
- - - - (5.952) - (5,952)
$ 189 % 32 $37335 $ 30003 $329.574 $ (51,499) $681,655




DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars.in. Thousands)

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

41-

Year Ended December 31
2002 2001 2000
Operating activities: ,
NELINCOME (LOSS) 1vrreemceceiriricieiete e emereeniresseesbescs s sconesessenesessssnas $ 60652 § 63505 $ (3,293)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Change in policy liabilities and policyholder accounts.................. 107,359 105,904 71,934
Net change in reinsurance receivables and payables ..................... (8,599) 39,670 (93,905)
Amortization, principally the cost of business acquired
ANd INVESHMENTS ......cevieveerieetiirecererresre st e esreeesareseresesessbesnrens 29,768 19,153 5,730
Deferred costs of business acquired..........coovvevererereereccrnererinrennees (68,725) (51,096) (51,840)
Net realized 1osses 0N INVESIMENTS .........ocerveerevereereerereeseresessesniess 28,469 70,289 138,047
Net change in trading account securities..........coovcvernninnncieiens 5,170 30,085 (15,957)
Net change in federal income tax liability .........ccccecrivvrccnnenanne 26,071 8,836 107
Extraordinary 1055 (ZaINn) ......ccoovureeermevererissrreeree et eeeienens 216 (7,446) -
1011371 O OO YOO SRRSO 28.162 6.772 (38.205)
Net cash provided by operating activities.............cccorverrcecnnn. 208.543 228,672 12,404
Investing activities:
Purchases of investments and loans made...........cccccoeiccvvriceennenncnnn (1,137,062} (967,272)  (1,013,044)
Sales of investments and receipts from repayment of loans................ 753,801 884,993 463,625
Maturities of HVESHMENTS .......ocvveiiiiiriiise et ere s er s beeeearens 183,050 87,077 72,494
Net change in short-term INVeStMents ..........ccccevvrrerenreerersarceesuesnenens {111,926) (49,062) 311,649
Sale OF 1eal €SLAL ... ..ivvvvieiiirireee ettt st b - - 16,656
Business aCqUISIIONS ......oveoverrreeieeeeniirrie et erte st srresees e eeneenns - (2,613) (2,610)
Change in deposit in separate aCCOUNL ...........ccrerceieirerereresnnseerenacns 202 (184) (631)
Net cash used by investing activities..........ccecerevveererierecronncrennnn, (311.935) (47.061) _ (151.861)
Financing activities:
Deposits to policyholder accounts .........covrivreveerereeerninisininrecnnnns 140,336 94,922 164,203
Withdrawals from policyholder accounts.............cccoeevniivniccnnearennee (56,104) (62,733) (83,376)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
and exercise of StoCK OPHONS ......ccvivvevirreceererriienreece et 3,973 2,554 2,445
Dividends paid on common StocK.........ccceivevcnimnencninrscrneenneninnas (5,952) (5,691) -
Acquisition of treasury StOCK ......ccovvervviiivieieieneieniee v - (2,204) (10,219)
Borrowings under revoliving credit facilities..........ccccocvevveniveiiennnnns 49,000 102,000 19,000
Principal payments under revolving credit facilities..............c.co....... (37,000) (227,000) (26,000)
Principal payment under SIG Senior NOtes .........cccovvenierenrcnieniennns {9,000) (9,000) (9,000)
Repurchase of Semior NOES........oeevevermiiirierenreeceseseeeteree e esseseessenens (10,874) (8,284) -
Change in liability for Federal Home Loan Bank advances............... 45,000 13,500 73,500
Repurchase of Capital Securities .........cccvvverrnnnireescceneenncieene - (51,329) -
Change in liability for securities loaned or sold under agreements
0 TEPUICHASE. ....vevicrert ittt s s st ens - (29,008) 13.440
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities..............c........ 119.379 (182.273) 143,993
Increase (decrease) in Cash.........ccoooveeiceiiieececeeeece e e 15,987 (662) 4,536
Cash at beginning of year........ccoviiiiii 11.682 12,344 7,808
Cash at end 0f Year ........ccceeveveiveeie et reve s $§ 27669 § 11682 § 12344



DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2002

Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Delphi Financial Group, Inc.
(“DFG”) and all of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including, among others, Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company
(“RSLIC”), Safety National Casualty Corporation (“SNCC”), First Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company
(“FRSLIC™), Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company of Texas (“RSLIC-Texas™), Safety First Insurance Company
(“SFIC”), SIG Holdings, Inc. (“SIG”) and Matrix Absence Management, Inc. (“Matrix™). The term “Company” shall
refer herein collectively to DFG and its subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwise. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2001 and 2000
consolidated financial statements to conform with the 2002 presentation. As of December 31, 2002, Mr. Robert
Rosenkranz, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of DFG, by means of beneficial ownership of
the corporate general partner of Rosenkranz & Company and direct or beneficial ownership, had the power to vote all of
the outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock, which represents 49.9% of the voting power of the Company’s common
stock.

Nature of Operations. The Company manages all aspects of employee absence to enhance the productivity of its clients
and provides the related insurance coverages: short-term and long-term disability, primary and excess workers’
compensation, group life and travel accident. The Company’s asset accumulation business emphasizes fixed annuity
products. The Company offers its products and services in all fifty states and the District of Columbia. The Company’s
two reportable segments are group employee benefit products and asset accumulation products. The Company’s
reportable segments are strategic operating divisions that offer distinct types of products with different marketing
strategies. The Company evaluates the performance of its segments on the basis of income before extraordinary gain and
loss excluding realized investment gains and losses and before interest and income tax expense. The accounting policies
of the Company’s segments are the same as those used in the consolidated financial statements.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Investments. Fixed maturity securities available for sale are carried at fair value with unrealized appreciation and
depreciation included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of the related income tax
expense or benefit and the related adjustment to cost of business acquired. Short-term investments are carried at fair
value. Other investments consist primarily of equity securities, mortgage loans, trading account securities and amounts
receivable from investment sales. Equity securities are carried at fair value with unrealized appreciation or depreciation
included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of the related income tax expense or
benefit. Mortgage loans are carried at unpaid principal balances, including any unamortized premium or discount.
Trading account securities include bonds, common stocks and preferred stocks and are carried at fair value with
unrealized appreciation and depreciation included in income. Interest income, dividend income and realized gains and
losses from trading account securities are also included in income. Net realized investment gains and losses on investment
sales are determined under the specific identification method and are included in income. Declines in the fair value of
investments which are considered to be other than temporary are reported as realized losses. The Company evaluates,
among other things, the financial position and prospects of the issuer, conditions in the issuer’s industry and geographic
area, liquidity of the investment, changes in the amount or timing of expected future cash flows from the investment, and
recent downgrades of the issuer by a rating agency to determine if and when a decline in the fair value of an investment
below amortized cost is other than temporary. The length of time and extent to which the fair value of the investment is
lower than amortized cost and the Company’s ability and intent to retain the investment to allow for any anticipated
recovery in the investment’s fair value are also considered.

Cost of Business Acquired. Costs relating to the acquisition of new insurance business, such as commissions, certain costs
of policy issuance and underwriting and certain sales office expenses, are deferred when incurred. For certain annuity
products, these costs are amortized over the anticipated lives of the policies in relation to the present value of estimated
gross profits from such policies’ surrender charges and mortality, investment and expense margins. Deferred acquisition
costs for life, disability and accident products are amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the related
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2002

Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

policies in proportion to the ratio of the present value of annual expected premium income to the present value of the total
expected premium income. Deferred acquisition costs for casualty insurance products are amortized over the period in
which the related premium is earned. The present value of estimated future profits (“PVFP”), which was recorded in
connection with the acquisition of RSLIC and FRSLIC in 1987, is included in cost of business acquired. The PVFP
related to annuities is subject to accrual of interest on the unamortized balance at the credited rate and amortization is a
constant percentage of the present value of estimated future gross profits on the business. Amortization of the PVFP for
group life and disability insurance is at the discount rate established at the time of the acquisition. The unamortized
balance of cost of business acquired related to certain asset accumulation products is also adjusted for the impact on
estimated future gross profits as if net unrealized appreciation and depreciation on available for sale securities had been
realized at the balance sheet date. The impact of this adjustment, net of the related income tax expense or benefit, is
included in net unrealized appreciation and depreciation as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or
loss.

Receivables from Reinsurers. Receivables from reinsurers for future policy benefits, unpaid claims and claim expenses
and policyholder account balances are estimated in a manner consistent with the related liabilities associated with the
reinsured policies. -

Goodwill. Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No.
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have
indefinite lives are no longer amortized over a pre-determined period, but are required to be periodically reviewed for
impairment. Other intangible assets with finite lives continue to be amortized over their useful lives. An impairment loss
resulting from the adoption of SFAS No. 142 must be accounted for as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle and recognized in the entity’s first interim period financial statements following the effective date regardless of
the interim period in which the measurement is completed. Any subsequent impairment losses will be reflected within
operating results in the income statement. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company during the first half of 2002
completed its transitional tests for impairment of goodwill, and based on these tests, the Company determined that no
impairment of goodwill had occurred. See Note I to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Separate Account. The separate account assets and liabilities represent funds invested in a separately administered
variable life insurance product for which the policyholder, rather than the Company, bears the investment risk. The excess
of separate account assets over the related liabilities represents the Company’s deposit in the separate account, which is
maintained to support the operation of the separate account program. The Company receives a proportionate share of the
income or loss earned by the assets of the separate account, which it generally reinvests in the separate account.

Future Policy Benefits. The liabilities for future policy benefits for traditional nonparticipating business, excluding
annuity business, have been computed using a net level method. Mortality, morbidity and other assumptions are based
either on the Company’s past experience or various actuarial tables, modified as necessary for possible variations.
Changes in these assumptions could result in changes in these liabilities.

Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses. The liability for unpaid claims and claim expenses includes amounts determined on
an individual basis for reported losses and estimates of incurred but not reported losses developed on the basis of past
experience. The methods of making these estimates and establishing the resulting reserves are continually reviewed and
updated, with any resulting adjustments reflected in earnings currently. At December 31, 2002, disability and excess
workers’ compensation reserves with a carrying value of $609.4 million have been discounted at a weighted average rate
of 5.4%, with the rates ranging from 3.7% to 7.5%.

Policyholder Account Balances. Policyholder account balances are comprised of the Company’s reserves for interest-
sensitive insurance products, including annuities. Reserves for annuity products are equal to the policyholders’ aggregate

accumulated value.

Income Taxes. The Company files a life/non-life consolidated federal tax return, pursuant to an election made with the
2001 tax return. RSLIC-Texas and RSLIC are taxed as life insurance companies and comprise the life subgroup. The
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Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

non-life subgroup includes DFG, SNCC, FRSLIC, SFIC and the non-insurance subsidiaries of the Company. The
Company computes a balance sheet amount for deferred income taxes, which is included in other assets or other liabilities,
at the rates expected to be in effect when the underlying differences will be reported in the Company’s income tax returns.

Premium Recognition. The Company’s group insurance products consist primarily of short-duration contracts, and,
accordingly, premiums for these products are reported as earned over the contract period. Deposits for asset accumulation
products are recorded as liabilities rather than as premiums, since these products generally do not involve mortality or
morbidity risk.

Stock Options. The Company accounts for stock options in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion
(“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. Accordingly, no compensation
expense has been recognized in the accompanying financial statements for the Company’s stock option plans, because, in
each case, the exercise price of the options granted equaled the market price of the underlying stock on the date of grant.
The Company’s stock option plans are more fully described in Note O. On December 31, 2002, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and
Disclosure.” SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to provide alternative
methods of transition for a voluntary change to SFAS No. 123’s fair value method of accounting for stock-based
compensation. The Company has not yet determined whether it will adopt SFAS No. 123. The following table illustrates
the effect on net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share as if the Company had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net income (1055), a3 FEPOITED......vovvrererrerevericrererisesesiisssre s sinnas § 60652 § 6505 $ (3,293)
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards,

net of related taX effects......ccocovivinininciceiinin e (2,462) (2.539) __ (461D
Pro forma net income (10SS) .c.....cooevrieiiiiinenincii e $ 58,190 $§ 3966 $_ (7.904)
Earnings (loss) per share: v

Basic, as TEPOIEd........ccceivierererieieercrerereseenereernniesene oo esensnes $ 292 §$ 032 § (0.16)

Basic, Pro forma ........cocoeerciieienntinc et 2.80 0.19 0.39)

Diluted, 88 FePOTTEd......uevverirerereneeerrreeeresesetessessstssscseseesssessserens $ 28 % 032 § (0.16)

Diluted, pro forma ..ottt 2.72 0.19 (0.39)

The weighted average per share fair value used to calculate pro forma compensation expense for 2002, 2001 and 2000
was $13.22, $11.87 and $12.17, respectively. These fair values were estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following assumptions: risk-free interest rates ranging from 3.1% to 6.7%, volatility factors
of the expected market price of the Company’s common stock ranging from 31% to 33%, expected lives of the options
ranging from five to ten years and dividend yields ranging from 0.0% to 0.8%.

Statements of Cash Flows. The Company uses short-term, highly liquid debt instruments purchased with maturities of
three months or less as part of its investment management program and, as such, classifies these investments under the
caption “short-term investments” in its Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards. In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB
Statements No. 4, 44, and 62, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145 is
required to be adopted for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002, and therefore, the Company will adopt the new
requirements effective January 1, 2003. SFAS No. 145 rescinds SFAS No. 4, which required all gains and losses from
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extinguishment of debt to be aggregated and, if material, classified as an extraordinary item, net of the related income tax
effect. Accordingly, gains or losses from extinguishment of debt will be classified as income or loss from continuing
operations in the income statement unless the extinguishment qualifies as an extraordinary item under the provisions of
APB No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations — Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions.” Events or transactions that are both
unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence are classified as extraordinary items under APB No. 30. Upon adoption, any
gain or loss on extinguishment of debt previously classified as an extraordinary item in prior periods presented that does
not meet the criteria of APB No. 30 for such classification will be reclassified as required by SFAS No. 145. For the
twelve month period ending December 31, 2002 and 2001, the Company had an extraordinary (loss) gain, net of the
related income tax effect, of $(0.2) million, or $(0.01) per diluted share, and $7.4 million, or $0.36 per diluted share,
respectively, that would be reclassified to ongoing operations if SFAS No. 145 had been adopted early.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation (“FIN™) No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which
provides new criteria for determining whether or not consolidation accounting is required for a variable interest entity
(“VIE”). If applicable, FIN 46 would require consolidation of a VIE’s assets, liabilities and results of operations, with
minority interest recorded for the ownership share applicable to other investors. Where consolidation is not required,
additional disclosures may be required. The consolidation provisions of FIN 46 are effective for VIEs established
subsequent to January 31, 2003 and for pre-existing VIEs as of July 1, 2003. The Company has not yet determined the
impact, if any, the adoption of FIN 46 will have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Note B — Acquisitions

The consideration for the 1998 acquisition of Matrix included contingent consideration of up to $5.2 million in cash if
Matrix’s earnings met specified targets subsequent to the acquisition. Matrix met all of the specified targets, and
accordingly, the Company paid the $5.2 million of contingent consideration in two equal installments of $2.6 million
during 2000 and 2001, which has been included in goodwill. See Note I to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note C ~ Investments

The amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturity securities available for sale are as follows:

December 31, 2002
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed SeCUrities .......c.cooerveevvvinrerrecrnnnnns $ 596,861 $ 35,659 $ (4,187) $§ 628,333
COrporate SECUTIIES ..c.evveuvreievererirrerereraeseesneseeerennes 1,141,540 38,267 {27,018) 1,152,789
U.S. Treasury and cther U.S. Government
guaranteed securities .. 266,333 10,143 (493) 275,983
Obligations of U.S. states, mummpalmes and
political subdiviSiOns.......cccceeviieecereveninererneeees 424,921 17.057 (3.454) 438,524
Total fixed maturity securities ...........ccoenene. $2429655 § 101,126 § (35,152) § 2,495,629
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December 31, 2002
Note C ~ Investments — (Continued)
December 31, 2001
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed securities........ccocovreereriernrircennene $ 607,599 $ 15,935 $ (10,034) $ 613,500
CoTporate SECUNILIES .....coveeveeeiecireercerine e 996,720 16,827 (17,460) 996,087
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government
guaranteed SECUTIES ....c.ocvvvcrerervenererrenrereie e 251,925 1,410 (12,621) 240,714
Obligations of U.S. states, municipalities and
political subdivisions...........cccevvvenvcreniinerennene 393,087 2,149 (21,748) 373,488
Total fixed maturity SECUTItiEs .....vvvvvvrevrneenen $ 2,249,331 $ 36321 $ (61863) § 2223789

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturity securities available for sale at December 31, 2002, by contractual
maturity are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right
to call or prepay obligations, with or without prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

(dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed SECUTTLIES ........oeiviiverrrcreie e e $ 596,861 $ 628333

Other securities:
Less than ONe YEar........ccooiverrieiiiren e e e 86,460 86,948
Greater than 1, UP 10 5 YEAIS.....cvviveriercinieieee et et et e 429,592 439,021
Greater than 5, Up 10 10 YEAIS......ccoovevuvieivirieenininreeereieesennrsser e sseseneeresrenes 666,582 683,929
Greater than 10 YEATS........cccoveiiereeineineren s st 650,160 657,398
0] 7: 1 OSSOV TSR U ST $ 2429655 $ 2,495,629
Net investment income was attributable to the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000

(dollars in thousands)
Gross investment income:

Fixed MAaturity SECULItIES........ccvvrvererreriiireere s rererereaseseessesenees $ 167,109 $ 158,065 $ 161,973
ONET 1ttt e st eae e 11,130 15,311 37.607
178,239 173,376 199,580

Less: INVEStMENt €XPENSES ...ovvvvereeireriinieriieiisrenere e s r s 16.203 15.867 15.004

$ 162,036 § 157,509 § 184,576

The decline in net investment income from 2000 reflects the Company’s liquidation during the fourth quarter of 2000 of a
substantial majority of the investments in its investment subsidiaries. The proceeds from these sales were used in 2001 to
repay $150.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facilities, to repurchase $64.0
million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities of Delphi Funding L.L.C. and to repurchase $8.0 million principal
amount of the 8% Senior Notes due October 2003.
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Net realized investment (losses) gains arose from the following:

Year Ended December 31
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)
Fixed maturity SECUIILIES ....ccovvveererrreerereereesrereeerineeseseserseeescaserasssenns $ (15668) § (67,647) $(103,318)
EqUity SECUTIHIES..........ccveievrirrrrse e ss s (12,024) (843) 2,005
Other iNVESMENTS .....cccuccvevereeeiernrersrernreeerseerireseessseseessrsssesssesssesssnns (777) (1.799) (36.734)

S _(28469) § (70289) §(138.047)

Proceeds from sales of fixed maturity securities during 2002, 2001 and 2000 were $734.7 million, $633.9 million and
$581.6 million, respectively. Gross gains of $32.0 million, $17.3 million and $8.9 million and gross losses of $4.3
million, $6.7 million and $49.2 million, respectively, were realized on those sales. In 2002 and 2001, the net losses
realized on fixed maturity securities also include a provision for the other than temporary decline in the value of certain
securities of $43.3 million and $78.3 million, respectively. In 2000, the net losses realized on fixed maturity securities
included a provision of $4.5 million for the other than temporary decline in the value of certain securities and $58.5
million of losses on closed U.S. Treasury futures and options contracts, which were used to reduce the risk associated with
changes in the value of the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio. The fair value of these contracts declined during 2000
due to a decrease in market interest rates. The market value of the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio did not
correspondingly increase due to a widening of the spread between yields on corporate and other non-government fixed
maturity securities and yields on U.S. Treasury securities, which resulted from extraordinary market conditions. Sales of
fixed maturity securities and gross gains and losses from such sales do not include sales of securities classified as trading
account securities. In 2002 and 2001, losses on equity securities include a provision for the other than temporary decline
in the value of certain securities of $10.8 million and $1.0 million, respectively. Losses realized on other investments
include $0 million, $1.8 million and $40.7 million of losses associated with trading account securities in 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

The Company, at times, enters into futures and option contracts and interest rate swap agreements in connection with its
investment strategy in order to profit from short-term differences in price. These positions are carried at fair value with
gains and losses included in income. The Company recognized net investment losses of $5.5 million in 2000 related to
these instruments. The Company had no outstanding futures and option contracts and interest rate swap agreements
related to its investment strategy at December 31, 2002.

The change in unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments, primarily fixed maturity securities is included as a
component of accumulated other comprehensive income. See Note M to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Unrealized gains (losses) on trading securities included in net investment income totaled $1.0 million, $4.8 million and
$(4.5) million for 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Bonds and short-term investments with amortized costs of $57.1 million and $41.4 million at December 31, 2002 and
2001, respectively, are on deposit with various states’ insurance departments in compliance with statutory requirements.
Additionally, certain assets of the Company are restricted under the terms of annuity reinsurance agreements. These
agreements provide for the distribution of assets to the reinsured companies covered under the agreements prior to any
general distribution to policyholders in the event of the Company’s insolvency or bankruptcy. The amount of assets
restricted for this purpose was $68.8 million and $73.7 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

At December 31, 2002 and 2001, approximately 41% of the Company’s total invested assets were comprised of corporate
fixed maturity securities, which are diversified across economic sectors and industry classes. Mortgage-backed securities
comprised 22% and 25% of the Company’s total invested assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The
Company’s mortgage-backed securities are diversified with respect to size and geographic distribution of the underlying
mortgage loans. The Company also invests in certain non-investment grade securities as determined by nationally
recognized statistical rating agencies. Non-investment grade securities included in fixed maturity securities had fair values
of $172.3 million and $206.4 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Non-investment grade securities
constituted 6.1% and 8.6% of total invested assets at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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The fair value of the Company’s investment in the securities of any one issuer or securities backed by a single pool of
assets, excluding U.S. Government obligations, whose value represented 10% or more of shareholders’ equity at
December 31, 2002 was as follows: Tersk LLC - $100.1 million and Bankers Trust Corporation Secured Portfolio Notes,
Series 1998-1 - $88.5 million. The Company’s investment in Tersk LLC consisted of senior notes of $50.0 million and
redeemable preferred securities of $50.1 million at December 31, 2002.

Note D - Disability, Accident and Casualty Future Policy Benefits and Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses

The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending disability, accident and casualty future policy

benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses:
Year Ended December 31,

2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of year, net of reinsurance...........cccceecevercrcannnn $ 801,225 $ 657,565 $ 655,179
Add provisions for claims and claim expenses incurred, net
of reinsurance, occurring during:

CUITENE YEAT ....coviieiieiirir ettt cse e st e se s e st re s s 280,657 243,306 201,062
PriOT YEAIS.....vivicieiriiieriineieiircete st sresae st st et ere st e e be s 1,331 6.538 (9.703)
Incurred claims and claim expenses during the current
year, Net Of TEINSULANCE ....c.evviireeriecieinrceeereecere e st seeennene 281,988 249.844 191,359

Deduct claims and claim expenses paid, net of reinsurance,
occurring during:

Current year.........ccoceneneen. Levereeemannnaesaaatetateeatrrsearttreeabteeerrtaeeesreaesanes 71,545 56,625 50,290
PHHOT YEAIS....c.evieeiriiirr ettt esaanes 149,313 49,559 138.683
220,858 106.184 188,973

Balance at end of year, net of reinsurance..........coeeeeeviereinns e 862,355 801,225 657,565
Reinsurance receivables at end of year, .........coceeievenciivennncncnnneennee 238.489 221.448 276,275
Balance at end of year, gross of reinsurance............cccooveveevvnrevcrennnncns $1.100.844  $1,022673 $_933.840

Balance Sheets:
Future policy benefits:

Disability and @cCident...........coceveeeveriiriceiririierece e aeas $ 390,717 § 348,267
Unpaid claims and claim expenses:

Disability and accident.........ccccevevvvereneiirirecieerienienenresre e 175,271 167,628

CASUAMLY ...ttt rnes 534,856 506,778

$1,100.844  $1,022,673

The provision for claims and claim expenses in 2001 includes a charge of $44.3 million for reserve strengthening
primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business.
Included in this charge is an addition to excess workers’ compensation case reserves of $9.0 million and losses incurred
but not reported of $24.0 million. This charge also includes reported workers’ compensation losses of $6.3 million and a
$5.0 million addition to long-term disability incurred but not reported reserves attributable to the terrorist attacks on the
World Trade Center.

In 2002, the change in the provision for claims and claim expenses incurred in prior years reflects the accretion of
discounted reserves offset by favorable claims development. In 2001, the change in the provision for claims and claim
expenses incurred in prior years reflects the accretion of discounted reserves and unfavorable claims development. In
2000, the change in the provision for claims and claim expenses incurred in prior years reflects favorable claims
development offset by the accretion of discounted reserves. The Company’s insurance policies do not provide for the
retrospective adjustment of premiums based on claim experience.
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Note E — Corporate Debt

In December 2002, the Company obtained a new $150.0 million revolving credit facility with a group of lenders
comprised of major banking institutions (the “Credit Agreement”), which replaced the existing $140.0 million revolving
credit facilities scheduled to expire in April 2003. The Company had outstanding borrowings of $37.0 million under its
Credit Agreement and $25.0 million under its revolving credit facilities at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
The borrowings under the Credit Agreement accrue interest at floating rates, which are indexed to various market interest
indices, and non-use fees are charged on unused portions of the commitments. The final maturity of the Credit Agreement
is December 16, 2005. The Credit Agreement is secured by a security interest in all of the common stock of RSLIC-
Texas, the common stocks of substantially all of the Company’s non-insurance subsidiaries and, on a subordinated basis,
the common stock of SNCC. The debt is also subject to certain restrictions and financial covenants considered ordinary
for this type of credit agreement. They include, among others, the maintenance of certain financial ratios, minimum
statutory surplus and risk-based capital requirements for RSLIC and SNCC, and certain investment, indebtedness,
dividend and stock repurchase limitations. As of December 31, 2002, the Company was in compliance in all material
respects with the restrictions and covenants in the Credit Agreement.

At December 31, 2002, the Company had $66.5 million of 8% senior notes due October 2003 (the “Senior Notes™)
outstanding, The Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and, as such, are effectively subordinated
to all existing and future obligations of the Company’s subsidiaries, including the insurance subsidiaries’ obligations to
policyholders. The Senior Notes are not redeemable prior to maturity or entitled to any sinking fund. In certain instances,
holders of the Senior Notes have the right to require the Company to repurchase any or all of the Senior Notes owned by
such holders at 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest. At various times during the
second quarter of 2002, the Company repurchased $10.5 million aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes. The
Company recognized an extraordinary loss of $0.2 million, net of an income tax benefit of $0.1 million, in connection
with these repurchases. In June 2001, the Company repurchased $8.0 million principal amount of the Senior Notes and
recognized an extraordinary loss of $0.1 million, net of an income tax benefit of $0.1 million, in connection with this
repurchase. The terms of the indenture pursuant to which the Senior Notes were issued contain certain covenants and
restrictions which set forth, among other things, limitations on incurrence of indebtedness by the Company and its
subsidiaries, limitations on payments of dividends on and repurchases of stock of the Company and limitations on
transactions with stockholders and affiliates. As of December 31, 2002, the Company was in compliance in all material
respects with the terms of the indenture.

Subject to market conditions, the Company may refinance its outstanding borrowings under the Credit Agreement and its
Senior Notes prior to maturity through the issuance of debt securities covered by the Company’s shelf registration.
However, no assurance can be given that such an offering will be commenced. To mitigate the risk of interest rates rising
before such refinancing could be completed, the Company entered into a treasury rate lock agreement, with a notional
amount of $150.0 million, pursuant to which the Company will receive (or make) a single payment at the conclusion of the
agreement, depending on the amount by which the market yield on the specified U.S. Treasury security rises (or falls), and
the extent of such change, over the term of the agreement. The agreement was entered into in September 2002 with a term
of one year. At December 31, 2002, the net unrealized loss on the treasury rate lock agreement included in accumulated
other comprehensive income was $3.3 million, net of an income tax benefit of $1.8 million. Under SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” any gains or losses realized on the treasury rate lock
agreement would be deferred and amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of any debt securities issued
in the refinancing, or recognized in income, if, and at the time, the Company concludes the refinancing is improbable.

In 1996, the Company assumed $45.0 million of SIG’s 8.5% senior secured notes (the “SIG Senior Notes™), which are
collateralized by all of the common stock of SNCC. The SIG Senior Notes began maturing in $9.0 million annual
installments in 1999 with a final maturity in May 2003 and have an outstanding principal balance of $9.0 million at
December 31, 2002. The terms of the note agreement pursuant to which the SIG Senior Notes were issued contain certain
covenants and restrictions, which set forth, among others, minimum statutory surplus requirements for SNCC, minimum
consolidated equity requirements for SIG, as well as the maintenance of certain financial ratios. As of December 31,
2002, SIG was in compliance in all material respects with the terms of the note agreement.
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In conjunction with the acquisition of Matrix, the Company issued $5.7 million of 8% subordinated notes due June 2003
(the “Subordinated Notes”). The Subordinated Notes are unsecured obligations of the Company, and payments of
principal and interest on the notes are subordinated to all of the Company’s senior debt obligations.

Interest paid by the Company on its corporate debt totaled $8.9 million, $12.2 million and $21.0 million during 2002,
2001 and 2000, respectively.

Note F ~ Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

The Company, through its insurance subsidiaries, maintains a program in which various investments are financed using
advances from the Federal Home Loan Banks of Pittsburgh, Dallas and Des Moines (collectively, the “FHLB”). At
December 31, 2002 and 2001, advances from the FHLB, including accrued interest, totaled $208.0 million and $162.9
million, respectively. Interest expense on the advances is included as an offset to investment income on the financed
securities. The average interest rate on the outstanding advances was 5.9% and 6.6% at December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. The advances, of which $195.0 million were issued at a fixed rate and $12.0 million were issued at a
variable rate, have a weighted average term of 5.5 years at December 31, 2002. These advances are collateralized by
fixed maturity securities with a fair value of $239.3 million.

Note G — Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) is reconciled to the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to
income before income tax expense (benefit) and extraordinary (loss) gain as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)
Federal income tax expense (benefit) at statutory rate ..........ccccceeue... $ 30315 § (2,i16) $ (4,003)
Dividends received deduction and tax-exempt income..........coccvnnne (6,206) (5,104) (6,160)
101 1= SO U U PO S UR RSO PP TP 1.638 2,112 2,012

§ 25747 & _(5108) § (8,151)

All of the Company’s current and deferred income tax expense (benefit) is due to federal income taxes as opposed to state
income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the book basis and tax basis of assets
and liabilities using tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The components of the
net deferred tax hability are as follows:

December 31,

2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Cost 0f buSINess CQUITEd.........cceririrreririeiriin e e erse e $ 54777 § 46,764
Future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim eXpenses ..........oceceevvvveenirieeverienns 35,860 36,831
IIEVESTIMEIIES ovvveieeiieieceneiisesie e ees e e et e eeeeeee st eeeabasesesntsasassssaesersbetassssaeassrsnsesannearsstenasarssnn 15,853 -
L0117 OO OO PSP RORUSTTSRP 9,302 6.147
Gross deferred tax Habilities .......oovvverierceinieinrnee e e 115,792 89.742
Future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim eXpenses ........cooveriincinineniiiennns (8,303) (8,769)
IOVESTITIEIILS ..ottt st s bbbt s b et s bbb - (4,296)
Other HabIltIES .c.vvveveecierercrcrcece ettt reb e sen (6,570) (6,570)
Cost of business acquired and Other............c..cooooeviiivcinncinncne e (9,924) (9,182)
Net operating 10sS CarryfOrwards .........ocveveriiereeiiree ettt rne e sae e ene s (11,261) (29,151)
Minimum tax credit Carryforwards...........coccerrirrineie i e (3.323) (8.393)
Gross deferred tax aSSELS......c..eviveeriinieririesinitse et e s e seens (39.381) (66.361)
Net deferred tax HabIlity .o..ooveevreiveeieenieee et esaeere e e e eear e $ 76411 $ 23381
Deferred tax expense (BENeTit) ........coccoviiiiiiiiii ittt $ 31210 $ (21,788)
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Current tax (benefit) expense, current tax recoverable and income taxes paid and refunded are as follows:

As of or for the Year Ended
December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)
Current tax (Denefit) EXPenSse ....ccoeevvverciererereriiriereeeiee st st eee e reens $ (5463) § 16,680 $ (20,807)
Current tax FECOVETADIC .vvviuneriieciiieeeeeerecrierecrre e s e s e s e s e e e raeaans 11,292 6,286 41,038
Income taxes Paid..........ocieiieiereriinieereeie ettt snenae e e en s et ee 17,765 23,074 20,734
INCOME tax TefUNAS ....ooviiiicicceccricere e s e e e et s n s eaes 19,031 37,785 29,722

At December 31, 2002, DFG, SNCC and the other non-life insurance subsidiaries have net operating loss carryforwards of
$32.2 million, which will expire in 2021, and alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $3.3 million, which do not
expire.

Tax years through 1996 are closed to further assessment by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”). In 2002, the IRS began
its examination of the 1997 through 2000 tax years. Management believes any future adjustments that may result from
IRS examinations of tax returns will not have a material impact on the consolidated financial position, liquidity, or results
of operations of the Company.

Note H —- Present Value of Future Profits

A summary of the activity related to the PVFP asset, which is included in cost of business acquired on the consolidated
balance sheet, is shown below:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of YEar......cevevvveveecerireieieresenrnncsrsaernenerenes $ 13,693 $ 15703 $ 18,422
Interest 8CCTURH ... ccocvri it seere e sre e e 182 287" ' 337
AMOTHZAION <.ttt eeste e ese ettt secereesesrseseotserserssssoreeses (2,677) (2.297) (3.056)

Balance at end of YEar .........cocveivevvcie e § 11,198 § 13693 § 15703

An estimate of the percentage of the December 31, 2002 PVFP balance to be amortized over each of the next five years is
as follows: 2003 - 20%, 2004 - 20%, 2005 - 20%, 2006 - 19% and 2007 - 15%.

Note I - Goodwill

At January 1, 2002, unamortized goodwill of $60.9 million was attributable to the acquisition of SNCC, whose operations
are included in the group employee benefits segment, and $33.0 million was attributable to the acquisition of Matrix,
whose operations do not meet the quantitative threshold for reportable segments and, therefore, are reported in the “other”
segment.

Income before extraordinary loss was $60.9 million, or $2.93 per share ($2.86 per share assuming dilution), for the year
ended December 31, 2002. Income (loss) before extraordinary gain, excluding the effects of goodwill amortization, for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 would have been $2.3 million, or $0.11 per share ($0.11 per share assuming
dilution) and $(0.2) million, or $(0.01) per share ($(0.01) per share assuming dilution), respectively. The following table
provides a reconciliation of reported net income to adjusted net income and the related eamnings per share data as if the
provisions of SFAS No. 142 related to goodwill had been adopted as of January 1, 2000:
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Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Net income (108S), 88 TEPOMEd.......ccrerererererierererenrrnecnsereseenererenens $ 60652 $ 6,505 § (3,293)
Add back: goodwill amortization .......c..oeecevveereveciercreninmecsinnnens s - 3.198 3.112
Adjusted net inCoOme (10SS).......cvererrrererrireiereirineseessresesesnsees $§ 60652 $ 9703 §  (181)
Basic results per share of common stock:
Net income (10ss), a5 TEPOrted .....ccocevvrerireieninene e $ 2.92 $ 0.32 $ (0.16)
Add back: goodwill amortization............ccccevniivniiinnnnnn e - 0.16 0.15
Adjusted net Income (105S) ..vvvrerrernrereieeeerreninreeesreenseeessnens b 2.92 $ 0.48 $ (0.0
Diluted results per share of common stock:
Net income (1055), 5 TEPOTED ...coeevvcurcriiierneerrrecre e $ 28  § 032 $ (0.16)
Add back: goodwill amortization.........c..coccvvveenreverereninrnienenes - 0.16 0.15
Adjusted net income (1058} ......ocrvreeveene. SRR 3 2.85 h) 0.48 i) (0.01)

Note J — Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are shown below. Because fair values for all balance sheet items
are not required to be disclosed by SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” the aggregate
fair value amounts presented below do not necessarily represent the underlying value of the Company.

December 31,

2002 2001
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
(dollars in thousands)
Assets; '
Fixed maturity securities, available for sale............... $ 2,495,629 $ 2,495,629 $ 2,223,789 § 2,223,789
Short-term INVEStMENLS ....c.covvverirereieerverreseeeeresenenns 204,890 204,890 92,862 92,862
Other INVESIMENLS ....oovviiiveiicieee e e e 115,532 115,532 110,563 110,563
Assets held in separate account ...........coceeovuvevericcnnee 73,153 73,153 73,683 73,683
Liabilities:
Policyholder account balances.............cccoeeceneereriecenen 847,125 852,227 735,557 731,904
Corporate debt .........ccoevereirininennenirenerrteee e 118,139 120,094 125,675 128,337
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank................. 207,990 228,847 162,909 172,511
Liabilities related to separate account.......coueeureerenne 63,033 63,033 63,361 63,361

The fair values for fixed maturity securities and short-term investments have been obtained from broker-dealers, nationally
recognized statistical organizations and, in the case of certain structured notes, by reference to the fair values of the
underlying investments. Securities acquired through private placements in the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio that are
not actively traded in a liquid market and do not have other mechanisms for their sale totaled $67.6 million and $97.8
million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Company estimates the fair value of these securities primarily
by comparison to similar securities with quoted market prices. If quotes are not available on similar securities, the
Company estimates fair value based on recent purchases or sales of similar securities or other internally prepared
valuations. Key assumptions used in this process include the level of risk-free interest rates, risk premiums, and
performance of underlying coliateral, if applicable. All such investments are classified as available for sale. The
Company’s ability to liquidate these investments in a timely manner, if necessary, may be adversely impacted by the lack
of an actively traded market. Historically, the Company has not realized amounts on dispositions of non-marketable
investments materially in excess of the gain or loss amounts estimated by the Company under this valuation
methodology. The Company believes that its estimates reasonably reflect the fair values of these securities; however, had
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there been an active market for these securities during the applicable reporting periods, the market prices may have been
materially different than the amounts reported. The carrying values for all other invested assets approximate fair values

based on the nature of the investments. The carrying values of separate account assets and liabilities are equal to fair

~ value.

Policyholder account balances are net of reinsurance receivables and the carrying values have been decreased for related
acquisition costs of $38.1 million and $55.3 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Fair values for
policyholder account balances were determined by deducting an estimate of the future profits to be realized from the
business, discounted at a current interest rate, from the adjusted carrying values.

The Company believes the fair value of its variable rate long-term debt and variable rate advances from the FHLB are
equal to their carrying value. The Company pays variable rates of interest on this debt and these FHLB advances, which
reflect changed market conditions since the time the terms were negotiated. The fair values of the Senior Notes, the SIG
Senior Notes and the Subordinated Notes are based on the expected cash flows discounted to net present value. The fair
values for fixed rate advances from the FHLB were calculated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the interest
rates for the advances at the balance sheet date.

Note K — Capital Securities of Delphi Funding L.L.C.

In 1997, Delphi Funding L.L.C. (“Delphi Funding™), a subsidiary of the Company, issued $100.0 million liquidation
amount of 9.31% Capital Securities, Series A (the “Capital Securities™) in a public offering. During 2001, the Company
repurchased $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities in the open market. The Company recognized an
extraordinary gain of $7.6 million, net of income tax expense of $4.1 million, in connection with these repurchases. In
connection with the issuance of the Capital Securities and the related purchase by the Company of all of the common
limited liability company interests in Delphi Funding, the Company issued to Delphi Funding $103.1 million principal
amount of 9.31% junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures, Series A, due 2027 (the “Junior Debentures”).
Interest on the Junior Debentures is payable semiannually, but may, subject to certain exceptions, be deferred at any time
or from time to time for a period not exceeding five years with respect to each deferral period, in which event distributions
on the Capital Securities will also be deferred and the Company will not be permitted to pay cash dividends or make
payments on any junior indebtedness. No interest payments on the Junior Debentures have been deferred since their
issuance. The distribution and other payment dates on the Capital Securities correspond to the interest and other payment
dates on the Junior Debentures. The Junior Debentures are not redeemable prior to March 25, 2007, but the Company has
the right to dissolve Delphi Funding at any time and distribute the Junior Debentures to the holders of the Capital
Securities. Pursuant to the related transaction documents, the Company has, on a subordinafed basis, guaranteed all
payments due on the Capital Securities.

Dividends paid by Delphi Funding on the outstanding Capital Securities totaled $3.4 million, $7.2 million and $9.3
million during 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Note L - Shareholders’ Equity and Restrictions

The holders of the Company’s Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share, and the holders of the
Company’s Class B Common Stock are entitled to the number of votes per share equal to the lesser of (1) the number of
votes such that the aggregate of all outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock will be entitled to cast 49.9% of all votes
represented by the aggregate of all outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock or (2) ten
votes per share. In 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend of $0.07
per share, payable on the Company’s outstanding Class A and Class B Common Stock. In the fourth quarter of 2002, the

Company’s Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company’s quarterly cash dividend to $0.08 per share. During
2002 and 2001, the Company paid cash dividends on its capital stock in the amount of $6.0 million and $5.7 million,
respectively. Under the Credit Agreement, cash dividends on, together with any repurchases or redemptions by the
Company of, its capital stock, may not, during any fiscal year, exceed 5% of the Company’s Consolidated Equity (as
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defined in the Credit Agreement) as of the end of the preceding fiscal year, with unused amounts carrying over to
subsequent fiscal years. The aggregate limitation for 2003 on dividend payments and/or repurchases or redemptions of its
capital stock by the Company will be equal to $57.5 million. The Credit Agreement also permits additiona! repurchases
by the Company of its capital stock in an aggregate amount of up to $20.0 million over the term of the Credit Agreement.
The Company’s life insurance subsidiaries had consolidated statutory capital and surplus of $257.2 million and $248.1
million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Consolidated statutory net income for the Company’s life insurance
subsidiaries was $29.5 million, $2.2 million and $56.6 million, in 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The consolidated
statutory net income for the Company’s life insurance subsidiaries for 2002 and 2001 inciudes a charge of $17.4 million
and $39.9 million, respectively, for the other than temporary decline in the value of certain securities. The Company’s
casualty insurance subsidiary had statutory capital and surplus of $212.7 million and $198.0 million at December 31, 2002
and 2001, respectively, and statutory net income (loss) of $15.2 million, $(10.7) million and $32.3 million in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively. The consolidated statutory net loss in 2001 for the Company’s casualty insurance subsidiary
includes a charge for reserve strengthening of $29.9 million, net of taxes, primarily related to an unusually high number of
large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business, including losses attributable to the terrorist attacks
on the World Trade Center. Payment of dividends by the Company’s insurance subsidiaries is regulated by insurance laws
and is permitted based on, among other things, the level of prior-year statutory surplus and net income. The Company’s
insurance subsidiaries will be permitted to make dividend payments totaling $46.6 million during 2003 without prior
regulatory approval. »

The Company’s Board of Directors has authorized the Company to purchase up to 2.4 million shares of its outstanding
Class A Common Stock from time to time on the open market. At December 31, 2002, 0.9 million shares remained
authorized for future purchases. During 2001 and 2000, the Company purchased 0.1 million and 0.3 million shares,
respectively, of its Class A Common Stock for a total cost of $2.2 million and $10.2 million, respectively. There were no
Class A Common Stock repurchases during 2002.

The following table provides a reconciliation of beginning and ending shares:
Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(shares in thousands)

Class A Common Stock:

Beginning balance ... 17,763 16,845 16,285
Issuance of stock, exercise of stock options and
CONVErsion Of ShArES.......ccoocvirrieeeenrieirrnr e 1,165 918 560
Ending balance ... 18,928 17,763 16,845
Class B Common Stock:

Beginning balance .........cccoceeeiieiiiiiii e 4,133 4,839 5,180
Conversion of Shares ...........ccovvevevnnienes e e (938) (706) (341)
Ending Balance ......cccumeeivevreeniriaeeeneeneeritense e nanes 3,195 4,133 4,839

Class A Treasury Stock:

Beginning balance ... 1,505 1,435 1,110
Acquisition of freasury stock..........cocovirccnnernieeiecceeeenees - 70 325
Ending balance..........cccoiniiceiceceieeciece e 1,505 1,505 1,435
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The components of other comprehensive (loss) income are as follows:

Net
Unrealized
Appreciation Net
(Depreciation) Unrealized Minimum
on Available Loss on Pension
for Sale Cash Flow Liability
Securities Hedge Adjustment Total
(dollars in thousands)
Balance, January 1, 2000 .........ccccoooerermirerriireerennenas $ (101,465 §$ - 8 - §(101.463)
Unrealized depreciation on available for sale securities " (18,700) - - (18,700)
Reclassification adjustment for losses included in
net income P.........ocoovieieeeeeee s 66,543 - - 66,543

Net change in unrealized depreciation on

IMVESIMEILS 1..evvireninsieerecsieree e st st e cvseaeseresaas 47,843 - - 47.843
Balance, December 31,2000 ......c.cccoeveevvivireceevernrns $ (53.622) $ - 3 - § (53.622)
Unrealized depreciation on available for sale securities o (1,886) - - (1,886)
Reclassification adjustment for losses included in

netincome @..........oooiiveeeeeeeeeee s 44,523 - - 44,523
Net change in unrealized depreciation on '

INVESHMNENTS ..vetreeeecrciiece et eeeeaseae 42.637 - - 42,637
Balance, December 31,2001 ..........cocvvveveeicnrcrerenne, $ (10985) $ - $ - § (10985)
Unrealized appreciation on available for sale securities 26,556 - ' - 26,556
Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net A

TNCOME @ ..o 18,001 - - 18.001
Net change in unrealized appreciation on :

INVESHNEIMS Lovveneece e s 44,557 - - 44,557
Net unrealized loss on cash flow hedge @.................. - (3,290) - (3,290)
Minimum pension liability adjustment @ .................. - - 279) 279)
Balance, December 31,2002 ........cccoovvveeererenceinnnn. $ 33572 $  (3290) § (279) $_ 30,003

(1) Net of an income tax benefit (expense) of $10.1 million, $1.0 million and $(14.3) million for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and
2002, respectively. Also, net of related adjustment to cost of business acquired of $(9.7) million, $(4.1) million and $(23.8) million for the
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively.

(2) Net of an income tax benefit of $35.8 million, $24.0 million and $9.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002,
respectively.

(3) Net of an income tax benefit of $1.8 million.

(4) Netof an income tax benefit of $0.1 million.

Note N — Commitments and Contingencies

Total rental expense for operating leases, principally for administrative and sales office space, was $7.7 million, $6.7
million, and $5.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001, and 2000, respectively. As of December 31,
2002, future net minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases were approximately $36.4 million,
payable as follows: 2003 - $7.6 million, 2004 - $7.1 million, 2005 - $6.7 million, 2006 - $5.5 million, 2007 - $4.8 million
and $4.7 million thereafter.
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Note N — Commitments and Contingencies - (Continued)

In the course of its business, the Company is a party to litigation and other procéedings, primarily involving its insurance
operations. In some cases, these proceedings entail claims against the Company for punitive damages and similar types of
relief. The ultimate disposition of such pending litigation and proceedings is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position. In addition, incident to its discontinued products, the Company
is currently a party to two separate arbitrations arising out of two accident and health reinsurance arrangements in which it
and other companies formerly were participating reinsurers. At issue in both arbitrations, among other things, is whether
certain reinsurance risks were validly ceded to the Company. The ultimate resolutions of these arbitrations are likely to
require extended periods of time. While management believes that in both cases the Company has substantial legal
grounds for avoiding the reinsurance risks at issue, it is not at this time possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these
arbitrations, nor is it feasible to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses. In the opinion of management, such
arbitrations, when ultimately resolved, will not individually or collectively have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial position.

Note O - Stock Options

Under the terms of the Company’s employee stock option plan and outside directors’ stock option plan, a total of
3,750,000 shares of Class A Common Stock have been reserved for issuance. The exercise price for options granted
under these plans is the fair market value of the underlying stock as of the date of the grant and the maximum term of an

option is ten years.

The Company’s long-term performance-based incentive plan for its chief executive officer (the “Performance Plan”)
provides for the award of up to 317,975 shares or options for shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock (79,494
restricted or deferred shares and options to purchase 238,481 shares) per year over a ten-year term contingent upon the
Company meeting specified annual performance goals. The restricted or deferred shares may not be sold or otherwise
disposed of until the earliest of the individual’s retirement, disability or death or a change of ownership of the Company.
The exercise price of the options awarded under the Performance Plan is the fair market value of the underlying stock as
of the date of the grant and the maximum term of the options is ten years. The options become exercisable 30 days
following the date of grant. No deferred shares or options were awarded for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 or
2002. No compensation expense related to the Performance Plan was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2000,

2001 or 2002.

Option activity with respect to the above plans was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Number  Average Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Options outstanding, beginning of year...... 2,551,739 $32.17 2,580,950 $32.32 1,837,616  $33.09
Options granted...........cccoeeeieevereneecennennans 76,410  40.71 150,794 35.50 769,204 30.00
Options forfeited ............coccvivvnireencnenann, (27,539) 37.89 (130,016) 36.01 (8,620) 3027
Options expired......coeoviiniiinninnnen. (20912)  33.81 (34,207) 4298 - -
Options exercised.........c.ccecvvenrecceescncnnen (69,593) 25.70 (15.782) 34.24 (17.250) 12.13
Options outstanding, end of year................ 2,510,105 3253 2,551,739  32.17 _2,580,950  32.32
Exercisable options, end of year ................ 2,101,862 32.33 1,961,348 31.99 1,711,693 32.08
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Information about options outstanding at December 31, 2002 was as follows:

Outstanding Exercisable

Number Average  Average Number Average

Range of : of - - Remaining Exercise of Exercise
Exercise Prices Options Life Price Options Price
$0.00 - SI13.59.c e 175,757 2.1 $ 13.07 175,757 & 13.07
$21.70 - 83232 1,450,507 6.4 29.73 1,219,830 29.68
$33.00 - $48.60......ccooee 866,076 6.2 40.68 691,425 41.41
$56.36 - $56.36.....cciciiiiceee e 17,765 5.4 56.36 14,850 56.36

2,510,105 6.0 § 32.53 2,101,862 § 3233
During 1996, the Company assumed 6.0 million SIG stock options (the “SIG Options™) in connection with SIG’s merger
into the Company (the “SIG Merger”). Upon the exercise of the SIG Options, the holder is entitled to receive (i) .1399 of
a share of the Company’s Class A Common Stock for each SIG Option; plus (ii) an additional number of shares of the
Company’s Class A Common Stock equal to the quotient of (a) $1.90 multiplied by the number of SIG Options being
exercised increased by an interest component from the time of the SIG Merger to the exercise date, divided by (b) the
average closing share price for the Company’s Class A Common Stock for the ten days prior to the exercise date. The
SIG Options were granted annually from 1992 to 1996, have an exercise price of $0.02 and each grant vests over five
years beginning in the fourth year after the grant date. All of the SIG Options expire on October 1, 2006. As of
December 31, 2002, the weighted average contractual life of the outstanding SIG Options was 3.8 years.

Activity with respect to the outstanding SIG Options was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Number  Equivalent Number Equivalent Number  Equivalent
of SIG Class A of SIG Class A of SIG Class A
Options Shares Options Shares Options Shares

SIG Options - beginning of period....... 1,223,606 264,622 1,895,352 387,545 2,590,259 571,483
Options exercised.......cocoovvveevcennnnnn. (511,261) 115,186 (671,746) 156,200 (694,907) 152,229
Options forfeited ......c.ccoeeevvererneernnn (16.191) - - - - -
SIG Options - end of year ................. 696,154 155,000 _1,223.606 264,622 _1,895,352 387,545

Exercisable SIG Options - end of year 475,976 109,331 649,719 140,511 716,923 146,590
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Note P — Computation of Results per Share
Year Ended December 31,-
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
Income (loss) before extraordinary (10SS) £ain .....coevevverrvicinvciineenincrenenns $60,868 $§ (941) $ (3,293)
Extraordinary (loss) gain, net of income tax (benefit) expense............ccovuvene. (216) 7.446 -
Net INCOME {10S5) 1vvveriiriereriririese e ettt e re e seraeecer b e ses e resesbeseeos $ 60652 §_6,505 3.29
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding .............cccvvvevieiniiicccnncene. 20,759 20,565 20,388
Effect of dilutive SeCUrities.........co.coeerervrurerenans et er et e eeen ' 499 - -
Weighted average common shares outstanding, assuming dilution ............... 21,258 20,565 20,388
Basic results per share of common stock: .
Income (loss) before extraordinary (1088) £aiN ......ccouvvivrerevirrencererninrernennees $ 293 $ (0.04) $ (0.16)
Extraordinary (loss) gain, net of income tax (benefit) expense............cooe.e.. {0.01) 0.36 -
Net INCOME (LOSS) ..vevrcririrrierereriirieerereiereesaesrneresesesteesasesssesessasessasessenseseons $ 292 $ 032 § (0.16)
Diluted results per share of common stock:
Income (loss) before extraordinary (10SS) AN ....cevvvreveverenrrverenennreeevrenees $ 28 § (0.04) $ (0.16)
Extraordinary (loss) gain, net of income tax (benefit) expense...........c..coo.... (0.01) 0.36 -
Net INCOME (JOSS) ..vevvrrereeririerereree et s steseer sttt s $ 285 $_ 032 § (0.16)

Note Q - Reinsurance

The Company assumes and cedes reinsurance from and to other insurers and reinsurers. The Company uses reinsurance to
limit its maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and in connection with the exiting of certain lines of
business. Reinsurance coverages are tailored to the specific risk characteristics of each type of product and the
Company’s retained amount varies by type of coverage. Generally, group life, disability and accident policies are
reinsured on a coinsurance and risk premium basis. Property and casualty policies are reinsured on an excess of loss, per
risk basis under general reinsurance agreements, or, in some instances, on an individual risk basis. Indemnity reinsurance
treaties do not provide absolute protection to the Company since the ceding insurer remains responsible for policy claims
to the extent that the reinsurer fails to pay such claims. To reduce this risk, the Company monitors the financial position
of its reinsurers, including, among other things, the companies’ financial ratings, and in certain cases receives collateral
security from the reinsurer. Also, certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set up security
arrangements for the Company’s benefit in the event of certain ratings downgrades. As of December 31, 2002, all of the
Company’s significant reinsurers were either rated “A-" (Excellent) or higher by A.M. Best Company.

In January 1998, an offering was completed whereby shareholders and optionholders of the Company received, at no cost,
rights to purchase shares of Delphi International Ltd. (“Delphi International”), a newly-formed, independent Bermuda
insurance holding company. During 1998, the Company entered into various reinsurance agreements with Oracle
Reinsurance Company Ltd. (“Oracle Re”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Delphi International. Pursuant to these
agreements, approximately $101.5 million of group employee benefit reserves (335.0 million of long-term disability
insurance reserves and $66.5 million of net excess workers’ compensation and casualty insurance reserves) were ceded to
Oracle Re. The Company received collateral security from Oracle Re in an amount sufficient to support the ceded
reserves. During 2000, Oracle Re and the Company effected the partial recapture of approximately $4.6 million of the
group long-term disability liabilities ceded to Oracle Re. In October 2001, Oracle Re and the Company consummated the
commutation of these various reinsurance agreements, and Oracle Re paid approximately $84.0 million to the Company,
net of $11.5 million, which had been held by the Company, related to the reserves ceded to Oracle Re under such
agreements. These transactions did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position,
liquidity, or net income. In furtherance of the commutation of the reinsurance agreements, the Company agreed to waive a
portion of the amounts due to the Company under certain subordinated notes issued by Delphi International. As
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Note Q — Reinsurance — (Continued)

a result of this waiver, the Company recognized a pre-tax loss of $7.5 million in 2001 for the other than temporary decline
in the value of these notes. In March 2002, Delphi International repaid the adjusted amounts due under the subordinated’
notes and the Company did not realize any significant additional loss in connection with such repayment.

A summary of reinsurance activity follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
(dollars in thousands)
Premium income asSUMEd..........ccocvviiviireirimiveereenieeneeereesreesseesseeseesnens $ 38,172 $ 23,099 § 41,047
Premium income ceded .......ccooviiieiieieceeneec et e 109,198 126,698 111,390
Benefits, claims and interest credited ceded............cooooevreviicnniiennnas 134,875 150,885 113,367
Note R — Segment Information
Group
Employee Asset
Benefit Accumulation
Products Products Other ! Total
(doilars in thousands) :
2002
Revenues excluding net realized investment losses....... $ 698,396 $ 70,109 $ 21,388 $ 789,893
Operating income (1055) P..........coovvrrrvcrrrnsrriereeererrnnens 122,726 10,129 (5,390) 127,465
Net investment income ™ ..........cccooovnremrurnerneecenneisserenns 89,897 67,464 4,675 162,036
Amortization of cost of business acquired .................... 41,608 4,134 - 45,742
Segment assets @ ...........oiovereir s 2,101,836 1,496,343 136,763 3,734,942
2001 .
Revenues excluding net realized investment losses....... 570,852 72,746 21,115 664,713
Operating income (10s8) @@ ..o, 72,961 13,434 (4,743) 81,652
Net investment income @ ...........cooovieereireccreeeena, 82,858 69,658 4,993 157,509
Amortization of cost of business acquired .......c.cc.co..... 30415 4,285 - 34,700
Segment assets @ ..........coovoeeirreee e 1,882,009 1,326,428 127,709 3,336,146
2000
Revenues excluding net realized investment losses....... 547,614 81,870 21,449 650,933
Operating income (1oss) @™ ........cocoovvieeceirrceriene 134,654 26,456 (3,739) 157,371
Net investment income @...........coooviioiviiinirieren. 99,924 79,319 5,333 184,576
Amortization of cost of business acquired ..........c......... 25,307 4,419 - 29,726
Segment assets @ .............cocovereeeninennieere s 1,963,114 1,353,874 123,022 3,440,010

(1) Consists of operations that do not meet the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segments and includes integrated disability and
absence management services and certain corporate activities.

(2) Income (loss) excluding net realized investment losses and before interest and income tax expense and extraordinary (loss) gain. Results for
2001 reflect the reserve strengthening and liquidation of a substantial majority of the investments of the Company’s investment subsidiaries.
See Notes C and D to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

{(3) Net investment income includes income earned on the assets of the insurance companies as well as on the assets of the holding company and
is allocated among business lines in proportion to average reserves and the capital placed at risk for each segment. Segment assets include
assets of the insurance companies as well as assets of the holding company, which are allocated across business lines in proportion to average
reserves and the capital placed at risk for each segment. The decline in investment income and segment assets during 2001 reflects the
liquidation of a substantial majority of the investments of the Company’s investment subsidiaries. See Note C to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(4

~—

Operating income for group employee benefits and other operations includes amortization of goodwill of $1.8 million and $1.4 million,
respectively, in 2001 and $1.8 million and $1.3 million, respectively, in 2000.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS
OTHER THAN INVESTMENTS IN RELATED PARTIES
December 31, 2002
(Dollars in Thousands)

Amount
Shown in
Amortized Fair Balance
Type of Investment Cost Value Sheet
Fixed maturity securities available for sale:
U.S. Government backed mortgage-backed securities........ § 279,150 § 293,177 $§ 293,177
Other mortgage-backed securities..........ccooevevnniinneeenns 317,711 335,156 335,156
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government
guaranteed SECUTIIES .....c.ovvevrvereeeect e ceenrsrene e rieenns 266,333 275,983 275,983
Obligations of U.S. states, municipalities and
political sSUbdiviSIONS.......covevcererereerererericrererrereeeeene 424,921 438,524 438,524
COrporate SECUTILIES ..eo.eeuvereriireer ettt e 1,141,540 1,152,789 1,152,789
Total fixed maturity securities.........cceeverveeeervrercrnrennnes 2,429,655 2,495,629 2.495,629
Equity securities:
COommOnN SLOCKS ...ovvvveeeiececerieric e bereebe e 17,469 18,247 18,247
Non-redeemable preferred Stocks ........ocoecrnerereiecenen, 14.805 14,933 14,933
Total equity SECUTTtIES ....ereeuvererire e 32,274 33,180 33,180
Short-term INVESIMENTS..........cceverirreeeieie s ee e enseenens 204,890 204,890 204,890
Other INVESHMENTS......coveireeiiererneceesiesee e eesersaesreesetssnansens 93.466 82.352 82,352
Total INVESIMENLS .....coovveeveerieririree e rees e ereeseens $ 2760285 $ 2816,051 2,816,051
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31,
2002 2001
Assets:
Fixed maturity securities, available for sale.............ccooveeevirinicirvrcreeen $ - $ 14,824
Other INVESEEd ASSELS ..ocveiveviiverrectieeiceieereeteie st s ste st eaeeraese st enresessbestesessessseseaes 4,288 3,541
Investment in operating SUbSIAIATIES. ......c..vcveeeeiririi et 831,150 714,438
Investment in investment SUDBSIAIATIES ......cceoveiiiieeeeeiee vttt 53,646 142,130
Investment in Delphi Funding L.L.C. ..ot 3,093 3,093
CASH .ottt ettt sttt st et et se s b an et esa e ne e et eaenbenes 641 5
BT BSSBLS....ccrvrreurivetreeiceirertereeereeraesesbestesaess s st sbe s b ebebebaraesan e nsatonsessatsabessarsansenes 24,007 20,282
TOLAl ASSELS...uiiveiririeriisiieiriite et err et ette st rre st e st et vae b et ekt ereebeasaeseerbesreaabenpsanaen $ 916,825 § 898313
Liabilities:
COTPOTAtE AEbL......cviiieerieiciesireeeireesteee st rase b s sbe sttt benesse b s e ssee s $ 109,111 $ 107,550
Junior subordinated debentures payable to Delphi Funding LL.C........ccccocvnnnn. 39,143 39,143
Amounts due t0 SUBSIAIATIES .......civviiivieeereeeee et sereeere e e e saneen e 10,597 86,692
Other HADIlItIES ..........oveeeeeeeeieceee ettt st et et st s ve s e s esesasereneens on 76.319 82,934
235.170 316,319
Shareholders” Equity:
Class A COmMMON STOCK .......cuieierieiei et e e s sa st rbeeaeaab s rreas 189 178
Class B CommOn STOCK ....ccoiuirireeicrreci e ree i ecvreseeve st sr e sr et s s e bnassssenee e 32 41
Additional paid-in capital .........cccocroreeeiceeee e 373,356 369,385
Accumulated other comprehensive income (10SS) .....cocererienienrniennerceeiereeieieees 30,003 (10,985)
Retained earnings .........ccoceeeeeuennan: eteetesteeteareeanss s eaeetaearaanaeas vt e i 329,574 274,874
TTEASUIY STOCK 1.veverieeeiee it ettt ettt st se et et e e sttt s s (51,499 (51.499)
681.655 581,994
Total liabilities and shareholders’ €quIty ........ccoocvveeeininnrennneresecce e $ 916,825 § 898313

See notes to condensed financial statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)
DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

(Dollars in Thousands)
Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
Revenue:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ..............cccoeeeeeens $§ 91,303 § 5116 $ 11,385
Dividends from subsidiaries ...........coccecernmnnnnicneccncc e, 14,088 31,888 9,588
Other (JOSS) INCOME .......oovvrrrreeririsimsisesesestsssssesasessasssesessesasssessesssases (1,653) 136 (809)
Realized investment gains (1I0SSES) .....ceecerreriesierininniiienicnnesiereseennas 200 (21.853) 427
103.938 15,287 20,591
Expenses:
OPEIAtiNg EXPEINSES.....everervirricrirrerctirersciesessersressersresenesesssemseseseseonnans 2,598 1,436 2,143
INIETEST EXPEISE .ovvivn ittt st 14.725 19,900 29,892
17,323 21,336 32,035
Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit) and
extraordinary (1088) aiN ......ccovvrerrcerecrerernienecise s 86,615 (6,049) (11,444)
Income tax expense (benefit) .........ccoeveeviverievcccine e 25.747 (5.108) (8.151)
Income (loss) before extraordinary (loss) gain..........coccoevvevienne. 60,868 (941) (3,293)
Extraordinary (loss) gain, net of income tax (benefit) expense .............. (216) 7.446 -
Net inCOME (JOSS) .vevreieeeieriree it e resre e eeterre e e e ras e e aaees $ 60,652 § 6,505 $ (3.293)

See notes to condensed financial statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in Thousands)

Operating activities:
Net iNCOME (10SS)....coverirerriiieriieininrierisreieeererestaseessesnesniaesererarasas
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash (used)
provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries......................
Change in other assets and other liabilities ............c....coeenee.
Change in current and deferred income taxes..........co.cccceverennn,
Amortization, principally of investments and debt
ISSUANCE COSES ..veverververirirrrrrrnrreennens erererern e ree e e e aeereeas
Net realized (gains) losses on investments...........cocovveveiinenne
Change in amounts due from/to subsidiaries................ccoccenceee.
Extraordinary 10ss (2ain)........ccocooeniniiciiiiiicreneecnee
Net cash provided by operating activities...........ccvcereunnen.

Investing activities:
Purchases of investments and loans made .............ococoevenicvccninennnns
Sales of investments and receipts from repayment of loans...........
Maturities Of INVESHIMENTS.........c.cocvrereeerereereerereee e eeeanearesneveanns
Net change in short-term INVeStMENts........coccevcieiviienerecciniiinnene
Purchases of investments in subsidiaries ..........ccccveveceneneninennnenn.
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities..........cccooeeenennne.

Financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of common stock and exercise of
StOCK OPLIONS ..cecoviiiecrieieterenr et
Dividends paid on common StocK........cocevviereiinceirneennnreonarinne
Acquisition of treasury StOCK .......ccevevevrevninceneireee e
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities ..........cccoccoevvecennennnn
Principal payments under revolving credit facilities.........c.oou.n...
Repurchase of Senior Notes. .......cccooeiiiiriiveviein e

Repurchase of junior subordinated debentures payable to
Delphi Funding L.L.C. oot

Change in liability for securities sold under agreements to
TEPUICHASE ....ovceiviiiiirtct e e
Payments received on surplus debenture ...........cooceveeeveevviieceenne
Net cash used by financing activities ...........ccooceeevecerrnerne

Increase (decrease) in Cash.........cc..ceveivi e inieiieeieciie e,
Cash at beginning of year..............cocovviii e
Cash at end of YEar .....cccevvecerieeeriiieer e

Year Ended December 31,
2002 2001 2000
$ 60,652 $ 6,505 . $ (3,293
(63,915) (6,316) (11,546)
(29,153) 3,341 1,093
16,111 4,265 12,017
(290) 863 390
(200) 21,853 427
18,134 148,444 18,506
216 (7.446) -
1,555 171,514 16,740
(14,348) (1,195) (18,672)
- 35,378 17,511
15,024 400 724
(742) (3,354) 7,069
- (2,613) (15,610)
(66) 28.616 (8.978)
3,973 2,554 2,445
(5,952) (5,691) -
- (2,204) (5,493)
49,000 102,000 19,000
(37,000) . (227,000) (26,000)
(10,874) (8,284) -
- (51,329) -
- (10,571) (4,308)
- - 6.990
(853) (200,525) (7.366)
636 (395) 396
5 400 4
$ 641 $ 5 $ 400

See notes to condensed financial statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)
DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries.

The Company received cash dividends from subsidiaries of $13.3 million, $32.7 million and $9.6 million in 2002, 2001
and 2000, respectively.
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SCHEDULE III

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION
(Dollars in Thousands)

Future Policy
Benefits and
Costof  Unpaid Claim Policyholder
Business and Claim Unearned Account
Acquired Expenses Premiums Balances
2002
Group employee benefits products.............. § 130,050 $1,214399 § 48,171 $ -
Asset accumulation products...........ccccevenne. 38,060 72,043 .- 878,820
OhET et - 84,772 - 31,141
Totaleo e $ 168,110 $1,371.214 $ 48171 $ 909961
2001
Group employee benefits products............ $ 113,554 $1,122,338 $ 44,655 § -
Asset accumulation products............c......... 55,340 70,003 - 786,214
OHET ..ttt e en e - 87.311 - 31,329
TOtal...ocvieieccicese e $ 168,894  $1,279.652 § 44655 $ 817.543
2000
Group employee benefits products............. $ 100,701 $1,026,307 $ 46,725 % -
Asset accumulation products.........cccoeennee. 55,855 53,097 - 751,311
(01T SO OO UOR PSR - 90,740 - 31.141
TOtal. oo $ 156,556 $1,170.144 § 46,725 § 782452
Benefits,
Claims and  Amortization
Premium Net Interest of Cost of Other
and Fee Investment Credited to Business Operating
Income ! Income ®  Policyholders _Acquired Expenses
2002
Group employee benefits products............. $ 608,499 $ 89,897 $ 420,992 $ 41,608 $ 113,070
Asset accumulation products...........ccccooeee 2,645 67,464 49,464 4,134 6,382
101171 T UUUR 16,713 4,675 1,528 - 25,250
TOtaleoviieeiiceiee et $§ 627857 § 162,036 $§ 471984 § 45742 § 144,702
2001
Group employee benefits products.............. $ 487,994 $ 82,858 $ 365,811 $ 30,415 $ 101,665
Asset accumulation products........c.cceeeeeee 3,088 69,658 49,455 4285 5,572
Other ..ot 16,122 4,993 1,730 - 24,128
Total.................... ettt eras $ 507204 § 157,509 § 416996 $§_ 34700 § 131,365
2000
Group employee benefits products............. $ 447,690 $ 99,924 $ 295321 $ 25,307 $ 92,332
Asset accurmnulation products.............cceeeeee. 2,551 79,319 45,563 4419 5,432
Other ..o 16,116 5,333 1.874 - 23.314

Total...coiec e $ 466357 §.184576 § 342,758 $§ 29726 $ 121,078

(1) Net written premiums for casualty insurance products totaled $162.6 million, $105.5 million and $93.4 million for the years ended December -
31, 2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

(2) Net investment income includes income earned on the assets of the insurance companies as well as on the assets of the holding company and is
allocated among business lines in proportion to average reserves and the capital placed at risk for each segment. The decline in investment
income in 2001 and 2002 reflects the liquidation of a substantial majority of the investments of the Company’s investment subsidiaries. See
Note C to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GRQUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Life insurance in force as of
December 31, 2002..............

Year ended December 31, 2002:
Premium and fee income:
Life insurance and annuity
Accident and heaith insurance

Total premium and fee income..

Life insurance in force as of
December 31,2001 ..............

Year ended December 31, 2001:
Premium and fee income:
Life insurance and annuity
Accident and health insurance

Total premium and fee income..

Life insurance in force as of
December 31, 2000..............

Year ended December 31, 2000:
Premium and fee income:

Life insurance and annuity
Accident and health insurance

Total premium and fee income..

SCHEDULE IV

REINSURANCE
(Dollars in Thousands)
Percentage
Ceded to _ Assumed of Amount
Gross Other from Other Net Assumed
Amount Companies Companies Amount to Net

$ 95624554 $ 7,219.005 § 36,403 $ 88,441,952 %
$ 238,020 § 24364 § 1,029 § 214,685 - %
292323 48,725 2,146 245,744 1%
153,654 36,109 35,179 152,724 23%

14,704 - - 14,704

$ 698701 $ 109.198 §$ 38,354 $ 627,857
$79,302,191 § 6,077,095 § 38,101 § 73,263,197 -%
$ 1943851 § 21,828 §$ 3,420 §$ 176,443 2%
251,132 44,597 9,317 215,852 4%
150,684 60,273 10,362 100,773 10 %

14,136 - - 14,136

$ 610803 § 126,698 § 23,099 § 507,204
$ 71,047412 §$§ 4418697 § 41,460 $ 66,670,175 L%
$ 180,910 § 20,240 § 1,716 % 162,386 1%
231,676 45,390 21,162 207,448 10 %
110,006 45,760 18,169 82,415 22%

14,108 - - 14,108

$ 536700 $ 111390 $ 41,047 $ 466,357

-66-




SCHEDULE VI

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION CONCERNING
PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31,
2002 2001
Deferred policy aCqUISItion COSES .........oceeriveerencurinininiceri e § 6,999 § 5566
Reserves for unpaid claims and claim expenses ...........ccoconrvvirervcrriicnenn. 534,856 506,778
Discount, if any, deducted from above @.............coccovivevrieverreseeeerenrreens 241,688 224,241
Unearmed PreMItIS .......oveeeeeeueerermvenessrensieresseserenssasesesssesssessesesssessssnesenases 43,904 40,499
_ Year Ended December 31, -~ T
2002 2001 2000
Earned premitms ........ccvevecerieerneiereineneeseimesenecereseseeneeis $ 152,724 $ 100,773 $ 82415
Net investment INCOME .......c..ccveerreereeereeirerereeeeerereseasienns 42,602 38,641 38,318
Claims and claim expenses incurred related to:
Current year U ..o 82,197 73,782 41,716
Prior years @.........ccooooevveeieceeenee e, 15,869 13,896 (1,584)
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs........... 16,190 8,094 4,862
Paid claims and claim adjustment expenses @ . 72,869 . (23,758) 44,774
Net premiums WIEM .......coveccrieerernreneererresereresesresnenes 162,559 105,511 93,383

(1) Claims and claim expenses for 2001 include a charge for reserve strengthening of $39.3 million primarily related to an unusually high number of
large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business. See Note D to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Based on interest rates ranging from 3.7% to 7.5%.

(3) In 2002, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect accretion of discounted reserves offset by favorable claims
development. In 2001, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect the accretion of discounted reserves and unfavorable
claims development. In 2000, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect favorable claims development offset by the
accretion of discounted reserves.

(4) In 2001, the paid claims and claim adjustment expenses reflect the Company’s receipt of $74.3 million related to the commutation of the
reinsurance agreements with Oracle Re.
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